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Abbreviations
&5 78

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following meanings ~ WAF®RA - BXESBIEI - THIHEE UL TRE

unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

Ex3d ;
“Company”

VNS #
“Directors”

= i
“Group”

[AREEE ] #
“Listing Rules”

[ R Al #
“PRC"

[ E #
“SFO”

[ 58 % K AR & &M ) #

"“Stock Exchange”

[ B2 FfT ¥

“HK$"” and "HK cents”

(&7 &7 ¥
“RMB”

[ARE] ¥
S

[ ¥
nop

(%] ¥

* EHE5

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

the Board of Directors of the Company
ARBZEES

Winshine Science Company Limited

BRMBERAE*

the directors of the Company
ARBZES

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARBRENMBAR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B PriE 7 LR A

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong

Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARANE - BABEME - TRESE  BFKRSE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
&5 M B GG (BRIADIEST I E)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMARSMERAT

Hong Kong dollars and cents

IR

Renminbi

ARE

United States dollars
E7T

per cent.

Elepsd
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Executive Directors
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Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman)
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Mr. Zhao Yong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Corporate Information
“NEEH
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

Dear fellow shareholders:

The Board herein presents the annual report for 2023 and the audited
annual financial statements for the Group for the financial year ended 3|
December 2023.

Our Group continued the existing toys business in the past years. With high
inflation and high interest rate in many countries, particularly in the United
States ("US"), the global toy industry faced new challenges and experienced
slowdown in 2023. For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue derived
from the manufacturing and trading of toys decreased by approximately
38.4% to HK$522.8 million, which is mainly attributable to the decrease in
the purchase orders from one major customer in the US of the toys division

due to the competitive market conditions during the year.

Our Group has further engaged in the plantation and sale of agricultural
products in Japan by acquisition during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2023, revenue derived from the plantation and sales of

agricultural products is HK$0.44 million.

PROSPECTS

We anticipate that 2024 is a challenging year. Inflation, despite a slowdown,
remains a notable challenge. The Toys Division experienced tremendous
pressure on product margins and turnover in FY2023, the Toys Division is

expected to continue facing challenges in 2024.

The Board is looking for different business opportunities to diversify our
principal business activities and moving toward more profitable businesses
in order to maintain competitiveness and ensure shareholder returns. Cost
cutting measures within the Group were put in place to reduce operating
costs. The Board has also decided to give the Company a better financial

position to meet the future challenges.

In order to explore opportunities and provide sufficient fund for the general
working capital, the Group issued new shares under the General Mandate at
the amount of approximately HK$6.5 million on |5 January 2024. During the
year, the Group has acquired the subsidiary which engaged in the plantation
and sale of agricultural products in Japan. This investment is in line with the

Group’s plan to develop a business in the agricultural sector.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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On |6 April 2024, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with an independent third party experienced
in the medical field, in relation to the strategic cooperation in the medical
field, pursuant to which the parties agreed to collaborate in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales and marketing of medical aesthetics
related drugs, including drugs that promote weight loss. The Board considers
that the said cooperation is in line with the Group’s business development
needs and strategy to move towards business diversification, and is expected
to create higher returns to the shareholders of the Company. As at the date
of this report, no formal or legally binding agreements have been entered
into for the said cooperation. Shareholders and potential investors of the
Company are advised to exercise caution when dealing in the shares of the

Company.

Looking forward, we are cautiously optimistic as our Toys Division and
Agricultural Products Division continue to improve their performances and
the Board shall continue to explore more new business opportunities on a
much lower management cost and look for more new potential customers

to increase the market shares.

Jiang Qinghui

Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The main divisions of the Group based on the principal activities of the
Group include the manufacturing for sale of toys (the “Toys Division”) and
the plantation and sales of agricultural products (the “Agricultural Products

Division™).

For FY2023, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$523.3
million, representing a decrease of approximately 38.4% as compared to
the revenue of approximately HK$849.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“FY2022").

The decrease of revenue was mainly due to the worse performance of
our Toys Division of approximately HK$325.8 million. Gross profit for the
year amounted to approximately HK$39.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 60.0% as compared with that of approximately HK$97.9

million in FY2022 as a result of the worse performance of the Toys Division.

For FY2023, the net loss of the Group amounted to approximately HK$29.4
million as compared with the net profit approximately HK$8.1 million in
FY2022. The decrease in net loss of the Group and turn out to net loss was
mainly due to the decrease in the revenue generated from a major customer

purchase orders.

The following will discuss the detailed performance of each division of the

Group.
Toys Division

For FY2023, revenue of the Toys Division decreased by approximately
38.4% to HK$522.8 million. The gross profit decreased to approximately
HK$39.2 million as compare to HK$97.9 million in FY2022. The decrease in
both revenue and gross profit of the Toys Division were mainly due to the
decrease in purchase orders from the largest customer headquartered in the
United States of America (the "USA"). The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to elevated discounts offered to its customers in response
to a volatile and challenging consumer environment. The Toys Division

recorded a reported segment loss before taxation of approximately HK$7.26

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

million in FY2023, as compared to the turnout of the reportable segment
profit before taxation of approximately HK$53.1 million in FY2022. Such
reported segment loss before taxation of the Toys Division were mainly due

to decrease in gross profit attributable to the Toys Division.

Agricultural Products Division

On 20 May 2023, the Company indirectly acquired 78.9% of equity interest
of ZEEMRIVE L which is principally engaged in the plantation and sales of
agricultural products in Japan. For FY2023, revenue of agricultural products
was generated in HK$0.44 million. The Agricultural Products Division
recorded a reported segment loss before taxation of approximately HK$3.3
million, which was mainly due to the plantation and sales of agricultural
products in Japan were under the development stage in FY2023. The
management plans to extend the plantation and sales of agricultural products

in Japan.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

At the end of FY 2023, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$185.2 million (2022: HK$192.8 million) comprising cash
and cash equivalents (excluding pledged bank deposits) of approximately
HKS$119.3 million (2022: HK$49.8 million).

The capital deficiencies attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$80.9 million as at 31 December 2023, as compared
to the capital deficiencies attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$89.6 million as at 31 December 2022, mainly as a result
of the conversion of convertible bonds into shares less operating loss
incurred by the Group during the year. The Group financed its operations
through a combination of debt financing and shareholder’s equity. The
Group's gearing ratio was determined as its net debt divided by total equity
plus net debt where net debt included borrowings, convertible bond, trade
and bills payables and other payables and accruals less pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 3|
December 2023 was approximately 131% (2022: 134%).

Despite the loss incurred by the Group and the net liabilities status at the
end of FY2023, the Group has proposed to issue the shares under the
general mandate on |5 January 2024. Therefore, the Group has sufficient

cash to support the Group’s ongoing business operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DM

The management team is more closely aligned with our shareholders as
can be seen from the actions taken so far to redirect the Company toward
a better internal control, resolution of the legacy issues and a substantial

reduction of the management cost

DETAILS OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE FROM
THE COMPANY

Details of the Audit Qualification

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$185,184,000 and HK$80,869,000,
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2023, and the Group's
bank balances amounted to approximately HK$119,335,000, in contrast to
its borrowings and convertible bond approximately HK$238,097,000 and
HK$2,476,000 respectively, which are repayable within the next twelve
months. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
In this regard, the auditor of the Company issued a disclaimer of opinion
on the consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2023 on material uncertainty on the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern (the "Audit Qualification”).

Actual or potential impact of the Audit Qualification on the Group’s

financial position

The Audit Qualification does not itself show any actual impact on the
Group's financial position. As set out in note to the consolidated financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for biological assets which are measured
at their fair value less costs to sell and, certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. Should
the Group fail to achieve the intended effects resulting from the plans and
measures as mentioned in note to the consolidated financial statements, it
might not be able to operate as a going concern, and adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's assets,
provide for any further liabilities that may arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management’s position

In view of the Audit Qualification, the management of the Group (including
the Directors) (the “Management”) has given consideration related to the
Group's current liquidity, performance and available sources of financing in
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Taking into
account the successful and continued implementation of various measures
such as including the successful completion of issuance of shares under the
general mandate, successful negotiations with the lenders regarding the
extension of the maturity of all outstanding borrowings, the Management
believes that the Group should have sufficient working capital for a period
of not less than 12 months from 31 December 2023, and hence it was
appropriate to prepare the Group’s consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

There was no disagreement between the Management and the Auditors
regarding the Audit Qualification, considering that the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of the measures under management’s
assumptions, which are subject to certain uncertainties, including the Group's
ability to generate operating cash flows and to obtain additional sources of
financing. While the Company is of the view that it has already provided all
available information and documents to demonstrate that the Group will
have sufficient working capital for the |2 months after the year ended 3|
December 2023, the Company also acknowledges the uncertainties raised
by the Auditors specified above in that such uncertainties cannot be satisfied

with the mere provision of documents and information.

Audit committee’s views towards the Audit Qualification

The audit committee reviewed and agreed with the management's position
concerning the action plan of the Group to address the Audit Qualification
disclosed above. The Audit Committee has also discussed with the
Management and the Auditors to understand the reason for the Disclaimer
and the views of the Board and the Auditors. The Audit committee concurs
with the Management's position and views with respect to the Disclaimer
and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, the actions to be

implemented by the management of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DM

Proposed plans to address the Audit Qualification

The Board is satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future,
after taking into consideration of the point (i) to (iii) as set out in note
2 to the consolidated financial statements. The management recognises
that further equity funding is required to resolve auditor's concern on the
going concern issue. As such, the management will commence to contact
potential investors with a view to raise equity funds by way of placing of
new shares of the Company under a general mandate and/or rights issues.
The management will vigorously consider any feasible plan from the potential
underwriter and will proceed as and when appropriate and practicable. The
management intends to conduct the equity fund activities and successfully

raise fund for the Group by the end of 2024.

In view of the foregoing, and assuming all of the Company’s plans or
actions can be completed as planned, including the obtaining of alternative
financing, and no new circumstances and conditions have occurred, subject
to satisfactory completion of review of the Management's assessment of the
Group’s going concern and the Auditors being satisfied with the documents,
information and evidence to be provided by the Company going forward,
the Directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from the year ended of 3| December 2023 and the
Company is hopeful that that the Disclaimer may be removed in connection
with the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

year ending 31 December 2024.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is delighted to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report (the "ESG Report”), prepared by Winshine Science Company
Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) to summaries the Group’s ESG key issues, initiatives, and the
sustainability performance of our principal business in 2023. The ESG Report
is prepared in response to stakeholders’ expectations and concerns about

the sustainable development of the Group.

The board of directors of the Group (the “Board”) is responsible for the
sustainable development of the Group and directs the Group to perform
its corporate social responsibilities. The Board determinedly believes that
our attention to resources management and occupational safety and health
will especially help the Group achieve its established vision and mission.
The Board have faith in that attaching importance to ESG management can
improve our corporate image, reduce ESG risks and enhance the Group's
capability to comply with relevant laws and regulations. These efforts
can further improve the competitiveness of the Group and promote the

sustainable development of the Group’s business.

The Board believes that an effective governance structure of ESG matters
is essential to ESG performance and reporting and thus has established a
working group to assist and advise the Board in managing ESG matters such
as identifying ESG risks and opportunities, managing ESG issues as well as
collecting data regularly for the review of the ESG performance. The working

group reports to the Board on an annual basis.

The risk management of ESG-related issues is important to the Board. With
an aim to promote the comprehensive risk management within the Group,
the Group has made a basic assessment of relevant ESG risks through the
Board's extensive understanding of the business and the communication
with different stakeholders, and incorporated the relevant risks into the risk

management and internal control system.

The Board believes that the focus on resources management and
occupational health and safety is valuable to the Group's achievement of
its goal of upholding an excellent corporate image. Relevant departments
regularly report the metrics to the working group, who in turns consolidates
them and reports to the Board. The Group can thus regularly assess our
performance indicators in resources consumption and occupational safety
based on predetermined targets. These targets and evaluations are effective

metrics that reflect the efficiency and control of our operation.

RRE -HEgRERKSE

EEgR2H

AREMAREBRMBARABR(ARF ] ERAHE
MEBAR  SEAIAKE]ERNRE - HERE
ANRE e hkBRDBE(TRE  HEREARR
F1) ERAEENRE HERELHRMAR £
BUARBPANERZEBER T _—FEAFEERT
HOWRRE - BRI - HEREARESRRQERNEY
AEETFHEZROPENEIMBER

AEEEFE((EF2 D AEAKENARHEER -
BEAKEBRTEEMEEMT - EFRE - AMY
BREENBELZE2HEEMOBIMENEIRAE
BERAEBEMRMESD -  EFFRE - EREER -
HEREREREARALELR  BRERR  HE8k
EORRE B K558 AN 5k @8 ST ARBDAGIAIAR BIROBE S -
RZEBNE S RSAEENZEE - RELEE
EBOAREER -

-

EEERE  BHNERE - 1g
HIRIE e RERERMRE
VIENMABBESS

%@%%*ﬁ@&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

RERE - PIMBRIEE MR REARRAKE
TEBE R REARMME R B B R
B HEREARE - THIAESFRNESLIE
% -

B AR REAERNENRREEHERR Y

BT AHEAEEIEEBRER  AEEEBES

SHEBNEZ THRLRETRENENER  HI8H

e kERRBETERTG - UBHAERK
BIR R NEBEAESIE -

IRIE -

FAPNE'

EFeRA HEREEBAIRBXERERZNMEIT
HAEBEREMAERTECETNSNERAEEES
& - BEEEPIE M EER TE N ERE - TEAE
AEEBRAHRAEEERE - it - AEEARIE

BEBREHMTERMARERERNBREL 2T EN
BUER - ZFB BN IR T EENREM
EENBRUER

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

g

13



14

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE -#HEBRERERS

The Group will continue to seek ways to develop our business in a more
efficient and environmentally friendly manner and remains steadfast in our

mission to build an inclusive and sustainable society.

INTRODUCTION

The Group longs to pursue sustainable development to integrate
environmental and social initiatives into business and improve its
competitiveness within the industry. In order to demonstrate the Group's
continuous development in ESG, the Board is pleased to publish its seventh
ESG Report.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report covers our commitments, practices, and performance
in various ESG aspects for the period starting from | January 2023 to 3|
December 2023 (the 2023 or 2023 Reporting Period”). The reporting
scope of the ESG Report focuses on the primary business, manufacturing
and trading of toys. Only Zhongshan division is covered since the Zhongshan
factory is financially significant and operationally important to the Group,
constituting the centre for administration and policymaking. As such
Zhongshan division is covered in both environmental section and social
section in the ESG Report. The office-based operation in Hong Kong only
has a small workforce working in the finance and administration department,
its environmental implication is immaterial and as such is covered only in the

social section in the ESG Report.

REPORTING PRINCIPLE

The ESG Report complies with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guidelines” (the “"ESG Reporting Guide™) in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules. The four reporting principles listed in the ESG Reporting Guide:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, are used as the basis for

the preparation of the ESG Report.
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Materiality: The Group communicates with different stakeholders on a
regular basis and have conducted a stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment to better understand and identify the most material ESG-
related issues to the Group based on various stakeholders’ perspectives.
Meanwhile, the Group concerns ESG development outside and within the
industry, fulfilling local standards as well as incorporating it into the strategic

development plan of the Group.

Quantitative: Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules guides the Group to prepare
measurable KPIs to review performance. Quantitative information presented
in the ESG Report is accompanied by narrative, explanation, and comparison
analysis wherever applicable. The frequency of publication is once a year per

reporting period.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to compile the ESG
Report, unbiasedly disclose the environmental and social performance in the
2023 Reporting Period with the support of pictures, charts and presentation
formats whenever appropriate, to present objective and transparent

information and data for readers to make sound decisions and judgments.

Consistency: The Group adopts consistent methodologies and retrieves
environmental and social performance from the Group’s internal record
system. The ESG Report makes reference to Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs and Appendix 3: Reporting guidance on
Social KPIs to collect, calculate and present, to make meaningful comparisons

over the years.

Throughout the 2023 Reporting Period, the Group maintained the same
ESG management structure and process as the last reporting period
(from | January 2022 to 3| December 2022, "“2022" or "2022 Reporting
Period”). The Group fully understands that ESG policies and practices may
change over time to reflect the changes in business operations, structures,
technologies, laws and regulations, and the environment. The Group thus
continues to invest substantial resources to monitor ESG issues, policies and
practices and performance on an ongoing basis. In order to contribute to the
sustainable development on the environment and society, whilst maximizing
the benefits to our employees and the stakeholders, the Group has
continued to exercises due responsibility in maintaining the highest level of
ethical standards when conducting its business and upholds strict compliance

with all relevant laws, rules and regulations in all ESG matters.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY BEnE2ENEEMTME

ASSESSMENT

The Group recognises the importance of understanding stakeholders' needs ~ ANEEE RO RAEFMHEF KMBENEZ M - Bt -
and expectations. Stakeholders' opinions can help the Group identify and M EMNER TEDAEERN RIZELIEELHFE
prioritise material aspects, whereby many communication channels have been ~ KA * MAKE DRI ZEBBEBE T HEATREF

set up to regularly engage different stakeholders.

Communication Channels

nEBRE -

Major Stakeholders

BERE TEFME

Meetings Investors, Customers, Regulators, Suppliers, Directors, Management, and Employees
oE wEE TP EEHE  HEN =35 EEEREE

Reports Investors, Customers, and Regulators

W BEE  BPREERE

Announcements (circulars, memos, emails)
RECRE - BEE - BEFHM)
Company's website

RANNSIF S

Phone calls

=

Surveys
HE
Site visits
BIRE
Seminars

e

Company Events (annual dinners, volunteer service)

AREVEBGAEME - ZIRYG)

Investors, Suppliers, and Employees

REE  -HEBRMESR

Investors, Customers, Organisation, Regulators, Suppliers, Employees, and the Public
BEE  BF  MAE  EERE - HEDN  RERAR
Customers and Suppliers

EPRHER

Customers and Employees

EFLER

Customers, Regulators, and Suppliers

BF - BRERBRMHERS

Industrial Organisation

THRMAR

Directors, Management, and Employees

B EREREE

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Through regular communications with stakeholders and reviewing of the

information collected, the Group has identified the following ESG material

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RR -dHegRkE/ES

areas and aspects indicated in the following table:

T (HENEZE)

b

4
External Assessment (Impact on Stakeholders)

TEE

Immaterial

BEREFNENEREBERBHREFENER » &
SEDHR TIRE  HEREANERNERRLT

o RTRBPIR

B4@
B @ B2@
A3@
B3 @

o~ 0
B8

7@

B @

B @

Internal Assessment (Impact on Business)

WERFHE (WEBZE)

Subject Areas F E#ilE Subject Aspects FEEM
Environmental 3% Al. Emissions Al B
A2. Use of Resources A2 BIR{EH
A3. Environment and Natural Resources A3, IR M B AR E R
A4. Climate Change A4 RIRE L

Social &

Employment and Labour Practices fEfER&E TER BI.
B2.
B3.
B4.
BS.
Bé.
B7.
B8.

Operating Practices & E1& |

Community #&

Employment

Health and Safety
Development and Training
Labour Standards

Supply Chain Management
Product Responsibility
Anti-corruption

Community Investment

BI. EfE

B2 EERMZ %
B3. B& 25
B4. 4 T AR
BS. HEHE IR
B6. EmETE
B7. RES

B8. &

The table below summarizes the most important ESG issues expressed by

different stakeholders.

e -

TRELTRFNERENZEENRE - HERE
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Stakeholder Categories 3517 %85l Most Material Issues REEEKREE
Employee f& 8 . Labour Standards . BT 48|

. Corporate Governance and Risk Management EEREERER
Customer & C Water Management 0 FKERR

. Occupational Health and Safety 0 BEREMZ R
Supplier #FE R . Water Management 0 FXER

O Procurement and Supply Chain Management . SRS IE

The above ESG material areas and aspects have continued to be strictly
managed and monitored through the Group's established management

structure, process, policies and guidelines as described in this ESG Report.

THE GROUP’S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL AREAS AND
ASPECTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL AREAS AND ASPECTS

Sustainability is the pathway to success. Striving to achieve that goal,
the Group has set up an Environmental Management Committee
overseeing the Group’s environmental performance, formulating
environmental initiatives, and minimizing environmental risks. First and
foremost, the Group has complied with all environmental laws and
regulations and prohibited to the utmost of all relevant illegal and
violating activities and ensuring compliance with all relevant national
and local environmental laws and regulations including but not limited

to:

. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (‘:P%E/\E?E*ﬂiﬁ
iﬁ%%u /f)

. Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment (1 A
RAMBRBR EHEZE);

. Water Pollution and Control Law of the PRC (1 ZE A K AN
B R RE);

. Atmospheric Pollution and Control Law of the PRC (F#E AR
HIEKRRF? n%/u/jﬂ_)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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RESRRER

3l

AREEESBERYINER - AERBE -

REEBRIREEEEZES  LEEAEEDN

BREER - HEBREAELEREERBRLE

RE - HE ANEECHTHAREAZNE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Pollution
from Environmental Noise (% A REHMEIIRFRE )50
JAVE); and

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (FFZE A R 750 E[E 48
FEY S RBRIBNIEE).

No environmental non-compliance incident was resulting in fines or

prosecutions in the 2023 Reporting Period.

Additionally, the Group attaches great importance to mitigating
environmental threats and impacts caused directly or indirectly by
the business through vigilant assessment and monitoring. The Group
adheres to the ISO 14001 environmental management system
standard and accordingly set up an environmental management system.
Last but not least, the Group unceasingly advance its environmental
performance and work closely with relevant authorities in the wake of
tightening national environmental legislation and management towards

the manufacturing industry.

Al.  EMISSIONS

0] Greenhouse Gases (“GHG") Emission

Greenhouse gases (GHG) include carbon dioxide (“CO,")
and its non-hazardous equivalents including nitrous oxide
and methane (collectively with CO,, “CO,e"). The Group
has collected its GHG emission data since 2017. The
Group has established an emission reduction pathway
with a long-term perspective as a directional target.
The primary source of GHG emission of the Group is
from purchased electricity and secondarily from the fuel

consumption by company vehicles.

RRE -HEgRERKSE

« (PEARKMBRERRSEGE)
4
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E) e
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MRS BMNTE W ETHETE R
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The table below recorded and compared the 2023
Reporting Period and the 2022 Reporting Period’s

resultant GHG emissions:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR-HEgRER

TR

—=— —

—=

i g

W — T~ = FiREHE
FREPHZLBEREHE

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

GHG Emissions Mo () Unit 2023 2022 Changes

BEREHEREO By —E-=F —FT-—fF bk

Total GHG emissions (Scope | and 2) ™=@ CO,e tonnes 5,300 7,380 -28.18%

RERBAHENE(SE K2)5=2 W —S(LIRE 2

Scope | Note ) CO,e tonnes 171 205 -16.59%

#HE |0 —SfeiEE

Scope 2 Nete () CO,e tonnes 5,129 7,175 -28.52%

&2 —EftiREE

Intensity (Scope | and 2) per production COze tonnes/ 1,000 pieces

volume 0.26 0.27 -3.70%

SHEEFBOEE (BE I X2) S LHEE 71,0001

Note |:  Emission factors for calculations in this ESG Report Miatl - BREBEIEAN  KRF MG
were made reference to the "How to prepare an kEAMEPFENERET
ESG Report-Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on NB2EEAMERGMBRA
Environmental KPIs (version updated on 25 March Tbmﬁmfﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬂiﬂ k-
2022)" by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, E. AWE M= R RE@
unless otherwise specified. 1B BB IR IE RIE S| (EAf T_

_ifﬂ THEEH) -

Note 2:  Emission factors for purchased electricity sourced from Witz - BEEIMNHEMEFREH

FEIER S BIREREBHRREE EmzEmBEREREBHER
REE -

Note 3:  Scope | refers to direct emissions from vehicles that Wiat3 - WEIEKRE AN EERA EHL
the Group owns. HEP -

Note 4:  Scope 2 refers to indirect emissions resulting from the Wiit4 - BEVEAEERNEREBEES D

generation of purchased electricity consumed within
the Group.

During the 2023 Reporting Period, the decrease in Scope

| emissions was due to the reduction in daily operations.

Additionally, Scope 2 emissions decreased as a result of

an updated emission factor for electricity.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The Group targets to lower the total GHG emissions by
2-3% for the coming year by implementing various energy

use efficiency initiatives stated in Section A2(i).

Exhaust Gas Emission

Furthermore, volatile organic compounds (“VOCs")
release is another concern that captures the Group'’s and
the stakeholders’ attention. Manufacturing toys inevitably
uses paints and emits VOCs in specific contexts. VOCs
pose harm to human, and children and infants are
especially susceptible. In view of this, the Group has
deployed water-based paints and environmentally friendly
paints with low VOCs content. Furthermore, the Group
introduced Phase Il VOCs emission improvement. The
project installed a VOCs removal system with activated
carbon absorber to ensure VOCs released to the
atmosphere, which a registered testing agency verifies,
is well within the legal requirements. The system is also
connected to the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
the PRC for them to monitor emissions level. Corrective
actions will be timely made should any abnormality
occurs. Above all, the Group has also maintained
ventilation systems to effectively remove or dilute indoor
air pollutants to further enhance the air quality in the

premises.

(i)

AEENBERBBEMEEA2) N
My B EEIREAREEME - 8K
FHURERBBHENESEIR2-3% ©

RERHEN

sEoh - EEEF R AW (TVOCs])
R EE R FOE@EINS
H- - WNENAEEEEFERE
B W EE R T B S HER
VOCs e VOCs¥fABBBE MR E
REBRLE - AL - AEER
HAKBEZRARVOCsE 2EKH
RIRABR o Lo - REEBES AR
ZHIVOCSHEMMZIER - ZEE L
REEE R BRI VOCs B R &
o ARREIRE KR E B VOCs
HFeEmaMARKERENEZTE
Ko RERMEREZPBRRBERE
A BRI HE UK o NEE KB
HIAEEBRRDAIETS - &=
ENR  AKBENELEBAR
oA EMBERIMBEAEZRS
EMAE—TRARFIHZEREE -

o
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B HBREA

(i)

wE

Transportation is another emission area where the Group
also provides guidance to control air pollution. The table
below recorded and compared the 2023 Reporting
Period and the 2022 Reporting Period’s resultant air

pollutant emissions in Zhongshan:

EHES —EENES - AEETS
REESIEHZERSER - TREH
W = FRERE_T
ZEWERR LR ERS 2
W

Year ended 3| December

BE+-A=+—HILEE

Air Pollutants Unit 2023 2022 Changes

BRTRY By Bz ZF--fF )

Nitrogen Oxides (“NO_") Gram 607,459 595,104 +2.08%

AELH(TNO_]) %

Sulphur Oxides (*SO ") Gram 1,019 1,205 -15.44%

ek (5o, 1) 5

Particulate Matter (“PM") Gram 60,077 58,726 +2.30%
BOFRT(TPM]) 5

The Group has been reviewing and planning a gradual REE—HEERUREE TR

reduction of fossil fuels in order to reduce hazardous gas
emissions by encourages employees to use car-pooling
and public transits. For the coming year, the Group
targets to reduce air pollutant emissions especially those
hazardous SO, NO, and PM by 2-3%.

Waste Management

The Group understands its business consumes some
quantity of natural materials. The Group has established
a waste reduction pathway with a long-term perspective
as a directional target. As such, the Group carefully
plans raw materials inputs and end products output to
minimize waste generation, while ensuring reliable and

stable quality.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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The Group endeavours to reduce waste by implementing
different waste measures. One of the measures to
regulate waste disposal is the adoption of 3R (Reduce,
Reuse and Recycle) waste management principle in
operation. For instance, the Group recycles and reuses
plastics, wastepaper, and cardboards, replaces plastics
with biodegradable alternatives, sets duplex-printing as
default, carries out an Enterprise Resources Planning

system in the office.

In addition, the Group collects and properly handles
all hazardous waste in the National Hazardous Waste
List. They are stored in a designated container with
covers in a designated area to avoid leakage and misuse.
All hazardous waste such as organic solvent, compact
fluorescent lamp, batteries and exhausted cartridges
and toners are collected by the licensed contractors.
Waste in Hong Kong office was handled by the property

management and as a result, no relevant data was

AEBBNBBEBTRNERY
BRIBFEIE AR D BERY) - REER
YMERENEE 2 ——NEETRA
3ROBEE - ERMER)NEENE
BIRA - fln - AEE@ERER
B BERMAR - ERAEYR
BOBERARELEN  RECET
B RRREEREEERTEZR

425

ML °

gESN - AEEB R ZEREBER
BEBREMBBTNMAEEREER
Y BEROEEFERREELENE
ERET  UNERRRBNRR -
BEREEREEY(HIMAEKEH - —8
HENE - B - BROHBIIHR
WE) I RFRABEWE - BEMR
FRNBENMBHMFEEERRE A
it BE R SRR SR -

available.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Wastes Unit 2023 2022 Changes
Y B —EB-=f T F &=
Non-hazardous waste, such as wastepaper,  Tonnes

domestic waste 55 55 -
EEEEY(PINER - £EEREY) A
Intensity of non-hazardous waste per Tonnes/ 10,000 pieces

production volume 0.03 0.02 +50.00%
BEEMBNEEEEYTE 18, 10,0001
Hazardous waste, such as wasted oil, wasted Tonnes

solvent bottles 70 60 +16.67%
BEEZY(PINESRH - BEEAEM) W
Intensity of hazardous waste per production Tonnes/10,000 pieces

volume 0.04 0.02 +100%

BEENBNBERERNTE

g, 10,00014F

Compared to the 2022 Reporting Period, the slight
increase in the total amount of hazardous waste was due
to some portion of waste that was generated in 2022

but collected and handled in the 2023 Reporting Period.

BT - —FREHEL - BEE
EVHBEEHEN - LTBERHS
BEYR_Z__FELER_FT_
=FREMAMEREIR
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A2. USE OF RESOURCES
0} Energy Consumption

Energy is the critical component of the Group's
operation, and the Group has to acquire energy that
originates from fossil fuels, which is exhaustible and non-
renewable energy. The Group has thus established an
energy consumption reduction pathway with a long-term
perspective as a directional target. Because of that, the
Group makes its utmost to reduce energy consumption

by different energy measures.

. Established a resources management procedure to

regulate energy use;

. Turned off lighting, equipment and personal

computer during non-office hours;

. Switched off idling engines and air-conditioners

when not in use;

. Maintained air indoor room temperature at 24 to

26 Degree Celsius;
. Disseminated energy-saving message via emails;
. Replaced conventional lightings with LED;

. Purchased environmentally friendly equipment such

as electric Rotomolded PVC machines;

. Procured equipment for video conferencing to

reduce the need for business trips; and

. Adopted reusable energy such as solar water

heaters in the dormitory.

24 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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The table below recorded and compared the 2023 TREHWEH L — T = FmEHE
Reporting Period and the 2022 Reporting Period’s ZEC CFWEINSRKERER

resultant energy consumption:

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-AZ=+-HLEE

Energy Consumption 2023 2022 Changes
BEIROH3E —E-=F 2= )
— Electricity Consumption (kWh) 8,998,170 8,922,200 +0.85%
~&% HAE(FR)
Intensity (kWh/piece) 0.45 0.33 +36.36%
HBE(F R 1)
— Unleaded petrol Consumption (Litres) 15,810 30,000 -47.30%
— E 30 HEFECT)
Consumption (kWh) Nete ) 153,223 290,741 -47.30%
(TR0
Intensity (kWh/100 pieces) 0.77 1.08 -28.70%
BE(TRE 1008)
— Diesel Consumption (Litres) 48,856 47,450 +2.96%
— 5 HEFECT)
Consumption (kWh) Nete ) 522,918 507,869 +2.96%
THFE (T RLRF )
Intensity (kWh/100 pieces) 2.6l 1.88 +38.83%
BE(TRE 1008)
Total Consumption (kWh) 9,674,311 9,720,810 -0.48%
At HFE(T R
Note 5:  Energy conversion factors used for diesel, petrol and BizEs - SR - R R LPGRT A AL R %
LPG are based on the conversion factor mentioned in BAFDHERRE  HEKE
the ESG Reporting Guide. JATREIR SR AT AR E F o
During the 2023 Reporting Period, the decrease in the RZZ_=FHEH - | )TUHHE
consumption of unleaded petrol was attributed to the FRL  WWIIHRBEEERDH
reduction in daily operations. B e
For the coming year, the Group will continue to KE  REEBESHETEERE
encourage and monitor our employees on energy saving BINITENREHEIE - B IR EEIRE
practices, and target to lower the energy consumption by FEEFEIR2-3% o
2-3%.
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(i)

Water Consumption

The Group does not entail a massive amount of potable
water as it is not a water-intensive industry. Water stress
is a relatively less significant threat affecting the business.
The Group had no difficulty in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose. Nonetheless, the Group has established a
water consumption reduction pathway with a long-term
perspective as a directional target. In the 2023 Reporting

Period, the water consumption remained relatively stable.

(ii)

BKkE

HRANEE W IFEERKERRTT
¥ O EAUEERRERMAK - AK
BAOHEBEBEROBBREER) -
AREBREGKIR LY EBDR
B o A AEBEDBIURER
KBTI ABFHEKEE - R=F
T=FREBMRN - AKERFES

= o
SN

=St

Year ended 3|1 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

Water Consumption Unit 2023 2022 Changes
RS By —F-=F —T—-— B
— Zhongshan m? 223,409 230,113 291%
—H LK

— Intensity per production volume m?/pieces 0.0l 0.01 -
—-mE/EE SLTTR

The Group works diligently in implementing initiatives to
save water, including but not limited to placing reminders
near the water facilities to remind employees to conserve
water. The Group also operates a water treatment plant
and obtains a wastewater discharge license to treat
and discharge wastewater legally. The Group revamped
the wastewater treatment plant in 2018 to further
manage the increasingly stringent discharge caps set
out by the government. The Group also continues to
seek opportunities to use less water wherever feasible.
For example, condensers have been installed in each
workstation to collect steam from the injection moulding
department. The water-saving project by combining two
VOCs removal systems has been in operation in the

2021 Reporting Period.

For the coming year, the Group will continue to
encourage and monitor our employees on water saving
practices, and target to lower the energy consumption by
2-3%.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Paper and Packaging Materials and Other Raw Materials

Consumption

The Group also acknowledges that packaging can

consume lots of resources, and thus proactively

communicates with clients and suppliers to discuss any

potentials to minimise packaging in the product design.

(i)

AR BEM B R E MR EDE R

ARBNRABEAERAREA
B EEE B RES
R ARRESRH ERBRD
GER

Year ended 3| December

BE+-HA=+t—HLEE

Raw Materials Consumption Unit 2023 2022 Changes
R RUEFE B —E-=f T 8
— Paper boxes Tonnes 2.90 3.20 -9.38%
—H= 11

— Intensity per production volume Tonnes/ 100 pieces Insignificant (<0.0001 tonnes/I100 pieces) N/A
—RE/EE WE, 1001 FE K (<0.0001 W, 1004) TNE B
— Plastics packaging material Tonnes 2,600 2,800 -7.14%
— R e ETE WA

— Intensity per production volume Tonnes/ 100 pieces 0.0l 0.01 -
—-BE/EE Wa, 1001

— Others, such as fabric clippings Tonnes 112 112 -
—HAp (R E) U7

— Intensity per production volume Tonnes/ 100 pieces Insignificant (<0.001 tonnes/100 pieces) N/A
—BEEe WA, 1001 TEK(<0.001 B, 1004) TiEA
Total Tonnes 2,714.9 29152 -6.87%
wat M
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A3:

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group's business operations and activities do not create
significant environmental impact and hazards. As a responsible
corporation, the Group has implemented the environmental
protection policy and has complied with all national and
local environmental laws, rules and regulations, and industry
standards. The Group is committed to conserving resources
in order to reduce its impact on the environment as well as
saving operational costs. The Group cooperates with the local
government agencies and support environmental organizations’

activities to build a “green” society.

Environmental Awards

With the support of many environmental-friendly measures,
the Group proactively took part in the Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme, co-organised by the Environmental
Protection Department and the Economic and Information
Commission of Guangdong Province. The Group takes great
pride in being recognised as “Hong Kong — Guangdong
Cleaner Production Excellent Partners (Manufacturing)”. This
recognition affirmed our conscientious efforts on adopting
cleaner production technologies and practices with notable

achievements.

Awareness

Sustainability is now crucial to our daily life, our society and
even our future generation. The Group could protect the earth
by utilizing natural resources and slowing down resources’
depletion and ecosystem degradation. These all require efforts
across departments and organisations. Training sessions arranged
for employees are indispensable. An environmental consultant
is also employed to engage in monitoring and suggesting areas
for environmental improvement. The vegetarian and sustainable
seafood menu is also given to employees to choose from at
the canteen. There was no incident with significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources in the 2023 Reporting
Period.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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During the 2023 Reporting Period, freshwater, fossil fuels,
electricity and packaging materials for normal production
operation were the key elements which were considered
to have an impact on the environment. The Group has
continued to support all measures to reduce, reuse, recycle,
and replace as far as possible and practicable as laid down in
our environmental policy and measures. The Group did not
receive any warning or complaint notice from any governmental
environmental agencies, clients or business partners for the
violation of any environmental rules and regulations, the act
of polluting the environment or causing any environmental
troubles. For the coming year, the Group will continue to
achieve zero complaints and no pollution occurrences, and to
explore new avenues and means to accomplish our goals of

conserving natural resources and protecting the environment.

Climate Change

The Group has established contingent plans to deal with
extreme weather. In the event of adverse weather conditions
such as typhoon, rainstorm and heatwave, the Group would
rearrange manpower and take precautionary measures to
ensure staff safety, as well as making sure the staff can be better
protected when they commute. The Group would also refer to
the guidance of local authority and implement corresponding

measures to avoid any physical damage to property.

Greening is a part of the crucial components in building an
environmentally friendly working environment. It brings many
benefits such as serving as a buffer and sink for heavy rain,
mitigating urban heat island effect and eventually uplifting the
quality of living. Greening reserves around 30% coverage of the
Zhongshan factory, planting varies kind of vegetation and trees.
The Group also places small-sized plants to boost greening

further and improve air quality in the factory.

RRE -HEgRERKSE
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B.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

I.1

Social Areas Overview

The Group acts in an honest and transparent principle and
aims to support the building of a harmonious society and a
mutually beneficial relationship with our stakeholders including
employees, customers, suppliers, professional services providers,
local communities as well as the governing authorities. During
the formulation and implementation of our ESG strategies,
policies, rules and regulations, the Group incorporates our long
and short-term goals with consideration for our stakeholders
and society. The Group believes that our modest acts will

ultimately benefit the stakeholders and general society.

Employment and Labour Practices Aspects

Bl:  Employment

The Group recognizes that employees are the
cornerstone of business development. It motivates
the Group to build and maintain a harmonious, fair,
and safe working environment. More importantly,
the Group ceaselessly strives to enhancing our social
responsibility. The Group has established and kept an
updated employment policy based on the National
Labour Law. The Group has also been certified by ICTI
CARE Foundation, to demonstrate its commitment
to promoting safe and fair working conditions. During
the 2023 Reporting Period, there was no case of non-
compliance regarding compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, equal opportunities, diversity,

and discrimination.
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The Group adopts fair and equal employment and
recruitment procedure and prohibits any forms of
discrimination. Hence, candidates’ experiences, abilities
and the Group's business needs are criteria for shortlisting
candidates, regardless of race, gender, age, marital status,
pregnancy, family status, sexual orientation, religion,
and nationality. The remuneration package is regularly
reviewed. Successful candidates with proven track records

can enjoy promotion and salary increment.

In order to providing all newcomers with a fundamental
understanding of the Group, the Group mandates all
newcomers to attend an orientation training, covering (a)
Group's history; (b) employment terms and conditions,
welfares and benefits; and (c) adherence to the relevant
policies, systems, and procedures. All the policies are
available in the Staff Handbook for reference at any time.
The Group is a member of ICTI Ethical Toy Program
("IETP”). Therefore, the Group must also comply with
the relevant requirements set out in IETP's Code of

Business Practices.

Benefits and Welfares

The Group contributes to “Five social insurance and one
housing fund”, namely endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury
insurance, maternity insurance, and housing provident
fund, for the employees as required. Additionally, all
employees are entitled to various statutory holidays and
paid leave, including paternity leave and maternity leave.
Moreover, in recognition of employees’ hard work, the
Group will reward employees and benchmark employees’
salaries against industry norms to maintain a competitive
remuneration package to the talented. All employees
shall participate in the annual appraisal to review their

performance.
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Team Profile R
As of 3| December 2023, the Group employed 1,518 R-_E-_=#F#+—-_A=+—H ' &
employees in Zhongshan and Hong Kong, of which all are EBRRPFLEEAERBISISERE
full-time employees. 8 HAp2HA2BES -
1,200 [
1,035

1,000 [~

800

66|

600 [

400 [~

200 [~

0 |
Male 5% Female 22
B 2023 =% 00 ===F

Figure |: Number of Employees by Gender B - #IEFIZI5 8 1E B A B
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Figure 2: Number of Employees by Employment Type B2 - RIEFRE 2|56 ES A #
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Figure 4: Number of Employees by Age B4 : ZFHEIDIESAE
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Figure 5: Number of Employees by Geographical Region 185 : B e & 3|5 HE B AH
During the 2023 Reporting Period, the Group did not RZZB_=FHEHN - HEREE
have any incidents of non-compliance with relevant RS AEEEXNEATE - B
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on HWERBR  BEREMS - LEH
the Group relating to compensation and dismissal, HRERR FTEHE  Z
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, b~ RIAR BA Ko B 48 ) 89 A8 B =
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other ERBENTEREMH - NEEIE
benefits and welfare. The Group is confident to achieve BB REHTEGERKR

the same result for the coming year.

Employee turnover rate increased to approximately 40% RIZ-_=FHREPANEEREE
in the 2023 Reporting Period. The Group interviews EIMEL40% - AEBEGHESHE
every individual to understand their reasons to resign Tanek AT HEABBRRE - I5E
and regularly review the remuneration packages and the Hte et SN 8 S £ E B -

operation practices accordingly.
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Figure 8: Employment Turnover Rate by Geographical
Region

Occupational Health and Safety (“OHS")

The Group remains very focused to health and safety.
It is the Group's obligation to provide a safe working
environment. The Group has established a health and
safety committee, comprising the senior human resource
manager, administrative manager, safety manager,
representatives from the security and fire service
department, and a labour union. The committee’s duty is
to superintend the health and safety performance of the
Group and identify potential risks in which controls are
either absent, ineffective, or incompliant. The committee
also formulates policies to mitigate the risks if applicable.
Correspondingly, the Group regularly commissioned
third-party to audit OHS performance. In the 2023
Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance case with

regulations concerning occupational health and safety.
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Furthermore, risk assessment is conducted annually for all
working areas to identify high-risk position and potential
threats inside the working area. The Group offers
corresponding personal protective equipment. Regular
medical checks are provided to employees to ensure they
are free from any occupational illness. The Group also
schedules stress management courses for employees to
have good mental health. The Group adopts shift work
as well to reduce employees’ work stress and chemical
exposures. In addition, equipment’s contractors carry out
regular checks of the machines to test the functionality
to ensure employees are free from the threat of

equipment’s instability and malfunction.

Aside from “Five social insurance and one housing fund”,
the Group provides additional medical insurance for
extra protection. Better still, the Group has attained
the certification of OHSAS 800! to systemise the
occupational health and safety management in the
workplace. No work-related fatality happened in the past
three years including the 2023 Reporting Period, but
a total of 93 workdays were lost due to work-related
injuries in the 2023 Reporting Period (For 2022 Reporting
Period: 195 workdays). Yet the Group offered prompt
assistance to the injured or the affected. The Group'’s
health and safety committee launched investigations to
examine the root cause of accidents and implemented

corrective and preventive actions to avoid reoccurrence.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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B3:  Development and Training B3 EEKIEII
Toy industry evolves with time, and the Group MAXBEREEY  XEEBRARK
understands that we have to keep up to the changes IR BRI - PATH 35 B AL EK
to thrive in the market and sustain in the industry. RRETEAFEER - Bt - &
Consequently, each business unit together with the (¥BBEMERANERLTFRTE
human resources department stipulates a yearly training EEHIEHFRIGE  RERMEE
plan, covering technical and management topics to all ERDLEZERE - ARETTAE
employees. The Group also sponsors employees to BRHEED IR REL2HEINEE
attend external training to acquire the latest knowledge in FICAERR T35 E ST A H o R
the market. In the 2023 Reporting Period, all employees T_—FREHAN - HEREEHZ
took part in different training and average training hours ARSI - BB 8T8
of employees were approximately 32 hours. K)B32NE o
Internal External
Training (No. of employees) EZI(EE AED) Pk HNER
Percentage of employees trained ZIEEED L
2023 —E-= 49.41% 49.41%
2022 —F== 99.41% -
% of employees trained by gender BRERES ZIEETED L
Male B
2023 === 36.67% 36.67%
2022 ZEF 38.85% -
Female z
2023 === 63.33% 63.33%
2022 T 61.15% -
% of employees trained by operational role REERNESZIEET L
Senior management SREBEAS
2023 —EC-=F 0.40% 0.40%
2022 —=- 0.53% -
Middle and Junior management HERAOREEAE
2023 —EC-=F 1.67% 1.67%
2022 —=- 1.60% -
Supervisor F1F
2023 —EC-=F 2.00% 2.00%
2022 —=_ 1.78% -
General staff —RET
2023 —EC-=F 95.93% 95.93%
2022 = ——— 96.09% -
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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RE -#HEBRERERS

Internal External
Average Training (Hours) Fig 5B () A B HER
Total employee trained FHESAH
2023 —EBC-=F 15.81 15.81
2022 —E-fF 31.87 -
Average training hours completed per RUERBINEBREERTRN
employee by gender TG HE IR
Male B
2023 —EBC-=F 26.86 26.86
2022 T F 31.75 -
Female feg 3
2023 —B-=F 9.24 9.24
2022 T F 31.95 -
Average training hours completed per REEBNVESNEEREERTK
employee by operational role W95 I R B
Senior management BREBEAS
2023 —EC-=F 6.40 6.40
2022 S 9.40 -
Middle and Junior management HERAOREEAE
2023 —EBC-=F 14.29 14.29
2022 —F-— 23.70 -
Supervisor F1E
2023 —B-=F 14.12 14.12
2022 —E-F 48.00 -
General staff —RET
2023 —EB-=F 16.00 16.00
2022 o4& 3191 -

Others Efth, 8%

Softskill XL BE 8%

Information security
BARE 8%

Technical knowledge

RNz 21%
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The Group deems the new generation a pillar of
society and has established an internship programme.
Sophisticated and experienced seniors train up fresh
graduates so that they can be well-prepared to bring

innovation and creativity to the Group.

Labor Standards

The Group strongly believes children shall enjoy a
pleasant childhood. No child is allowed to work in the
Group. The Group performs identity checks in the
recruitment process to ensure the regulatory working
age is compliant. The Group also totally believes in the
importance of work-life balance as it links to productivity
and well-being. The Group neither encourages nor forces
employees to work overtime. Furthermore, all illegal
means such as retention of identity cards or passports,
intimidation, coercion, and undue pressure are strictly

prohibited.

Employees are entitled to statutory leave and various
kinds of paid leave, which help them take sufficient rest.
The Group is always meticulous about the production
schedule to avoid overtime work. The Group reviews
workflow carefully in the event of a significant amount of
overtime work needed. The Group will seek assistance

from relevant institutions if necessary.

Furthermore, the Group also highly appreciates
employees to participate in leisure and social activities
such as the Chinese New Year event to share warmth
and happiness among colleagues. Labour union has
been formed, and all employees preserve the right to
speak. Other than the benefits and welfares above, the
Group arranges monthly meetings with the labour union

representatives to understand employees’ points of view.

In the 2023 Reporting Period, same as the 2022
Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child
and forced labour, and as such no rectification was

required.
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Supply Chain Management

The business depends heavily on suppliers’ cooperation.
Building trust and reliability is a golden rule to build up
a long-term relationship with them. As of 31 December
2023, same as the 2022 Reporting Period, the registered
suppliers of the Group consisted of 210 suppliers from
the PRC, 47 suppliers from Hong Kong, and 2 suppliers

from other countries.

Before signing a contract, the Group conducts an
assessment and sample testing to assess suppliers’ quality
standards, and achievements in environmental protection
and corporate social responsibility. The price is not the
only selection consideration, equipment level, productivity
and reputation are also taken into account. The Group
also attentively concerns a safe working environment
and an ethical business culture in the selection process.
Moreover, samples testing must pass through quality

check requirement for contract approval.

Other than that, the Group carries out an annual
assessment to review suppliers’ services quality, on-time
delivery ability, fulfilment of the tender requirements
and alignment with the Group's policies. In the 2023
Reporting Period, the Group assessed leading suppliers
and they all passed. The suppliers who are unable to
meet the requirements will be removed from the supplier

list if applicable.

The Group keeps close contact with the suppliers to
ensure the shipping date, logistics status and supplies can
match our production and delivery schedule. The Group
closely monitors the updates on local, regional, and even
international cross-border regulations from time to time

to reallocate resources at the earliest.
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C-TPAT Security Policy

The Group complies with the Customs-Trade Partnership
Against Terrorism (“C-TPAT"). In order to enjoy the
entitled benefits in return, the Group, suppliers, and
contractors are working closely to implement, as required
by C-TPAT, physical security measures, access control,
security assurance in procedures, and offering education
and training. A supply chain guarantee of C-TPAT
Security Policy is ready for suppliers and contractors.
Due to the importance of such policies and laws, the
employees responsible for import and export shall attend
training related to the relevant ordinance and regulations

at least twice a year.

Green Procurement

To uphold the responsibility to disseminate sustainability
to suppliers, the Group always strives to exploring
alternatives to use less packaging materials and fewer
plastics as much as feasible. The Group also states
specifically on tender documents to encourage suppliers
to adopt products with eco-labels or environmentally
friendly products. In the selection process, priority is given
to those awarded with an ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System certificate and an I1SO 9001 Quality
Management System certificate. Local suppliers are
also preferred to limit the environmental impact from

transportation.
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Product Responsibilities

The Group has been awarded with a certificate of the
IETP, indicating that the Group adheres to the ICTI Code
of Business Practices, aligning the Group's practices with
international norms in the global toy industry supply

chain.
Quality Assurance

The impacts to children from harmful and unsafe toys
can be persistent and untreatable. As a result, the Group
has established a product monitoring and inspection
procedure to standardise the quality check. In practice,
the Group attains certification of ISO 9001 Quality
Management System. This ISO standard also guides
the Group to implement a quality management system
to systematically control product quality. Although the
Group is a toy trader, it also carries out inspections and
random checks to review the quality of toys. It assures
toys strictly follow local and international safety and
advisory requirements such as CE marking, Consumer
Product Safety Commission, STM F963-Standard
Consumer Safety Specification for Toy Safety. The Group
is verified by a third-party to ensure their supply chain
security aligns with international supply-chain security

standards.

In addition, the Group has designed a clear and precise
label to identify toys and separate defective products. The
instruction manual is attached with the product to guide
consumers to properly use products. Safety alert labels
are placed at the package’s surface or containers to alert
consumers to keep toys properly, avoiding children from
mistakenly swallowing or inhaling the tiny parts that may
results in suffocation. No reported incident in product

responsibility happened in the 2023 Reporting Period.
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Given the significance of the toys' quality assurance, the
Group pays additional attention to raw materials. All
materials used in the products are entirely compliant with
the Restriction of Hazardous Substances. Providing testing
reports and certificates to prove the products’ quality and
harmlessness is a must-do item for our suppliers. The
Group randomly tests product samples, and a third-party
testing laboratory carries out inspections before mass
production. The Group operates a laboratory, which is
certified by the China National Accreditation Service, to
examine the products randomly. All validating report are
well-documented. In case of any fail reports of the toys,
the Group will immediately cease the delivery process
and recall them. Meanwhile, the Group remains active in
communicating with customers regarding the products’

quality, specifications, and testing results.

The Group exported more than 20 million products
yearly. The quality management department records
each complaint and notifies relevant departments for
investigation and coming up with improvements and

suggestions for the problem if any.

Thanks to the awareness of an extraordinarily high
product quality standard, the Group is pleased to
announce that there was no product recall or return
regarding health and safety issues or material complaint
during the Reporting Period. The Group is proud that
there has been no material complaint or claim on its
products quality and its products have not been subject
to any investigation by government authorities on quality
or safety as well. For the coming year, the Group has the
confidence to maintain the same good track record with

its sound management control.
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Based on a customer satisfaction survey to significant
customers, covering seven aspects: productivity, samples
delivery, quality management and product quality, the
results revealed that customers were satisfied with
the Groups' productivity, and they also advised an
improvement on samples on-time delivery. Clients’
feedback is the Group's motivations to perform better,
so the Group promptly recruited more inspectors to
conduct quality checks to speed up the processing time

and keep product quality stable.

Data Privacy

The Group respects the privacy and intellectual property
rights. The Group collects data in a lawful way and solely
for recruitment or the stated purposes. The storage and
transmission of personal data must be encrypted and with
up-to-date antivirus protection to prevent data leakage
that harms clients, suppliers, individuals, or other parties
that have trusted the Group with their information.
Likewise, the data shall only be retained for a designated
period and for specified purposes. A guideline and
procedure have been established to guide every one of
the Group to properly handle personal data. The data
can be updated and corrected by the data holders at any
times in writing upon request. The Group must provide
information on how they use clients’ information in the
past 12 months upon request. Only a handful of well-
trained employees have the access right to the sensitive

data.

Under no circumstance will the Group disclose personal
data and confidential information to third parties or to

the public without clients” consent.

During the 2023 Reporting Period, same as the 2022
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any incidents
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
advertising, labelling and privacy matters. The Group also

targets the same result for the coming years ahead.
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Intellectual Property Right

The Group only sell and trades products that are
properly licensed. The Group also abides by the
copyright and patent laws of the United States as well as
other countries. The Group endeavours to communicate
with its business partners about intellectual property
rights protection and also acknowledges that laws and

regulations can protect the Group's right.

For the 2023 Reporting Period, same as the 2022
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any of any
infringement of its or any other intellectual property
rights including which had or could have a material
adverse effect on our business, and there were no legal
proceedings against the Group. The Group will continue
to maintain similar results on intellectual property rights

in the coming years ahead.

Anti-corruption

Integrity gives great importance to brand image and
performance. Rigidly laws and compliances bound the
Group on anti-corruption. The Group must obey national
and regional laws and regulations in business operation.
The code of conduct is well-defined and outlines the area
of corruption risk and procedures to handle advantages.
The Group’s attitude against corruption is stated clearly
to all employees. Any form of bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering is forbidden. An internal control
system has been established to review the operation
flow and assure operation consistency. Employees can
remain anonymous to report any suspected cases to the
Group. The Group will not condone any unlawful acts or

corruption.

B7:

TR EEE

AEEREEREEEMFAMNE
fh oo ARE T ETRE N REAME
REORERFRL - AREROH
MEMERREREXBRHER
VAR 15 45 0 R 4R 8 AN SR (B A A
EEER ©

RZZEZ=FHEH  WE-ZF=
“TERER AEEHECAR
30 E 7R B S A ] E AN E AT
B BEBER AR MM ER
EEXEBERTFEENTE - FELH
HAEBRERZFD - RF - KE
V5 45 A 8 A AN A E P 7 VR B AR ALK
% °

RES

HERERETRRERMEERE
2o AEEHEETERRETHNE
BER AEBESARERELESD
BTEREMEERRER - TRT
RIBRRESI H B E e #8615 B g 18
MEWIERF - AEBHEISHEE
EMERBETEREE - AEER
EEAEANRE  BR  FHEK
WRE o RN AR AR HI
B s g EREREREE—
Bt - BETUERAAEEER
EAMEUER  ~EBEEITE2RR
EEIBETREEISTTR °

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—ROCZEER

49



50

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HBREA

B8:

wE

Refresher training was regularly scheduled, especially
for those post-holders with a high corruption risk. The
directors and employees had, on average, two (2) training
hour on anti-corruption topic in the 2023 Reporting
Period. Anti-corruption training material will also be
delivered to all employees and directors. Same as the
2022 Reporting Period, there was no alleged case of
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering in the
2023 Reporting Period.

Community Involvement

Business development closely connects with the
community, and it is the social responsibility of the
Group to utilise our power to assist the needy in society.
In the 2023 Reporting Period, the Group focused on
labour need and sponsored RMB5,000 in cash and food
groceries to those in financial need. Employees and their
families are welcome to participate in voluntary activities.
The Group will continue to work diligently with the

community with charities, employees, and their families.
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Biographical Details of Directors

The biographies of Directors as of 28 March 2024 are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Qinghui (“Mr. Jiang”), Chairman of the Company and Chairman of

the Nomination Committee

Aged 49, joined the Company as an Executive Director and was appointed
as the Chairman of the Company on 25 April 2023 and 23 June 2023

respectively. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

He has 25 years of investment and senior management experience in large-
scale chain restaurants and commercial properties. Since 2017, he has
served as a deputy to the People’s Congress of Shulan City, Jilin Province.
He is currently the vice president of Beijing Jilin Enterprise Chamber of
Commerce and the chairman of Beijing Shulan Enterprise Chamber of
Commerce. During 2023, Mr. Jiang, through a company wholly-owned by
him, acquired the convertible bonds issued by the Company in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$14,000,000, which are convertible into a total of
63,636,363 conversion shares based on the initial conversion price and all
the convertible bonds has converted into shares on 31 May 2023.

Mr. Weng Zudian (“Mr. Weng”), Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 44, joined the Company as an Executive Director and was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 29 June 2023. He is also

a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

He has over 20 years of multi-national experience in banking and corporate
finance sectors. From 2011 to 2018, he has worked as the manager for
the Bank of China Tokyo Branch. He is currently involved in enterprise
consultancy services for strategic, corporate structure restructuring, corporate
mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Weng obtained a Bachelor of Fine Arts from
Osaka University of Arts (“ABREZTAE") in 2008.

EESEE

BE_ZT-_WF=ZA-+N\HHNEEEFNOT :
HITES

BEBELE(ELELE]D
J&

.
RNEIEERIEEZESFE

9K RTE-=ZFEMNA-_+HEMARQB LT
TEE WR_E-=FNA-+=REZFEAEXA
BEfE - WMARARZEMNBARNES -

BB FAREHER  AENESTERERS
LERLR —T—tFRESETEMETFETA
ARE - BELREMEES SIS REIERGTHE
(meek NIT-=F BErE@Ep MHER
BB KA TIWEBAR R T EITAR S 8584140000008
TRIBRRES - ROBRRAREETE @ T#RAS
63636363030 MAK S - BRTEATBRBREFER S
Z=FRA=+—BEBRAERG -

SHEHBRE(HRE]) HFHZE2HE

44 RZBZ=FRNA-TABMARR G HEHR
TEE  UYRZER/RRBITHRER - BHIFR/ARF
ZHEMBARNES -

RERITREEMERAERB0FERLR

——FE_FT- \FEPERITREDITLE - ?&’E
AR  PELABEE  CEMHBICEZIR
%o HEER T NFEBAREMAZRMBE
+ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

—ECCFER

51



52

Biographical Details of Directors
EEEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Shaopeng (“Mr. Lin”)

Aged 65, joined the Company as a consultant in December 2014 and a
Non-executive Director on 18 December 2017. He has been providing
advisory services to the Group’s toys operation since December 2014. He is
also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin has extensive

experience in factory and logistics management in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (“Mr. Kwok”), Member of the Audit Committee

and the Nomination Committee

Aged 52, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 7 March 2019. Mr. Kwok holds a Master of Professional Accounting
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master of Corporate
Governance degree from Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly
known as the Open University of Hong Kong) and a Honours Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan College). Mr. Kwok is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of each of The Hong Kong

Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr. Kwok has over 28 years of experience in the field of accounting and
financial management. Mr. Kwok served as an independent non-executive
director of E&P Global Holdings Limited (formerly known as Siberian Mining
Group Company Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1142), since February 2014 and resigned on 28 September 2022.
He has been an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Rui Yuan
Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited, a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8249), since June 2012. Prior to his
current positions, Mr. Kwok served as a financial controller, the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of Forebase International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2310).
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Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (“Mr. Chan”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and the

Remuneration Committee and member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 57, joined the Company as an Independent Non-Executive Director
on 23 June 2023. He obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of Manchester in 2003. Mr. Chan
has been a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants since 2003.

In the past 20 years, Mr. Chan has been the finance director, financial
controller and company secretary of several companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle Nice
(International) Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2368) since November
2002 and an independent non-executive director of EPS Creative Health
Technology Group Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3860) since July 2021 respectively.

He is currently also the company secretary of Pine Technology Holdings
Limited (“Pine Technology”), the issued shares of which are listed on the
1079) since July 2017 and
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8176) since May 2022

respectively.

Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:

He was previously an executive director of Pine Technology from June
2017 to May 2022 and Wai Chun Bio-Technology Limited (“Wai Chun Bio-
Technology"), the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 660), from July 2022 to March 2023.

He was previously also an independent non-executive director of Wai Chun
Bio-Technology from November 2020 to July 2022 and an independent non-
executive director of Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited, the issued shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1013) from March 2022 to July 2022.
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Mr. Zhao Yong (“Mr. Zhao”), Member of the Audit Committee and the

Remuneration Committee

Aged 40, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 10 September 2021. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor's degree in law from
Zhejiang University in July 2006 and a master agree in law (American Legal
Studies) from Thomas Jefferson School of Law in December 2009. Mr. Zhao
is qualified to practice law in the PRC and has been working at DeHeng Law

Offices (Hangzhou) as an attorney at law since April 2018.
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company and an indication of
likely future development in the Company's business, can be found in the
Chairman's Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this

Report of the Directors.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 82.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on pages 223 to 224.
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
and details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 3| to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 981
of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, amounted to HK$nil (2022:
HK$nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-
laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately HK$515 million of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately
98.4%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately HK$ 1154 million of the total purchases for the year and

purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 52.3%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Qinghui (appointed on 25 April 2023)
Mr. Weng Zudian (appointed on 29 June 2023)
Mr. Zhao Deyong (resigned on 16 June 2023)

Dr. Liao Wenjian (resigned on 28 December 2023)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Lin Shaopeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (appointed on 23 June 2023)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Mr. Zhao Yong

Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on 16 June 2023)

In accordance with Article 85 of the Company’s memorandum of association,
Lin Shaopeng, Kwok Kim Hung Eddie and Zhao Yong shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no updated information of directors of the Company required to

be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(l) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ and the chief executive's remuneration are set out

in note || to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and other officers of the Company

during the year.

DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed "MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS” disclosure in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or the controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of each of the directors or the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

None of the directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed "DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” at no time during the year ended 31 December 2023
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such

rights during the year.
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Report of the Directors
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS #HRERSFRHEKHAETHECRREZRAA
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2023, the following interests of more than 5% of RIB-_=ZF+_A=+—H BEARRBREEHER
the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of ~HAEI&FIEI36IKBTFE 2 B ERMATREE - FHAX
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of ARIEEITARAS%I A R 2 ALAT ¢

the SFO:

Long positions in the shares of the Company RAEQXT RO ZHR

Approximate

percentage of the

Company'’s issued

Capacity and Personal Corporate Number of share capital

Name of shareholder nature of interest interest interest shares held (Note 5)

LERANE

EEITRAE

BERG BHABEDL

RERERB B RERMEE B AR REER #H (B &ES5)

Richsun Investment Development Limited Interest of controlled — 80,000,000 80,000,000 15.69%
corporation (Note 1)

Richsun Investment Development Limited REEHERE 2 s - 80,000,000 80,000,000 15.69%
(BEEED)

Mr. Wang Honggang (“Mr. Wang") Interest of controlled - 80,000,000 80,000,000 15.69%
corporation (Note 1)

FHMEETEERED RREHERE 2 B — 80,000,000 80,000,000 15.69%
(P51

CSC Holdings Limited (formerly known as “China Interest of controlled - 65,199,547 65,199,547 12.79%
Strategic Holdings Limited”) (“CSC") corporation (Note 2, 6)

PREAZERBERAG(AIBHPREEERY NEEEVER 2R —~ 65199547 65,199,547 12.79%
aHEER]D (f7E2 ~ 6)

U Credit (HK) Limited Interest of controlled — 65,199,547 65,199,547 12.79%
corporation (Note 2, 6)

BEE(FB)ERAR REEGER 2 — 65199547 65,199,547 12.79%
(MizE2 - 6)

Hong Kong Huiheng Trading and Investment Co., Interest of controlled - 63,636,363 63,636,363 12.48%
Limited corporation (Note 3)

BEREBEESREBRAA REEHEE 2 B — 63,636,363 63,636,363 12.48%
(PfF5E3)

Mr. Jiang Qinghui (“Mr. Jiang™) Interest of controlled - 63,636,363 63,636,363 12.48%
corporation (Note 3)

EEE(EEED REEGNER 2 — 63636363 63,636,363 12.48%
(BF3E3)

Mr. Ji Xiang (“Mr. Ji") Interest of controlled - 49,697,600 49,697,600 9.75%
corporation (Note 4, 6)

HEERE(EEED REEHEE 2 — 49,697,600 49,697,600 9.75%
(MizE4 - 6)

Mr. Shen Jia (“Mr. Shen") Beneficial owner 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 7.85%
(Note 6)

AR EE D) EmEA A 40,000,000 —~ 40,000,000 7.85%
(PH3E6)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Notes:

80,000,000 shares were held by Richsun Investment Development Limited,
which was owned as to 100% by Mr. Wang. Accordingly, Mr. Wang was
deemed to be interested in 80,000,000 shares of the Company under the SFO.

CSC had an indirect interest in the Company through its 100% indirect
ownership in U Credit (HK) Limited, which had security interest in 651,995,472
shares of the Company. U Credit (HK) Limited had enforced the security
interest in 651,995,472 shares on 4 July 2019.

63,636,363 shares were held by Hong Kong Huiheng Trading and Investment
Co., Limited, which was owned as to 100% by Mr. Jiang. Accordingly, Mr. Jiang
was deemed to be interested in 63,636,363 shares of the Company under the
SFO.

496,976,000 shares were held by Excel Jade Limited, which was owned as to
100% by Mr. Ji. Accordingly, Mr. Ji was deemed to be interested in 496,976,000
shares of the Company under the SFO.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 509,822,834 shares
of the Company in issue as at 3| December 2023.

On 28 November 2022, the Company completed a share consolidation of
every ten (10) issued shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the
Company into one (l) consolidated share of HK$1.00 each with effect from
30 November 2022. The effect of the number of shares will be divided by 10
issued shares and no effect on the percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of other

relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as at 3|1 December 2023 as required pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
EEEHS

80,000,000 % i 15 E3 Richsun Investment Development

Limited$$ 8 + ZARIBHTLEI00%5FE - Bt « BRI
BHEREABBKRY - F AR AR AR E 280,000,000

MRy R A R

FRERNEBNREBEE(ER)BRAEZ100%MHEE

BERRARRAFAREREZ  ZARBAEALRAR

651,995 472 RN K E R = - BEE(FH)ERAR]

%:T NEE A A BHIETT651,9954728AX 15 KI4K
o

63,636363RBH B BEBEHEEHREGRABIEFE -
ZARIHEEEI00%FH - At - RIEFHFLHAEK
B - BAREWRBRART 2636363638 M FHE
*g/\c

496,976,000/% f% 1) FHExcel Jade Limited$A * Z A "MA
HEEI00%5E © Bt - *Ei?‘)f?m%&ﬁ,ﬂ‘ﬂbm ' %?96
IR R ANA R 2 496,976 00008 B {7 A i w o

BERES ttmE%FEAfo*EwL A=+—BZAR
A)509,822,8348 B 1T (DETE

RZZE——F+—A=+N\B  ARAEKE (10K
RNRBIBEHTRATSREBEI0BTZEEITRHA
HASREE 0BT —(NRE HHIRMD ZBRMDE 6 -

B-T_—_F+—A=+HEBEH - RHEUE Eﬁ%@%

AR OB B BITIRG - HARFEETRANE D
WmE Y -
BREXAEEEN R-_F-_=F+-A=+—H
AR RN E ARIRE S K R IRGISE 3361 A T )
B2 ARAIRN RARRR D 2 AR AR SUA R o
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

—ECCFER

61



62
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares at the date of

the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with laws and
regulations and any non-compliance may bring significant impact on the
Group’s operations. The Group's products are exported globally and the
major markets include the USA, the European union, Japan and the PRC.
The Group complied with those importing requirements, including product
safety and material selections, imposed by these importing countries.
Compliance with the PRC regulations are also essential to the Group
manufacturing operations in the PRC. The Group is continuously monitoring

the evolving regulations and ensure its compliance.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and long-
term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2023, there were
no material and significant dispute between the Group and its employees,

customers and suppliers.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 1,513 employees (2022:
[,696) with staff costs amounted to approximately HK$106.1 million (2022:
approximately HK$126.8 million). Remuneration policies are reviewed
annually by the management of the Company. The Group's remuneration
policy is structured to consider comparable position in the market and the

prevailing business scale of the Group.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Referring to the Company’s announcement on 2 January 2024 and |5 January
2024, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 101,964,566 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each for cash at the net issue price of approximately
HK$0.066 per new share under the general mandate on |5 January 2024.
Up to the date of the announcement, the issuance of convertible bonds has
not been completed. Save as above, subsequent to 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any significant event

affecting the Group and requiring disclosure.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group encourages environmental protection and is committed to fulfil
its environmental, social and corporate responsibilities. Various investments
in optimizing energy use and paper use were made and will be made.
Measures were made to prevent or minimize pollutions and provide a safe
and healthy working environment. The Group continues to review the latest
technology and the best practices in the industry for adoption to address the

environmental, social and corporate responsibilities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2021
were audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 3| December 2022 and 2023 were audited
by Confucius International CPA Limited.

A resolution to re-appoint Confucius International CPA Limited as auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Jiang Qinghui

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERKRSE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders

and to enhance the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
had complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made with
the Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with the Own Code
and the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management and control of the Group’s business are vested in
the Board. The Board is responsible for establishing policies, strategies and
plans, providing leadership in creating value and overseeing the Group's

financial performance on behalf of shareholders of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial

and operational matters.
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Corporate Governance Report

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group
are delegated to the executive director and senior management of the
Company. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the executive
director and senior management of the Company have to obtain Board

approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six Directors,
including two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Qinghui (Chairman) and
Mr. Weng Zudian; one Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Shaopeng;
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheuk
Ho, Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie and Mr. Zhao Yong. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules. Biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section headed "BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” on pages 5|
to 54 of this annual report.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
to each newly appointed director on his/her first appointment in order
to enable him/her to have appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical updates,
including the briefing on the amendments on the Listing Rules and the news
release published by the Stock Exchange to the directors. Continuing briefing

and professional development for directors are arranged where necessary.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, thirty nine regular full Board
meetings and two general meeting were held and the attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

RBZE-T-=F+-_A=+-HALEERN L8]
SHARERRESLRERMABRASG  ME

REEZHFELENT

Number of attendance

HIERE
Board Meetings General Meetings
Name of directors EEHE Ex=gex3 BRERE
Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. Jiang Qinghui (appointed on 25 April 2023)  BERBEE (R T -=F/A 8/8 11
Z+AAEZEF)
Mr. Weng Zudian (appointed on 29 June 2023) SHEMEE(RZFE==F~H 4/4 0/0
A NBEZE)
Mr. Zhao Deyong (resigned on 6 June 2023) HEKAERZEZ=F~H 10/10 I/1
1N B EHE)
Dr. Liao Wenjian (resigned on 28 December 2023) BEXH|IBT(R-_FE=-=F+—H 14/14 0/1
—+/\HEHE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lin Shaopeng MAME S A 16/16 /1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (appointed on 23 June 2023) BREREHE(R=ZF=Z=F~H
ZFt=HAEZF) 5/5 0/0
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie R A4 16/16 /1
Mr. Ng Wai Hung (resigned on |6 June 2023) REEFAERZFEZ=F~ A
TNABHE) 10/10 /1
Mr. Zhao Yong HEBELE 16/16 /1

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

There are two key aspects of the management of the Company — the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business. The Company supports that there should be a clear division of
these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one individual. Currently,
Mr. Jiang Qinghui, the Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director of
the Company, takes up the responsibility of the management of the Board.
Mr. Weng Zudian, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director is appointed for a term of twelve-month period which automatically
renews for successive twelve-month periods unless terminated by either
party in writing prior to the expiry of the term. The Non-executive
Directors and all the Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three years
at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference as set
out in the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Zhao Yong. Mr.

Chan Cheuk Ho is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company's remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The full terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s

website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. Pursuant to the
amendments to Chapter |7 of the Listing Rules which will come into effect
on | January 2023, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

were adopted, amended and approved by the Board on 30 December 2022.
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The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year ended 31 RBEZT_=F+_A=+—HILEFER  HFMHZ
December 2023 to review the remuneration packages for directors. The BEERRT2ReH  ESLBRIEEZHMFE -
attendance of each member is set out as follows: BERBZ MFERERNT

Number of attendance
Name of member MEAR R
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho REZETE 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie DRI A 2/2
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RE®EE 0/1
Mr. Zhao Yong HEEA 2/3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RBREZES
The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of reference as set 1EREEB @RI XE 5 TAIFE ST EmB#Z

out in the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho
and Mr. Jiang Qinghui. Mr. Jiang Qinghui is the Chairman of the Nomination

Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of directors, evaluation of board
composition, assessment of the independence of independent non-executive
directors and the management of the Board succession. The full terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on Company's website

and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Nomination Committee met two times during the year ended 31
December 2023 to review the appointment of the directors, the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The attendance of each member is set

out as follows:

TRELA®E

REE_ZT_=F+-_A=+T—BLELFER  REZ
BEECRTMASH  EeLRIZEESE EF9
ZHE - ABRER - BB ZHFEREMT

2

Number of attendance

Name of member RERTE R E
Mr. Jiang Qinghui BEEAA /1
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PREZSTA /1
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRI A 33
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RE®EE o/l
Mr. Zhao Yong FEE S 2/2

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in September
2013 and amended by resolutions of the Board passed on 2| October
2019 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All
Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Policy
and will from time to time review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference as set out in
the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok
Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Zhao Yong. Mr. Chan Cheuk
Ho is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditor before submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and
the terms of appointment of the external auditor and making the relevant
recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system. The Audit
Committee is also delegated the corporate governance function of the Board
to monitor, procure and manage corporate governance compliance within
the Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

EXgCR T =FNLARMETEXNEZTLR
RIZBR]DMZBEREBRBE-_T-AF+A=-+—
RBRZEFTRRBEMER]  ETHINEETGRE
HEKEZ MKz Hét - EEFREZEEY
MAART SRA - Y EZEAEBATROBRES
EXREZTbz @S ABUEER - BUE NEFIZ— X
FZ e Sl RERE  BRETRIIER - Fi - X
EERBEES Bk - FELR - KL MEERS
T8 - REBRAEBNRELRI/ETSEREZER
MERTE - REZBEHERZBRONT - LD
R E S RHRIR A XK - ARERZBRITZBR -

BEREEE

EZZBEGQERUGXEATAIMA B EE@E
cRARESAHY - EREZBEERE=RWUIFNT
EEHRMELE REXEERBERE - RERST
EREVERBEZER -

ERZEG I EREAEHAEENMBER LR
& WHAKENS R BEEE RSN EE N 2
ERNEASEFHAERNESRREANELZE &
AT ESNE BN C AR ARG NEESRM
HERER RRAAKEZMBEREHE - AR
HEREBREREGE BRZESNTCERTESS
ZEEERBRE  UEE REREEAEEANZG
XERAMREE - BRZESREGKEZ2XTER
ARB B P8 L -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—RO=EER

69



70

Corporate Governance Report
TRERKRSE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 3| December

2023 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

E=F+ZRA=+—HIEFERN  EEZ
THRE® - BB ZHFELENT

Number of attendance

Name of member REER HERE
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PRE S /1
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie R A 212
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RIEEWHESE /1
Mr. Zhao Yong FEEB S 2/2

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee

during the year ended 31 December 2023:

Reviewed and approved the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the Company's auditor; and reviewed and made recommendations

to the Board on the appointment of the Company’s auditor;

2. reviewed and discussed the Group’s management accounts; and

3. adoption of internal control review report in order to assess the

internal control system of the Group.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the auditors of the Company

provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and the Group.

The auditor's remuneration payable to Confucius International CPA Limited,
in relation to audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$ 1,675,000 and HK$ 150,000 respectively.

The auditor's remuneration payable to Confucius International CPA Limited,
in relation to audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$ 1,680,000 and Nil respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’'s Report on pages 78 to 81.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company for each financial period with a true and fair
presentation of the financial position of the Group. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
and the related interpretations, adjustments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable and the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The Directors are aware of conditions indicating the existence
of material uncertainty related to going concern, and are of the view that
the Group will continue as a going concern for the reasons stated as set
out in the paragraph “The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
basis” under “Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Significant Accounting Policies” on pages 91 to 93 of this report. The
statement made by the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual report.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Pursuant to the Code Provision D.|.3, the Board would like to provide more
details on the Disclaimer of Opinion regarding the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern.

As mentioned in the subsection headed "DETAILS OF AUDIT
QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE FROM THE COMPANY"" in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Auditor has issued a
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2023, which arising solely from going

concern issue of the Group.

The net liabilities and net current liabilities of the Group was mainly
attributable to number of reasons, such as high administration expenses and

finance costs, and high-interest rate borrowings of the Group.
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The loan borrowings and its interest are still high and this is not easy to
solve, as to obtain low-interest loans from banker are less possible based
on the current financial figures. Therefore, the management of the Group
is trying their best to obtain other financings for other financial institutions,
individuals and potential investors, once concrete proposals or terms are
reached, further announcement (if applicable) will be published as soon as
possible. In addition, the management of the Group s striving to seek more
profitable businesses to increase the Group's overall revenue and profit to
improve the performance of the Group, and to diversify and expand the

Group's businesses to solve the problem of business concentration.

The management of the Group is optimistic and confident that the Company
has sufficient working capital for the next twelve months because the
following considerations in addition to the view that Various Measures have
been and/or will be taken to improve the Group's results, working capital

and cashflow:

completing the issue of 101,964,566 shares under the at the
subscription price of HK$0.066 per subscription share to independent
third parties and raising approximately HK$6,500,000 net proceeds on
I5 January 2024;

2. extending the repayment terms and the expiry date of the Group'’s
banking facilities by entering into extension agreement with the lender
after the end of the reporting period but before the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue. The expiry date of the
banking facilities of RMBI160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$176561,000), of which RMBI147,799,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$163,097,000) was utilised as of 31 December 2023,
secured by the Group’s leasehold buildings and leasehold lands under
right-of-use assets due on |6 March 2024 has been extended to I3
December 2024;

3. active cost-saving measures to control operating costs and
administrative costs through various means has been implemented
to improve operating cash flows at a level sufficient to finance the

working capital requirements of the Group; and

4. considering other financing arrangements, if necessary, with a view to

increasing the Group's equity and liquidity.
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The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion, the
Management’s position concerning the Disclaimer of Opinion and measures
taken by the Group for addressing the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit
Committee agreed with the Management’s position based on the reasons as
stated herein. Moreover, the Audit Committee requested the Management
to take all necessary actions to address the impact of the Disclaimer of
Opinion and to strive that such situation leading to the Disclaimer of
Opinion would not happen or be improved in the coming future. The Audit
Committee had also discussed with the Auditor regarding the financial
position of the Group, measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and
considered the Auditor’s rationale and understood their consideration in

arriving their opinion.

The Board is of the view that the Proposed Measures are feasible and should
be sufficient to address the Disclaimer of Opinion. Taking into account that
if the Group is able to improve the Group’s working capital, cash flow and
financial position in 2023, and assuming there are no other material adverse
effects that will cause the Auditor to issue other disclaimer(s) of opinion,
the Board expects that the Disclaimer of Opinion may be removed in the
next year's auditor’s report, or at least the financial position will be greatly

improved. The Auditor also holds the same view and basis in this regard.

The annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period have also been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board in
performing its corporate governance functions, the Board has delegated
certain corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee, which
include (i) developing and reviewing policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and directors;
and (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control to safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’
interests. An internal control system, including a defined management
structure with limits of authority, is designed to help achieving business
objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorised use, and maintaining
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use and for publication. The internal control system is set up to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
of financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's

objectives.

The Group has a positive attitude to internal controls improvements.
For the purpose of strengthening its existing internal control system, the
Company has appointed an independent professional firm to perform a
review of the Group’s selected internal control cycles during the year ended
31 December 2023. The internal control review report has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee. The Group is considering the recommendations
on the deficiencies identified by the independent professional firm and the
recommendations will be followed up on a regular basis and discussed with

the Audit Committee.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy on 30 December 2022. It provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting
channels on reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related to

the Group directly addressed to the designated person.

An email account (faithlam@winshine.com) has been set up for this purpose.
All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in the meantime,
all information received from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept
confidential. The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the

Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy on 30 December
2022. It outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-
bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group
defend against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected
case of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate
all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting in
an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business
dealing with third parties. The Board and the Audit Committee will review
the Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and

corruption.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Group is Mr. Lam Koon Fai (“Mr. Lam”). Mr.
Lam is a full time employee of the Company who has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company. Mr. Lam has taken no less than |5 hours of the relevant

professional training during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders, can

request the Company in writing to:

(a)  give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may

properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b)  circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to have notice of
any general meeting send to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or

not less than one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

director of the Company

According to bye-law 88 of the Company's Bye-laws, no person other
than a director retiring at the general meeting of the Company shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of director at any general meeting of the Company unless a notice in
writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a director,
signed by a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed for election as a director) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting of the Company for which such notice is given, and a
notice in writing signed by such person of his/her willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Company's head office in Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and the period for lodgement of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later

than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns in writing
to the Company Secretary of the Company at the Company’s head office in
Hong Kong at Room 907B, 9/F., China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
[68-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include
the annual general meeting, the annual and interim reports, constitutional
documents, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company's
website at www.winshine.com and www.tricor.com.hk/webservice/000209.

Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time to time.
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SAN-CHINA

Confucius International

RIEBEBREGHENFEBAARSTT sxeum

CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Winshine
Science Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 222, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other

explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As explained in note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$28,650,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. As at the same
date, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$185,184,000 and HK$80,869,000, respectively, and the Group’s bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$119,335000, in contrast to its
borrowings and convertible bond of approximately HK$238,097,000 and
HK$2,476,000 respectively, which are repayable within the next twelve months.
These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast

significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

ERALFELHEL8IS KB AEL501-08F
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months from the date of this
report and have undertaken a number of measures to improve the Group's
liquidity and financial position which are set out in note 3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis on the bases and assumption that the lenders have
no current intention to exercise their right to demand immediate repayment
of the borrowings, the validity of which depends on the outcome of the
measures which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful
negotiations with the lenders for further renewal of or extension for repayment
of those borrowings which will mature within twelve months from the end
of the reporting period; (ii) the successful cost saving measures to improve
operating cash flows of the Group; and (iii) successfully obtaining of additional

new sources of financing as and when needed.

Should the Group fail to achieve the intended effects resulting from the plans
and measures as mentioned in the note 3.| to the consolidated financial
statements, it might not be able to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's
assets to their net realisable amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities
that may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments

have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the going concemn basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. Up to the date of our report, no agreement or information or
indication of the lender’s current intention for the further renewal of or
extension for repayment of those outstanding corporate bonds and term loans
is available. In this circumstance, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence in relation to the adoption of the going concern basis in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.

B ZBEN R E

ERRERCHAEN BEfEAAMEAHRAR
K+—AANRESRERE - YERMSZERERE - A
HE EXENRDESRMBRN - FREBERER
REMBMRME.  RAMBRRDIEFELER
BEHE  VERVEFRBEFARBERITERLE
KEVE &R - EARMERFZEHEENE
MZEERTZBIRERNRTE  BREOEERA
RN ERERZSERNE - S EHRRTEHEE -
BEREFBRHEHREST T —@AREE : (i)KD
BHEAAEIRERASRE ERENKERER &
(iR T BRI BUSRRIMTRLE AR ©

SEREMARE M HMRM 3 At 2518
REEBREUR - A BRI EREEREL
A8

g MARAEL B BRBUMBAEEEENIKRE
BEEAAERFE  IRARESE - PARIRER

& REFRBDEENRFRBDEEIANERSERR
BEERARPAE - AEHBOFERARANGEAMH
HBRARBR ©

BARG  GEEAVBEBRRZIFELEELELNER
BUBBRTAIRE - EEARSEAHY - WEHZE
FEAEITRRAERAB A B E - T EENEHRE
BUSEREECXEFLEHERNER - £ZXBER
T BAELERERRAEGEVBBRRRAZKE
REEENTDEE 2ERERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—ROCZEER

79



80

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % D

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely
to you, as a body in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. However,
because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial

statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: PO5215
Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A4S
meEEmE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z-_=4#+-A=-1+-AL4E

2023 2022
—E=-= =S
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mtat FERT FAT
Revenue 'ON 5 523,262 849,096
Cost of sales SHE AR (483,996) (751,213)
Gross profit EF 39,266 97,883
Other income, gains and losses EAbUA -~ Was R E1E 6 10,300 8217
Reversal of expected credit loss for loan W ER 2z BREEEEED
receivables 7 600 400
Reversal of expected credit loss for trade FEWE 5518 2 BHIE BB
receivables 7 3,273 8,181
Provision of expected credit loss for HAbEWGRIE 2 B EEERE
other receivables 7 - (29,067)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ K 34 - 29,906
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SERA (1,608) (7,557)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (53,752) (64417)
Gain arising from changes in fair value EMEER A E RSN E
less costs to sell of biological assets B4z W 20 13 -
Other operating expenses Hihge X (5,503) (17,426)
Finance costs BhE AR 8 (15,587) (14351)
(Loss) profit before tax RRBiAT (B8 ) &R (22,998) 11,769
Income tax expense FriSHifs 9 (6,363) (3,690)
(Loss) profit for the year A (ER)mA 10 (29.361) 8,079
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LU 18 B B AFE (B58) &F -
Owners of the Company KATEBA (28,650) 8,079
Non-controlling interest (“NCI”) FEIERR RS ([ RIS ) (711) -
(29.361) 8,079
(Loss) earnings per share BR(EE)ER 14
Basic and diluted EARNEE (HK6.36 cents) HK2.21 cents
(6.36384l) 22174

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBEBERHEMEEKER

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T-_=F1+-A=1+-BLEE

2023 2022
—EC-=F T CF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET THET
(Loss) profit for the year REFE (BB )R (29,361) 8,079
Other comprehensive income (expense) HttzmEkzE(BEX)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or TEEIAEBmZIHE -
loss:
(Loss) gain on revaluation of properties I EESEAG GG (1,1'14) ['1,350
Deferred tax credit (charge) arising from VIS REE CRERIER R ()
revaluation of properties 29 2,220 (463)
1,106 10,887
ltems that may be/have been reclassified L ERAEESAERZIER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ MAE GINEFSEFEE 2B X =58
foreign operations 3,321 (16,821)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal BB A R 1& AR BREE
of subsidiaries - 7,149
3,321 (9,672)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEERE
for the year 4427 1,215
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEERE(BAX)KREEEE
for the year (24,934) 9,294
Total comprehensive (expense) income UTEBEEARFEL2E (X)) E
for the year attributable to: o
Owners of the Company FiN/NTE =N (24,227) 9,294
NCI FERER (707) -
(24,934) 9294
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R R

At 31 December 2023
RZZ-=F+-A=+—8H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FTER FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment VI -~ BB R 15 115,364 114,817
Right-of-use assets ERERE 16 6,150 7,119
Rental deposit Hemse 22 164 414
Goodwil (G 35 740 -
Interests in associates i kN e 18 - -
122,418 122,350

Current assets RENEE
Inventories PR 19 75,142 81,974
Biological assets EMEE 20 832 -
Trade receivables e E 5 508 21 70,482 71,503
Loan receivables JEUE R 17 - -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — TESFKIE « 12 R E A fEURIE 22 26,116 15,354
Bank balances and cash SRITEEHBEIRS 23 119,335 49,765
291,907 218,596

Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables JERTE 5 RIE 24 170,541 137,111
Other payables and accruals Hi e E L e+ E B 25 59,423 71,895
Contract liabilities BHEE 26 1,154 1,544
Borrowings B3 27 238,097 190,943
Lease liabilities HERE 28 1,529 1,969
Tax payables FERIH1E 3,871 7,902
Convertible bonds AR B2 30 2,476 -
477,091 411,364

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

BMENEERLF



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e T EHIRR R

At 31 December 2023
RZZZ=F+ZA=1+—H

2023 2022
—E=F T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FTHET THET
Net current liabilities RENEEFE (185,184) (192,768)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABAR (62,766) (70,418)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HERIE 28 1,858 2819
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAR B 29 16,245 16411
18,103 19,230
Net liabilities 8EFE (80,869) (89,648)
Capital and reserves R &
Share capital &N 31 5,098 3,662
Deficit B4 (85,153) (93310)
Capital deficiency attributable to RABIER AR E A EA
owners of the Company (80,055) (89,648)
NCI SR 814) -
Capital deficiencies BB (80,869) (89,648)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 222 were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed

on its behalf by:

JIANG Qing Hui
BEEE
Executive Director

HITEE

BNERLE2NAEFAVBBRREN T _MNF=H
“tN\BREFEHAEREENE  Ah FIEEK
REE

WENG Zu Dian

H1HH

Executive Director

HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

MEEREER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOTREARE
Issued Asset  Stawtory  Convertible  Exchange
share Share  revaluation reserve  bondequity  fluctuation  Accumulated Capital
capital premium reserve fund reserve reserve losses Total NCI - deficiency
B&f7 it gz EE  TERER B

Bx E EtRE  BRER
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS000
L2 v v /P v

Bl RERG ZHER BB FEBER  HTEM
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0
thr TR ThRr  TEn  TEn TEn

(Note)
(H:t)

At 1 January 2022 RZZ-ZF-A-H 366,186 942400 49551 1,744 - B2 (1502085 (98942) - (98942)
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - 8079 8079 - 8079
Other comprehensive income REEEMZENE(FY)

(expense) for the year - - 10,687 - - (9672) - [215 - [215
Total comprehensive income RERRENE (AR 8E

(expense) for the year - - 10887 - - (9672) 8079 9,294 - 9294
Revaluation reserve realised FHEMERE - - (2755) - - - 2755 - - -
Share reduction UL (36254) - - - - S TR - - -
Cancelation of share premivm~—~ FEERAE(E - (%04m) - - - - 940 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaies HENBAT - - 4 - - (9) - - -
Appropriation o BRTIEHEES

statutory reserve fund - - - 2570 - - (2570) - - -
At 31 December 2022 R-E--F+ZA=1-H 3662 - 57684 14318 - 3590 (188902) (89.648) - (89.648)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (8650)  (28650) oy 3]
Other comprehensive income AEEEMZANG

for the year = = 1,106 - - 3317 - 443 4 447
Totd comprenensie (expense)  AFERE(FE)NELE

income for the year = = 1,106 = = 3317 (28,650) (24227) (707) (24934)
Revaluation reserve realised SR ERRE = = (2.706) = = = 2,706 = = =
lssue of convertile bonds EORED = = = = 124 = = 124 = 124
Conversion of convertble bonds ~ BATEREFBAAR N

into shares 1436 3311 = = (1) = - 33,69 - 33,6%
Acquistion of subsidiaies WeEHB AR = = = S S - - - (107 (107)
Appropriztion to ERRiTRERS

statutory reserve fund = = = 9 = - %) - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZETZA=T-H 5,098 03 56,084 14410 1 26907 (214938) (80,05) (814) (80.869)
Note:  The Group's subsidiaries in the People’'s Republic of China (the "PRC") are Ftax - REBZzHREAREXNR((HE]DMBATEZLE

required to allocate at least 10% of net profit according to their PRC audited
financial statements to a statutory reserve fund until the balance of such reserve
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. Any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or for
capitalisation into share capital, provided that the remaining balance is not less than
20% of the registered capital of the entity after such capitalisation.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEESRER

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE T =F+_A=t+-HLEFE

2023 2022
—EC=E “E-CF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt TER FET
Operating activities REER
(Loss) profit before tax BRTE AT (B8 ) A7 (22,998) 11,769
Adjustments for: YET 5 55%
Finance costs BB A 15,587 14351
Interest income FISWA 6 (40) (48)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WERRETE 15 11,452 6,180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 16 1,696 4,067
Gain on disposal of interests of associates HERS N AR e 6 (2,480) _
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary BUEE B AR BB 6 1,095 -
Gain arising from change in fair value less costs to EWEEZ AR ERHER RSB
sell of biological assets Wz (13) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HENE « BERREzBER(KER) 6
equipment 205 (519)
Impairment loss on interests in associates BeRaER  RESE 6 _ 10,000
Reversal of expected credit loss for EWER, EREEEEEE
loan receivables 7 (600) (400)
Reversal of expected credit loss for trade receivables BB SFIE BREEFEER 7 (3273) (8,181)
Provision of expected credit loss for other receivable Hin R RHEEBERE 7 = 29,067
Gain on termination of a lease agreement MHEmEL I 6 - (1321)
Loss on early termination of lease classified as RABILHDERRENENHE 2 BE
investment property 6 - 4,702
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME DRz Yz 34 - (29.906)
Wiite down of inventories, net FEH W et 5,449 11,882
Effect of unrealised foreign exchange rate changes AERERGH 2 1,097 (2057)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESRBACCREELRE
working capital 7177 49,586
Decrease in inventories BERD 256 10,725
Decrease in trade receivables WS 5 FER D 4,294 70,840
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits and BAFE © ke RAMEYGECLM) A
other receivables (12,380) 6,190
Increase in biological assets EYBEEM (737) -
Increase (decrease) in trade payables ERE ZFIEEMORD) 35,135 (105,470)
(Decrease) increase in other payables and accruals Hib R RE R (R )L (15,786) 8,703
Decrease in contract liabilities BHAERS (388) (1,410)
Cash generated from operations SEMERE 17,571 39,164
Income tax paid BRER (8,084) (4,090)
Net cash generated from operating activities RELBMERETE 9,487 35,074
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

2023 2022
- Jag¥ - ZEoCF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Myt TER TET
Investing activities REEH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BREKF 15 (13,103) (9.810)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BE kR AEHE 210 3739
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZRERAEHE 34 - 43292
Receipts of loan receivables JEY SRR TBUIR T 600 400
Interest received BUFIS 40 48
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREERRTER - 1,190
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries ERNB ARz RERAFE 35 -
Net cash (used in) generated from investing activities REZE (B IER&EE (12,252) 38,859
Financing activities RETH
Proceeds from borrowings EXEHE 440,082 538,481
Repayment of borrowings BEEN (390,421) (598,357)
Interest paid ERME (11,949) (14351)
Repayment of lease liabilities BENEAR (2,085) (3432)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BITARREFAEHE 36,300 -
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities BETHME(FTR)RETE 71,927 (77659)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents RERBLEEMEN(RD) FE 69,162 (3726)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RENZELRBLEEN 49,765 66,634
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgus¥E 408 (13,143)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, REZZRERFLEEY KRBT
represented by bank balances and cash HHRES 119,335 49,765
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents RERREEENMAERIN
Bank balance and cash RITHEBRES 119,335 49,765

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

BMENEERLF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the
annual report. The Company's shares are listed on The Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group's annual period beginning on | January 2023 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
October 2020 and February 2022

Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules
Amendments to HKAS | and Disclosure of Accounting Polices

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback!

Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!

Amendments to HKAS | Non-current Liabilities with Covenants'

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements!

Amendments to HKAS 2| Lack of Exchangeability*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2025.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis

The Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its consolidated financial statements. The Group incurred
a net loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$28,650,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. As at the
same date, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$185,184,000 and HK$80,869,000 respectively.
The Group's bank balances and cash amounted to approximately
HK$119,335000 in contrast to its borrowings and convertible
bond of approximately HK$238,097000 and HK$2,476,000

respectively, which are repayable within the next twelve months.

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of

its business.

3.

)

3.1

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis (Continued)

In order to improve the Group's financial position, the directors

of the Company have been implementing various measures as

follows:

completed the issue of 101964566 shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.066 per subscription share
to an independent third party and raised approximately
HK$6,500,000 net proceeds on |5 January 2024;

extending the repayment terms and the expiry date of
the Group’s banking facilities by entering into extension
agreement with the lender after the end of the reporting
period but before the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue. The expiry date of the banking
facilities of RMBI160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$176,561,000), of which RMB147,799,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$163,097,000) was utilised as of 31
December 2023, secured by the Group'’s leasehold buildings
and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets due on |6
March 2024 has been extended to |3 December 2024;

active cost-saving measures to control operating costs
and administrative costs through various means has been
implemented to improve operating cash flows at a level
sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the

Group; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis (Continued)

V. considering other financing arrangements, if necessary, with a

view to increasing the Group’s equity and liquidity.

On the basis of the above considerations and taking into account
the above measures, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months from the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements and accordingly, these consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for biological assets which are measured
at their fair value less costs to sell and, certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 3| December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 ““Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS16 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in

HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 3| December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amounts of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable

asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met,
the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a business

and no further assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

gk

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or

bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes

and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition

date;

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the
lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date;
or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with

market terms.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary's net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling

interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arises from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at

the acquisition date.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed

directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the

amounts recognised at that date.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the

accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU s less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on
a prorata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the

unit (or group of CGUs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Goodvwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a
CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group
of CGUs) retained.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified

impairment loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operation policy decisions of the investee but is not

control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Change in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial

disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the

Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

. the Group'’s performance creates and enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is

due.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods
or services itself (ie. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the

Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service

before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

Planting, cultivation and sale of agricultural produce and distribution

of fruits

Revenue from planting, cultivation and sale of agricultural produce
and distribution of fruits is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Planting, cultivation and sale of agricultural produce and distribution

of fruits (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due. It
is the Group's policy to sell its products to end customers with a

right of retum within the date of products delivered.

The management'’s judgements regarding principal and agent
consideration in revenue recognition was disclosed in note 4 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception or modification date. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group applies
practical expedient not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the financial statements would not differ

materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the
Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce

inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are

presented within “investment properties”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Leasehold land and building

For payments of a property interest which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is presented as
property, plant and equipment of the Group when the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and

building elements.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9") and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-

use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

. amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees,

. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain

to be exercised by the Group; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding

the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as

a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to remeasure the lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments using the unchanged
discount rate and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets. A lease modification is required by interest rate

benchmark reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

. the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of

interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis

immediately preceding the modification).

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance

lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to
net investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included
in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of retum on the Group’s net investment

outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term except for investment properties measured under fair

value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

The Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from

lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease

as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land premiums” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over

the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. GEUBBRR2GREEREESITEE

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 BEEESHBESER(E)
Foreign currencies s
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group NEHEENERETENERRE -
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency ZEERBNEEEUINNE %(9\\?—”{5)&??
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of HRXSERRZBRIRITERER - Bk
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end LHIR SN SHERN EKIEE NI %
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign BRRTEXEMRE o BUIINEFHER
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. AREIENEEKBERREETALBEE
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in HHIRTERSEHHBE o IWINERFE L KA
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the ATEMIEEEBEE NTERRE -

date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, EHIERAENEFRERESNEN =
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit HEAEAHENES T ER o

or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial MBI GEEMBHRMS » NEBEBLEY
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are BENAGIKSRESHRBITERIRE 5
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong RNEFBN2YEE(EET) r MEKSIE
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each BIREAA Y ERBE - MEAANEXRHIR
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at BAOFEBRIN - FELBERT - BIERAR S
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates HEHIERNER - RIEAELEZE(0E)
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange 159 5 H b 2 T8 Uk 2 52 DA B 56 % B %
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange ZERERPER o

differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange

fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs BB
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in FREEERARELRRAERETE
which they are incurred. R o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented

under “Other income, gains and losses'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme and are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the

contribution payable.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain amounts for the employees in the
PRC, pursuant to the local municipal government regulations. The
contributions are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered services entitling them to the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or

permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or

loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be

transferred to accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred

income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group'’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the
time of the transaction dose not give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in

the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment measured using revaluation model

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation

surplus is transferred to accumulated losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation
of assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of

cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under

that standard.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that

standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
I5. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that
at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 "“Business Combinations”

applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

()

Amortised cost and interest income

(i

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other

gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRZGHREEREESBUR

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 30 EEEHBEENE)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances and
cash). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“I2m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within |2 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk

of a default occurring since initial recognition:
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to

meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; or
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk
of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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gk

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

(i)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

@

®)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

gk

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Write-off policy

V)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables are each assessed as a separate
group. Loans receivables are assessed for expected

credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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gk

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated

in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and

translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

Specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item (note 6) as part of the net foreign

exchange gains/(losses);

For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on
the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised
in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line item
(note 6) as part of the net foreign exchange gains/(losses).
As the foreign currency element recognised in profit or loss
is the same as if it was measured at amortised cost, the
residual foreign currency element based on the translation
of the carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value through other

comprehensive income/revaluation reserve;

For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’
line item as part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value

of financial assets (note 6);

For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the fair value through other comprehensive income/

revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the

financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of

the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHREEREESBUR

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments which include no contractual obligation for
the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the Group
has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution and
redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 EESTTBEEMRE)
Financial instruments (Continued) SHETAE)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) cRIBERER(E)
Equity instruments BmIA

BETAREHREREENTIREMABA
BERNRBEENERMEL - KRR FIE
TRETAREEMERBENBRERET
FXARTER,

BEAKREHAAERINRESREMSE
BENANERE  IAKEARERTEE
RHIEIR S DR & BRI A FHE KA T
AN ERESETA -

SRAE
A R L 1 R AR A R LS
AR -

R R 2 S BB
SREHEREER BN ESHERL
L BEEIETES S Es LT
AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own

equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component (including
any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is estimated by
measuring the fair value of similar liability that does not have an

associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting
the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included
in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity
will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
share capital. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the

conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest

method.

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

EHMBBRCEREEREZSTHE

A7 ES
ARES 2 AR BN D RIBE R T2
NEARGBABEIEETAZER 9
BReBBENRER - MBREKEREB
NEESRZReH S A EERIR
BEEBRBZARR AN DT AT T
& ApEmTA

RETEE  BEMOZARE(BREE
ARAFBRATETAFBREFEY
ERBARABONBLUEEZAAER

s
B o
B

DERER BRI EBNERES
TRZARETHRAGEN DO SRETE -
HEBNIMBRAIEREERERSERRA
R BRI TENAE - LI 28
1ERE R 2 MRS —EREREEA
EEZBBBRETERSL - BN
T BENERZEHRBEARRE - f{ik
REEN S BT RRERZ AR
& - AIRNEERRZERBEARE T
M o MR AR KRS BB A T R
AR E A s EIE

HBEIT R MBS B B2 X BT IR
BSREeBEz LT EEAERER
By  BEDSHOEEIRIINAEEE
HHEDE - REESDBBEIIHKA
AFt ABERSY ZREE - LR ETA
BERESHNRBERA RS

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—E-=EEH

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘Other gains and
losses’ line item in profit or loss (note 6) as part of net foreign
exchange gains/(losses) for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. For those which are designated as
a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part

of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of a financial asset or financial liability to which the amortised
cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account for
these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such change
in effective interest rate normally has no significant effect on the

carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both

these conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest

rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis

immediately preceding the change).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets are the growing crops of the Group on the
cultivation bases. Biological assets are measured at fair value less
costs to sell on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting
period. The fair value of biological assets is determined based on
the current market price with reference to the species, growing

condition, cost incurred and expected vield of the crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair value less costs
to sell at the time of harvest. The fair value of agricultural produce
is determined based on market prices in the local market. The fair
value less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost

of agricultural produce for further processing.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological assets at
fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair value less costs
to sell of biological assets shall be included in profit or loss for the

period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Going concern considerations

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgment by the directors of the Company, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors of the Company consider that the Group has the
ability to continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may

cast doubts about the going concern assumption are set out in note 3.1.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Principal and agent consideration in revenue recognition

The Group engaged in sales of toy products business or sales of its own

planted fruits, which involves the principal versus agent assessment.

The Group is required to determine whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e, the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e, the Group is an agent).
In determining the nature of its promise, the Group identify the specified
goods to be provided to the customer (which, for example, could be a
right to a good to be provided by another party, and assess whether it
controls each specified good before that good or service is transferred to

the customer).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
revenue relating to the sales of toy products and agricultural products
amounted to HK$522,827,000 and HK$435,000 respectively.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax asset (31 December 2022:
nil) in relation to unused tax losses for an operating subsidiary has been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the other tax losses of
the subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC of HK$224,550,000 (2022:
HK$205,539,000) and RMB6,649,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,337,000) (2022: RMB8,474,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,487,000)) respectively due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation,
a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such

a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement and valuation processes of the leasehold buildings

The leasehold buildings are stated at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
end of each reporting period as disclosed in note 5. The revalued
amount has been based on a valuation on the buildings conducted by
an independent firm of professional valuer using property valuation

techniques which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.

In estimating the revalued amount of the Group's leasehold buildings,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level | inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation of the Group's
leasehold buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The management of the Group
first considers and adopts Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived
from observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs
are not available, the Group adopts valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the revalued amount
of the leasehold buildings, the causes of the fluctuations are reported to
the board of directors of the Company. Changes to assumptions and
inputs would result in changes in the revalued amount of the Group's
leasehold buildings and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain

or loss reported in other comprehensive income.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the revalued amount of the Group’s leasehold buildings are disclosed in

note I5.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset, which requires significant
judgment relating to level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in

future periods.

As at 3|1 December 2023 and 2022, there was no impairment losses
have been recognised against the carrying amounts of property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets.

Impairment assessment of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
net realisable value is lower than cost. The management of the Group
reviewed the inventory ageing report at the end of the reporting period
to identify inventories that are no longer saleable in the market and
estimated the net realisable value for those items based primarily on the

latest invoice prices and current market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, write down of inventories of
HK$5,449,000 (2022: HK$11,882,000) was charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories is

HK$75,142,000 (2022: HK$81,974,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of biological assets

As described in note 20, the directors of the Company use their
judgements and estimates in determining the fair value of biological assets.
The fair values are determined using a discounted cash flow valuation
technique based on assumptions including the estimated market prices
and attrition rate. These inputs involved critical estimate because there is
presently an absence of effective financial instruments for hedging against
the pricing risks from the unexpected volatility in market prices and
the estimated yield is also strongly affected by the unusual agricultural
hazards like fire and other natural occurrences like earthquakes. At 3|
December 2023, the fair value of the Group's growing vegetables have
been determined by independent valuation firm. The carrying amount of
biological assets as at 31 December 2023 is HK$832,000. Details of the

assumptions used are disclosed in note 20.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of
the lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. The loss allowances for financial
assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management reassesses

the provision at each balance sheet date.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 21 and 37(b).

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$71,657,000 (2022: HK$75951,000), and the provision of ECL is
HK$ 1,175,000 (2022: provision of ECL is HK$4,448,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan receivables

Impairment of loan receivables is assessed on |12m ECL basis when there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowances will be based on the lifetime ECL. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, general
conditions, internal credit ratings and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s loan receivables are
disclosed in notes 17 and 37(b), respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of loan receivables
is HK$16,126,000 (2022: HK$16,733,000), and the provision of ECL is
HK$ 16,126,000 (2022: HK$16,733,000).

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

Revenue represents revenue arising on sale of toy products and sales of
agricultural products for the year. The revenue relates to revenue from
contracts with customers which is within the scope of HKFRS 15. All
revenue is recognised at a point in time upon delivery of the goods to

customers.

The Group manufactured toy products in accordance with the
performance obligations as set out in each sales contracts with its
customers. The performance obligations in sales contracts have an
original expected duration of one year or less. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and hence information about the
Group's remaining performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or
partially satisfied) as of the end of the reporting period is not disclosed.
The Group recognised the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as
an expense when incurred since the amortisation period of the asset that

the Group otherwise would have recognised was one year or less.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 3| December 2023
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WAREEDT(E)

2023 2022

—ZT_-= —E-4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Revenue from sales of toy products REMEEITAEERZWA 522,827 849,096
Revenue from sales of agricultural products KEHERER WA 435 =
523,262 849,096

The Group is organised and its businesses are managed by divisions,
which are a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations.
Information reported internally to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. The Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated in arriving at the following reportable segments of

the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

Toys: this segment derives its revenue from manufacturing for sales

of toys.

2. Agricultural products: this segment derives its revenue from

planting agricultural products for sale.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than refundable
deposits, certain property, plant and equipment, certain prepayments
and certain bank balances and cash, which are grouped as unallocated

corporate assets.
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5.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than certain

accruals, which are grouped as unallocated corporate liabilities.

Segment (loss) profit before tax excludes unallocated interest income and
unallocated corporate expenses which are not directly attributable to the

business activities of any operating segment.
(@)  Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

reportable segments:

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022

5. BWAREESE(E)
FERBEEAKRERERNE - S TEE
R(BEA/RIELEAREIKN -

BRI RUBE)ENTEERS BN KA
RTEEZBBREIARKENBZEBHEABAR
DELERX -
(@) DEWA ¥XE EBEKAER
AT REZAZBYBE D 2 AEBRAR
EEM

RE-F-=¢R-F--—&+-A=+

—HIEFE
Toys Agricultural products Total
n& REm by
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=f -ZT--F ZE-=F ZE--F “B-=HF —E-C-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn AT TEx AT TEx FAT

Reportable segment revenue AEHRABHA

Revenue from external customers KEIMNEREZWA 522,827 849,096 435 - 523,262 849,096
Reportable segment (loss) profit before tax 7] 2#ERBIAT D B (B8 ) &H (7262 53065 (3,338) ~ (10600) 53,065
Unallocated corporate income RABEERA 1,984 33
Unallocated corporate expenses AABRERR (14,382) (41329)
(Loss) profit before tax BRBL AT (B598) &R (22.99) 11,769

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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(2)

BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE
REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WARKLSEE)
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () PDHEBA - % SEREEE)
Toys Agricultural products Unallocated Total
n& RER AR &3t
03 10 03 00 03 00 003 00
TRCZE CFCCF CRCZR CFCCF CRCZR CFICF CRCER CFIC
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HKF000
TéBn TEr TR TEr  TEx  TEn  TBr  TEn
Other segment information (induded in the measure - £ BAR GTAS BEE
of segment profit or loss or segment assets) AEAENE)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BEREECNE (10.905) (6094) (540) - 1) 8)  (11452) (6,180)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets [ERERE E (1,549) 013) (14) - 13 I (16%)  (4067)
Reversal of ECL for trade receivables EYE 5B Bl EERED 313 818l - - - - 3273 8,18l
Reversal of ECL for loan receivables RUET EHEEHiEED - - = - 600 400 600 400
Provision of ECL for other receivables Hfnfelie RAEEERRE - - - - - () - ()
Wite down of inventories, net TElR 58 (549 (1188 - - - - (5449  (1188)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and Heng  BRRRE (B8
equipment, net i (205) 419 = - - 100 (205) 509
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT b - - - - - %6 - %06
Gain on termination of a lease agreement R HEERZNE = 718 - - = €03 = k)]
Impairment loss on interests in associates BEDIER AEEE - - = - = (10000) - (10,000)
Loss on deregstration of a subsidary PRETHEAR 2Bl - - - - (0%) - (0%) -
Gain on disposal of interests in associates HERNBED Az BRI - - - - 2480 - 2480 -
Gain arsing from changes in fai value less costs to sel EWEEDA EHEERFEDES
of biological assets g = - 13 - = - 13 -
Bark interest income FIHBMA 18 4 4 - 18 4 4 4
Interest expense FIERR () (1071 - - (3.864) (3640) ~ (15587)  (14350)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENZ BRREE 7398 9,781 530 - 385 ¥ B 9810
Addiion of right-of-use assets TERAELE - 4694 - - 657 1,885 657 6579
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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5.  REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WARKESE(E)
(b)  Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by THARAKREEERBEREERTZR
operating and reportable segments: DEED 2D

As at 31 December 2023 R-BE-_=F+=-A=+—H

154

Agricultural

Toys products Total
na REm st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Reportable segment assets AZRHREAE 388,926 TATT 396,403
Unallocated corporate assets FOMEEEE 17,922
Total assets BERE 414,325
Reportable segment liabilities ERSHERE (431,323) (825) (432,148)
Unallocated corporate liabilties ~ RATLERE (63,046)
Total liabilties BEATE (495,194)

As at 31 December 2022 R-E-—_F+=-B=+—H

Securities Medical

investments Toys and health Total
BERE 73 BEL R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TET TET
Reportable segment assets AZRNHBEE - 330390 - 330,390
Unallocated corporate assets AP FEEE 10,556
Total assets BERE 340946
Reportable segment liabilities AR BER - (360,871) - (360871)
Unallocated corporate liabilties ~ RAFEERE (69,723)
Total liabilties alELE (430,594)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5.

©

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue and (i) the Group's non-current assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment
properties. The geographical location of customers refers to
the customers’ place of domicile. The geographical locations of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are based on

the physical location of the asset under consideration.

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

WARKRE R (E)

(c) HEER
TXEINOHAER 2 WA+ R()AREEIE
RBEE(BENE BERSZE £/
BEEREEME)RMEBANES S ZH
e BPZMBMNEREP ZREM - ¥
¥ BERREAREAEEE 2B
BENRBAEEREEZERMUEE D -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REMEES ZBA FRENEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC=H —E-F —Eo=F T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHT
Hong Kong BB 3,405 26,223 883 890
The PRC H 2,110 7,730 114,362 120,962
United States =35 475,191 751,758 - -
Europe B 28,447 39,496 - -
Korea PR 11,708 23,889 = -
Australia SEM 1,966 - - -
Japan HA 435 - 6,186 -
523,262 849,096 121,431 121,852

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

d EBRETEEFEFZEHR
REBFERBEAASEHBIEERER10%

over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: NEZBEZMALNT -
2023 2022
—E=-= T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Revenue from manufacturing for SEETTAUHEE S EZ WA
sale of toys segment
Customer A EPA 475,191 750,709
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

6. HAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

s WEREE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —F-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT
Bank interest income RITRLEMA 40 48
Loss on early termination of lease of investment 1% & ¥ M HEIRAT
property S Iulz0) = (4,702)
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 W s F R 7,088 12,687
Mould income HEERA 1,276 2,739
Rental income WA 217 1,160
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment, net (E518) W 548 (205) 519
Gain on disposal of interests of associates HERE N A 2 W (A5 18)
(note 18) 2,480
Gain on lease termination MEK s = 1,321
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (note i) BUBER B 7 2 B8 (M ati) (1,095) -
Government grants (note i) T #E B (B 2ti) - 752
Impairment loss on interests in associates BN Rl 2 R EE 8 = (10,000)
Sundry income FETFIA 499 3,693
10,300 8217
Notes: Mt -
(i) During the year ended 3| December 2022, the Group recognised 0] BE-_T-_—_"F+-_A=+—HUIEFE r X&

government grants of HK$752,000 in respect of COVID-19 related
subsidies, which related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the

Hong Kong government.

(ii) During the year ended 3| December 2023, the Group deregistered a (ii)
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC and completed on 21 August 2023.
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary at the date of deregistration was

approximately HK$1,095,000.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

l?xcovua | 948 8 45 A T 52 BUAT 47 B 752,000
TC  BEBRATRME 217‘%%5%;# |58 -

BE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE $%
ERFBEEUEER— %iémgﬂilﬂ
—=FNAZF+—HEK ° EAHX/QMEEIHHHX
SHERWEB AR ZEELA1,0950008 T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRERMEE

For the year ended 3| December 2023

BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE
(REVERSAL) PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES 7. EHEEEE(EEO)RE
2023 2022
—E=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Reversal of ECL for loan receivables ERE Rz EEEEBEE
(notes |7 and 37(b)) (KiaE17X37(b)) (600) (400)
Reversal of ECL for trade FEWE 5518 2 FEHIE BB
receivables (notes 21 and 37(b)) el (fraF21%37(b)) (3,273) (8,181)
Provision of ECL for other receivables E WA 2 TREME B R E RS = 29,067
(3,873) 20,486
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMRAE
2023 2022
—E=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR
Interest on bank loans RITERZF B 6,974 5,069
Interest on corporate bond TEEHFZFE 3,038 3,038
Interest on other loans Ht Bz A = 10
Interest on revolving loans BERERFE 980 1,379
Interest on short-term loans RHEFHZ A E 3,714 3949
Interest on lease liabilities HEaE 2L 358 806
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AIRARES 2 HE RS 523 -
15,587 14,351
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MBHAX
2023 2022
—EB-=F =S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEMEH
Current year REE - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ZEFTISEL
Current year REE 4,094 9,235
Japan Corporate Income Tax HAMBZERSH
Current year REE 5 -
4,099 9,235
Deferred tax expense (credit) (note 29) IRERIER 2 () (H7#29) 2,264 (5,545)
Income tax expense PSR 2 6,363 3,690
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

9!

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to

be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amounts involved arising
from the implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both

years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The provision for the land appreciation tax (“LAT") is calculated
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates on the

appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions.

The Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
the subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated
from | January 2008. Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from | January 2008 and applies to eamings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% is applied to
the Group as there is a double tax treaty between the PRC and Hong
Kong and the relevant Hong Kong companies should be qualified for the

preferential tax rate based on the prescribed conditions.

Under the law of Japan on Corporate Income Tax, the tax rate of the

Japan subsidiary is 22.4% for 2023.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates of tax

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

FrewHmEx (&)

BEMBFESHREGE  AERCEZE2A
BETLERBIR 5% MERBMFBIE - MEB
DEEB T mNEIE65% 2 B RS MTIE
THEMBANERBEHEERCEEREY
o A B IR 1 6.5% 2 S — TR BN IE -

KAREERE  BHRMAMNESHHEHE
FTEENERSEHSRAMBREM S HTE
B o MEFENEBRNERDIRGTERTR
I 16.5%518E -

REPEARKMBEEEMBRR(LEMSE
BORD) REEMERABRGD - FEMERQ
AR MEFENHEGR25% °

3B ER ([ LR EN ) BER AR E
MISERPOERAERE M - THIBERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR MR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

FreHimx (&)

REFRBEMX

SER RN

PRI =]

FRERTLAT (BR)ENERAT ¢

BREMEbEERER

2023 2022
—E-=F T CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
(Loss) profit before tax PR AT (B8 ) s F (22,998) 11,769
Notional tax on (loss) profit before tax, DA B AERA TR S R A ME R 27 i A B i 2R
calculated at the rates applicable to profits FTEZBRBIRI(EE) R BERIE
in the tax jurisdictions concermned (673) 3,760
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBPMA Z g2
for tax purpose (6,133) (30,570)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax NS 2 B2
purpose 6,504 45918
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences  RIER A IR E s =R 2 RIFHE
not recognised 380 (5,988)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the RARRFE 2 B A2 A9k )
distributable profits of the Company’s 5%t B 2 BT 2 2
subsidiaries in the PRC 2,229 150
Deferred tax effects of LAT T I ER 2 R R 15 (5,695)
Deferred tax effects of biological assets EYE B 2RI % 5 2 20 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBIBBE G E 4,617 1,567
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A SCAIRERZ HIBEE
recognised (596) (5,/452)
Income tax expense for the year FEMSHRX 6,363 3,690
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

10. FE(BR)ER

FEER)BMNENERGIA)ATEE

2023 2022
—EC-=F T CF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Employee benefit expense EERMNAX(BREEFMSE)

(including directors’ remunerations):

Wages and salaries TERH® 95,140 114,809

Other employee benefits Hitfg 1@ 7| 1,348 1,200

Contributions to defined contribution TERRHFURINGTE 2 3R

retirement plans 9,594 10,819

106,082 126,828

Auditors' remuneration IZEREN B & 1,400 1429
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense TR AF X ZFEMA (FTAHERKA)

(included in cost of sales) 478,136 739,063
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% - BB R EHTE 11,452 6,180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENE 1,696 4,067
Write down of inventories, net (included in FEMR - FEGTABHERAE)

cost of sales) 5,449 [1,882
Short-term lease charges in respect of land and T RiEF 2 GBI E S )

buildings 669 978
Over-provision for litigation (included in other SFEAERRE R GT AR A ERAY) = (2,652)

operating expenses)

Professional fee (included in other operating EEBHGIARMEERY)
expenses) 5,072 12,166

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRERMEE

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

Il. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 1. EERFTEEEASHE
(@ Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () ESRTIEZEEEAEME
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, BIBRE AR TEHIE383 (R AR (R
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies EFNmERRMFE BB EFTRE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information EEBABZARFEHHMET

about Benefits of directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefit scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
e 2E RIKGER
ok RENER STEIfR MesE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
st TER THER THER TR
2023 —E-=F
Executive directors: HIEE -
Mr. Jiang Qing Hui BERLE (i = 482 = 482
Mr. Weng Zu Dian SiEmEE (ii) = 60 - 60
Dr. Liao Wenjian BEXslEL (ii) - 714 = 714
Mr. Zhao Deyong KIS (iv) = 435 9 444
- 1,691 9 1,700
Non-executive director: IRTEE -
Mr. Lin Shaopeng MABEEE 120 1,247 50 1,417
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHITEE -
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho BRERLE (v) 63 - - 63
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRIEFE 138 - - 138
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REELE (vi) 72 = - 72
Mr. Zhao Yong HBLAE 138 - - 138
411 - - 411
Total directors’ and chief executive's EERTEZEBAE
emoluments Biemsm 53 2,938 59 3,528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

Il. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 1. EERFEEBAEME(F
(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) ) EERFEEBEAEMS(E)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefit scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
oo 28 RG]
fika REDEN TR et
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it FEL TAT THAL TET
2022 —ToF
Executive directors: BiTEE
Dr. Liao Wenjan BXalEt - 900 - 900
Mr. Zhao Deyong BEK LS - 900 I8 918
Mr. Wong Kui Fai BREBLE (vi) 52 - 2 54
52 1,800 20 1,872
Non-executive director: HHITEE -
Mr. Lin Shaopeng i 120 2426 k) 2578

Independent non-executive directors: B IFETEE -

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PBRIEFE 156 - - 156
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REELE 156 - - 156
Mr. Zhao Yong HBELE 156 - - 156

468 - - 468

Total directors’ and chief executive's ZERFTEEERAER

emoluments MR 640 4226 52 4918
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FXFIRBITEE N I EEEBEART R
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the REFBEREBH L REMZNA ©

Company and the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

[I. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)
The non-executive director's emoluments shown above were
mainly for his services as director of the Company or its

subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
Notes:

(@) Appointed on 25 April 2023.

(ii) Appointed on 29 June 2023.

(iii) Resigned on 28 December 2023.

(iv) Retired on 16 June 2023.

(V) Appointed on 23 June 2023.

(vi) Retired on 16 June 2023.

(vii)  Resigned on 18 March 2022.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

years ended 3| December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no share options that had

been granted to directors.

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

1. EERFTEEEAEMES(E)

(a)

EERITEEABMNS (&)
EXFRERTEE I WS EBRARE
AR TR EHBA AEE R R TR
fit -

EXFIRBYIFAITERT M T BHA
BEEARRIEFRHZRBMA

et

(0 RZEZ=FMNA=ZT+HAEZT -

(i) RZZTZ=FAZTHLBEZRE -
(i MZTZ=FF+ZA=F+/N\BEHIT -
(v), RZZTZ=F AT BERE-

(v) RIZZ=FRAZ+=AESEF -

(i) RIZTZ=F AT BRE-

i) RZZE-—_F=A+/\BHT -
RBE-_T =R "T-"F+ "=

T BELEEMERRESHETREEA
BREXRERBEAHFM LB -

R =FR_FT__F+=RA=1—
B BECETESZBRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits
Except for those disclosed above, none of the directors received

or will receive any retirement benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporates and connected entities
with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there are no loan,
quasi-loan and other dealing arrangement in favour of the directors,
or controlled body corporates and connected entities of such
directors (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

On |6 December 2022, the Company entered into the
Convertible Bonds (the “CB") Subscription Agreement with the
subscriber, a corporation controlled by the director, Mr. Jiang Qing
Hui ("Mr. Jiang”). On 20 April 2023, the completion of the CB
subscription took place and CB in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$ 14,000,000 were issued to Mr. Jiang. On 24 May 2023, the
CB were converted into 63,636,364 shares. During the year ended
31 December 2023, there are no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2022:
Nil).

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
one director (2022: three directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note || above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining

four (2022: two) individuals are as follows:

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

IVGEEHESME
AEEAKRBRAUREHREETE (=T
—FEZMEFE Me2HBEN EXXHE
e BTHEA(ZTEZF : MA)ALTZEE
FEMT

2023 2022

—ZE_-= T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERLNEYRIE 4,519 3,905
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFETEI R 153 96
4,672 4001

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

WHARRREERFMN FUTHE 2 RS H
BEHBEWT :

Number of individuals

A"
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000/ 7T 2

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000/ 7T

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed for both years, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

A
RAEFEY DBk EMRE - RE]
SRS EEOREMRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

14.  (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BR(ER)ER
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) eamings per share attributable RARRAEAEABRETRERLEG(BE) AT
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: THRAT RS
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FHET
(Loss) earnings (EBHE) &R
(Loss) earnings attributable to owners of the Mt HEERERLEE ()BT
Company for the purposes of basic and FrRAZ AREIHEE A
diluted (loss) eamnings per share FE1h (E18) &R (28,650) 8,079
’000 '000
TR T
Number of shares BRBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEATE @R T
in issue 450,401 366,186
No adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share for the year BHE S -_=F+-_B=1+—HBHULFEFESE
ended 31 December 2023 as the conversion of convertible bonds would s E B W RETAE  HERIBRE
result in decrease in loss per share. Accordingly, the diluted loss per share HFEENMEGRERRY - At - SREEEE
is the same as the basic loss per share (2022: No diluted eamings per HEREANGEMRER(ZSE-—_F : AR WEA
share was presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue). BMEEH 7B BTEERE D c RILE A2

BEERA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR MR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BERRB
Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements Machinery ~ equipment  vehicles in progress Total

i

RER

g BE  MWAE
HERT  WRKE  REE R RE  ERIR AR
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
TiEx TEx TEx  TEx TER TEx TER

2023 —E-=f
At | January 2023 R=Z==%-A-H
Cost or valuation B E 102,000 5567 69,798 4424 5548 - 07,137
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  25HTE RRE - G311)  (62889)  (40228) (3892 - (112,320)
Carrying amount REE 102,000 256 6,909 399 1,65 - 114817
Year ended 3| December 2023 BE-2-=F
+ZA=+-HLEE
Opening net canrying amount FNREFE 102,000 256 6,909 3,99 1,656 - 114817
Addition g - 436 6,018 2057 2939 1653 13,103
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries AWM B FILE = = 513 py) 34 809 1,378
Transfer 2 - - 2,334 - = (2334) =
Disposals (L& = = (409) () - = (415)
Deficit on revaluation EffEA (1,114) = = = = - (L4
Depreciation e (4,435) (458) (3,564) (2,152) (843) - (11,452
Exchange realignment 3T (451) (39) (343) (114) (34) 24 (953)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 96,000 199 11458 3803 3752 152 115364
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+=-A=+-H
Cost or valuation KAER A 96,000 5876 72502 45574 8493 152 228597
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z&HTE KRE - (5.677)  (61,044)  (4L771)  (4741) - (113233)
Carrying amount EHE 96,000 199 11,458 3,803 3,752 152 115364
Analysis of cost or valuation: BAEHEER
At cost TN - 199 11458 3803 3752 152 19364
At valuation RItE 96,000 - - - = - 96000
96,000 199 11458 3803 3752 152 115364
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

I5. 1% BERRE(E)

Fumiture,
fixture
Leasehold Leasehold ~ Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings ~ improvements ~ Machinery  equipment  vehicles in progress Total
Ui
RER
ME BE  BAE
MERT nERE RS ®E RE  ERIE &
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TR TEx TExr  FTAET  TEx T Thn
2022 —EC-CF
At | January 2022 R=Z-=F-f-H
Cost or valuation RAERRE 102,765 6351 75751 £42 6391 2439 37119
Accumulated depreciation and 2HMERAE
impairment - (6351)  (75751) (43269)  (5075) - (130446)
Carrying amount KmEE 102,765 - - 153 1316 2439 106,673
Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ-E-__#+-H=1-H
LLFE
Opening net carrying amount FOREFE 102,765 - - 153 1316 2439 106673
Addition wE - 254 5264 3443 849 - 9810
Disposals (& - - (750) (56) (104) 231y (32210
Surplus on revaluation BfERH 11350 - - - - - 11,350
Depreciation e (4,282) (46) (1,144) (350) (358) - (6180
Exchange realignment A% (7.833) 49 3539 806 47) (128) (3614
Disposal of subsidiary HEMBAR - 0) - - - - 0
Closing net carrying amount FRERFE 102,000 256 6909 399 1656 - 114817
At 31 December 2022 R-E--#+-B=+-H
Cost or valuation RAERfE 102000 5567 69798 4424 5548 ALY
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERRE
impairment - (531 (62889 (40228)  (3892) - (112320
Carrying amount EAE 102,000 25 6909 3996 1,656 - 114817
Analysis of cost or valuation: BAEREEDT
At cost IR - 256 6909 399% 165 - 12817
At valuation BftE 102,000 - - - - ~ 102000
102,000 256 6909 3996 1,656 - 114817
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for

construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold buildings

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and

Over the remaining lease terms of 23 years
(2022: 24 years)

10% to 33%

6.67% to 15%

15% to 20%

office equipment

Motor vehicles

@

(®)

)

20%

The carrying amounts of the leasehold buildings of the Group at 31
December 2023 would have been approximately HK$32,555,000
(2022: HK$34,035,000) had they been carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's leasehold buildings in the PRC
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$96,000,000 (2022:
HK$102,000,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 27).

The leasehold buildings situated in the PRC of HK$96,000,000 (2022:
HK$102,000,000 ) are located on the leasehold lands as disclosed

in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurement of the Group's leasehold buildings

The Group's leasehold buildings were revalued on 31 December

2023 and 2022 by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified

professional valuer not connected to the Group.

15.

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE T =F+_A=t+-HLEFE

M BERREE)

EIME - BE &R

RBEEB (EEITRERIN R

INTFERERERENE -

HERTF LRI EF B34
(ZZT =% : 245)

HEMERE 10%%33%

R Nt es 6.67%Z 5%

B - BERPAE  15%E20%

B

E 20%

(2) MWEREKABRBFNESE - AEE M
EEFR_Z_=F+-"A=1+—HZK

(b)

(d)

E A4 532,555,000 (&= —

34,035,000/ 7T) ©

R-ZE_=ZF+-—A=+—8  A&EEF
BEFAEEZ —RRITEEMERCR
FEHEEET - BREEA&96,000000
BIL(ZZF = 4 : 102,000,000/ 7T) (M
F27) e

CURFBE2EAEEFOHERMEAR
96,000,000/ 7c( =F = =4 : 102,000,000
HEIT) IR R E M S MR M 5T | 6P #E 58
ZHELTME o

AEEHERFZAAENE

AEEZHEEFR _TE_ZFR_F—
ZHF+ A=+ —HAREXrEEWERE
2B A B R EMEMKAITRE R
BRAFEITER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

I5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

©)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s leasehold buildings

(Continued)

Due to the nature of buildings and structures, and absence of
sufficient market data, the fair value of the leasehold buildings was
determined based on the depreciated replacement cost approach
calculated based on the current cost of replacement of a property
less deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and optimisation. The valuations were carried
out by RHL, which has among their staff members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The Group’s finance
department worked closely and had discussions with RHL on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation was
performed at the annual reporting date. There has been no change

to the valuation technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the leasehold buildings, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s leasehold
buildings measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS |3 “Fair Value Measurement”. The leasehold
buildings located in the PRC are measured at Level 3 fair value

category as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

15.

M BERRE(E)

(d)

AEEHEERFTZAREME(E)

MREBTRBEY ZMHERRZRAZT
B8E MEBFZAAEBNERTE
EERTEREVERBZEBERAR
BERFELMERBER ZRE RE(L

H)ETE - BRAMERKFITET - £3
METIRBABAEMBEEBYHMHE
MEZWEHFERG MG ELR - K&
B MM E RN e FRE B METHER

BEAMITEZ AL I mEERRREE
R - RAFEHERMLEZS -
SUEFTHEEFARENS - WRZ&ER
REEERERERE ZEMRE -
RAMERS
TREVNNAEEHEERFZAAME - IR

REHRIREEHELEFE  UDARSE
BB MEERE 135 A EAE AR
EZ=ZMAREERR - LRFPEzBEER
FR-ZF-_ZFR-_F-__F+-_A=+
—HREB=ZROAEERIFE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. % - BERRB(E)
(d)  Fair value measurement of the Group's leasehold buildings (d) AEEHEEEFsARBEFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RAERF(E)
Fair value as at Fair value as at
Fair value 31 December Fair value 31 December
hierarchy 2023 hierarchy 2022
R-B-=F RZEB_ZF
TZA=t-H +ZA=t-H
DRERE ZRR DAERR ZBNfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Leasehold buildings in the PRC Bz HEET Level 3 96,000 Level 3 102,000
B=R E
Less: costs of impairment loss W REEERAR - -
96,000 102,000
s — 3 — — — = — — — /=
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were BE-S-_=FR-F-_FT-A=T
B = |, Para ara g— \\// E
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out FILFRE - - MRE-MZ ML HS
of Level 3. % MEEASNEHEZR -
=45 =] Bt oo vy
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements AHE=RO L ETBHEH
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 HE—Fo=FR=F-_F1T=A=1
—HIEFE
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input Sensitivity
fHERD EATUEENGARE HRE
Leasehold buildings Depreciated replacement Recent general construction cost, taking into account the A significant increase in construction cost
in the PRC cost approach differences in location and the age of property, at a rate of would result in a significant increase in
RMBI,918 (2022: RMBI,965) per square metre. fair value, and vice versa.
RPEEERT FEEERAA L2 —MREERA - Ehat RE R RigknE BERNAEE MEH DA EAMEE
£ BFARARKIIST(ZEZZ2F « ARE e RZIA -
19657C) ©
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS FHEEE
Leasehold lands  Leased properties Total
HELTH BEWE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=5+"H=+—H
Carrying amount BRTEIE 3,155 2,995 6,150
As at 31 December 2022 RZBEZZF+-RA=+—H
Carrying amount AREE 3299 3820 7,119
For the year ended 3| December 2023 BE-—E-_=f+=-A=+—8
LFE
Depreciation charge WEER 144 1,552 1,696
For the year ended 3| December 2022 HE-_Z-—H+-A=+—H
EFE
Depreciation charge HEER 144 3923 4,067
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Expense relating to short-term leases RHATH EAERAF 669 978
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRE A5 2,443 4,238
Additions to right-of-use assets EINEREEE 657 6,579
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W BB M B A | (MEE35) 105 -
For both years, the Group leases various offices and industrial buildings RREFE  ASEHEZEARAERIEX
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of | EAHEE - HESHZEEFHR—FEN
year to 9 years (2022: | year to 5 years), but may have extension and F(ZZZ—F: —FE2RHF) O TXAM

termination options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated

on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and

conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the

non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and

determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

A PR R - BEGRIIZE R & E5E
& BERSETRAGR RGN - RETHEER
AHE AT BGH 2 HIRES - ARBEAS Y
ZERWEEARNBHMITZHHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
The lease arrangements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets

may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's leasehold land under right-of-use
assets in the PRC with carrying amounts of approximately HK$3,155,000
(2022: HK$3,299,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 27).

The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease and are situated
in the PRC.

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

EREEE(E)
MERHL EEINEARE  HEEEELKR
R EERERR

RZZEZ=F+-—A=+—H  A5EE@EE
493,155,000/ 7T ( Z 2 = — 4 : 3299,000/8 7T)
URHPBEREEERE T HE B H T
EAREERTE —MIBTHE 2 BR(MEF27) -

HETDHRTPHHEHERSS - XURFEH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

7. LOAN RECEIVABLES

17. EWER

2023 2022

—E'=-= =S

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Fixed-rate loan receivables TEEEWER 16,126 16,733
Less: provision of ECL B REEEEERE (16,126) (16,733)

The gross carrying amount of HK$16,126,000 (2022: HK$16,733,000) is
assessed on the lifetime ECL. The reversal of ECL on the loan receivables
amounted to HK$600,000 (2022: HK$400,000) during the year ended 31
December 2023, details of which are set out in note 37(b).

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing the
loss allowance for loan receivables.

As at 3| December 2023, the Groups loan receivables of HK$ 16,126,000
(2022: HK$16,733,000) were individually determined to be impaired.

8. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

BR T 42 5 16,1260008 o — & — — &
16,733,000/ 7T ) Jhiz = HiTE Bl = B 18 1757
H - BE_E-_ZF+_A=1+—HILFE -
JEW B F A TE HAE B R 188 Bl £600,000/8 7T ( =

37(b) ©

T 4 : 4000008 7T) © BRI BENME

RARSHA - FEHERERE BB EO -

TERERBRIL EES) -

RZZE_=F+_-F=+—H  HrEFEKE
16,126,000 ( = = =4 : 16,733,000/ 7T)

EEBIEE SRE

18. REtERNTER

2023 2022

—EB-=F - F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Share of net assets PMEEEFE = 10,000
Impairment (note i) BB (M T - (10,000)

174 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group's interests in associates is as follow:

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE
18. REf&E AT RER(E)
REERBERNR ZERABET

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest/
Form of incorporation/ voting rights/
Name of company business structure operation profit share Principal activities
FEEkR
MR, et Yl
NEEE EBEBRR B HENEDE TEXK
Bright Triumph Development Limited Corporation PRC 0% (2022: 40%) Investment holding
S ERER AT 0% (=F==
(Bright Triumph Development Limited) NI g F 1 40%) "EZER
Notes: Mt -
(0] During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment loss of (i) HE_Z-__H#+-A=+—HILFE B

HK$10,000,000 was recognised in respect of the Group's interest in
associates based on the recoverable amount, being the higher of value in
use and fair value less cost of disposal, determined by the management.

EHEETNAKRESEERERAARER
AHERRENRSE) KB R E AR
iR - FERURIEE 18 10,000,000/ 7T ©

(i) The 40% shares of associates was pledged to the lender of borrowing (ii) & N T 40% B9 AR 0 3 E 30 7 612,00078 7T E K
amount HK$612,000 and interest payable HK$246,000. On 30 December 246,000 RN SHET - RZB_=%
2023, the lender exercise the right on the 40% shares in settlement of Jr:ﬂ =18 EFITE40%R 5 EF)EE
the borrowing and interest payable. As part of the transaction, the lender = RRERFE - 1’!575%&%5']*%3 -V
also took over an amount of HK$1,623,000 due from Billion Pride Group T*MFEW$E E2EMBRAREBEREEGRA
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group to the associate. Thus, TJEH%&%’A TZ#\IEI 623, OOO/%E o [t -
resulting in a gain on disposal of interests of associates of approximately EE BB R RIS 2 W4 /52,480,000
HK$2,480,000. JC °
19. #&
INVENTORIES
2023 2022
—EB-=HF T CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Raw materials R 22,786 23,831
Work in progress TEEE M 34,357 36,117
Finished goods BRI B 17,999 22,026
75,142 81,974
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

200 EYEE

Reconciliation of carrying amount of the Group’s biological assets: REBNEYEERTDEYEE :
2023 2022
—EC=F —EooF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At | January m—A—H = =
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries HEM B ARRES 86 =
Changes in fair value less costs to sell DRERIEERARE 13 -
Increase due to plantation EEE LN 1,020 =
Decrease due to harvest WEIE B (283) -
Exchange realignment M 3, F 4) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 832 -

The biological assets are measured at level 3 fair value category as at 3|

December 2023. The increase in fair value of biological assets for the year

ended of approximately HK$13,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

The Group has engaged Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent

valuation firm, to determine the fair value of the biological assets as at 31

December 2023 (the “Valuation Date”).

i. Valuation techniques and assumptions

The valuation technique used is the discounted cash flow method

under income approach it requires to assess a series of variables,

which include the discount rate, attrition rate, planting costs and

market prices of vegetables, etc. The values of such variables are

determined by the independent valuers using information supplied

by the Group, proprietary and third-party data as well as under

some assumptions. Major assumptions adopted for valuation are

listed below:

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

RZZE-_=F+_A=+—H  4£WEEXS
“RAREDEE  c FREWMEEQ A (EE
DAY 13,0008 TTERREBERPER -

AEBDZBEBYGEATREIHAER QA
ErEwWEEN _ ST -_=F+_-_A=+—H
(MEEBHHBMRARE -

i. EELERER

A EREZERBAETHIRR €
nREE EREBME—RIEE - BER
EOTHRE IBREX - BEKARTSEE
BE  REEENBERBEIGHEMER
REERMNER  FARE=FHEL
EETRETETE - HERANEERK
wm



20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR MR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

There will be no force majeure, including natural disasters
that could adversely impact the conditions of the biological

assets and their harvest;

For the Group to continue as a going concem, the Group
will successfully carry out all necessary activities for the

development of its business;

Market trends and conditions where the Group operates
will not deviate significantly from the economic forecasts in

general;

The availability of finance will not be a constraint on the
forecast growth of the biological assets in accordance with

projected harvest of the biological assets;

Key management, competent personnel and technical staff
will all be retained to support the ongoing operations of the

Group;

There will be no material changes in the Group’s business

strategy and its operating structure;

Interest rates and exchanges rates in the localities for the
operation of the Group will not differ materially from those

presently prevailing;

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued) 20, EYEE(E)
Reconciliation of carrying amount of the Group’s biological assets: REBWEYWESERAEYER (&)
(Continued)
i Valuation techniques and assumptions (Continued) i FEFERBR(E)
s The projected produce selling price is based on the market . B ERINEEBRBEMEEKRE
price; el

TEETRHENEERRE LN
M2 EREETRE RO TTRA
FH(REARLE):

ﬁ$%I%ﬁEﬁfﬁé R
C ARBERKIIAERREER
%Eﬁﬁzfﬂ%xﬁﬁ?

REBRKERMEZTHBE RN
ER LB TeRERBEQETRA

BREWMEEZETRK - BEZ
TRAEBTEREMEERRER
Z K

TEERAR  AEBAERRKIM
ANEEBRE  UXHAERZ
SEKEE

e PRIV EY T A
TEEEAR

REBEERAENTT 2 M = K [E =
BAERRITEAERAER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)
Reconciliation of carrying amount of the Group’s biological assets:

(Continued)

I.

Valuation techniques and assumptions (Continued)

O All relevant approvals, business certificates, licenses or
other legislative or administrative authority from any local,
provincial or national government, or private entity or
organization required to operate in the localities where
the Group operates or intends to operate will be officially
obtained and renewable upon expiry unless otherwise

stated; and

. There will be no major changes in the political, legal,
economic or financial conditions and taxation laws in the
localities in which the Group operates or intends to operate,
which would adversely affect the revenues and profits
attributable to the Group after the harvest of the biological

assets.

Unobservable inputs

The major inputs for the above valuation models are discount rate,

attrition rate and market prices of vegetables.

The values of such inputs are as follows:

a. The discount rate applied for the year ended 31 December
2023 was 8%.

b. Attrition rate and expected unit selling price from 5% to
30% and from JPY500 to JPY'1,200 per kg respectively.

The higher the discount rate and attrition rate, the lower the fair

value.

The higher the estimated vegetables per kg and market prices of

vegetables, the higher the fair value.

The fair value measurement is based on the above biological
assets’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual

use.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

21. ERWEZFIE

2023 2022

—E-=F T F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Trade receivables, gross FEUE 5 IR 71,657 75951
Less: provision of ECL B FEEMEE S EERE (1,175) (4,448)
Trade receivables, net FEUE 5 5EF 5 70,482 71,503

At as 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers amounted to approximately
HK$71,657,000 (2022: HK$75,951,000).

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of provision
of ECL) presented based on the invoice dates which are approximate to
the revenue recognition date:

R-_FE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 BFA
HWEEZERESFNEZEARENR
71,657,000 0 ( =& = =4 : 75,951,000
BIT) o

AT RREEAH(EEAERRBEE)
2 EMF AR EEBRBEER ZEK
BHRBZIRE DT

2023 2022

—E-=HF - F

HK$°’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

0 to 30 days 0&30K 30,820 68,251
31 to 90 days 31E90K 39,385 315
Over 90 days 90KRPAE 277 2937
70,482 71,503

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit with
credit periods generally ranging from 30 to 60 days. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables, and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. Trade receivables are

non-interest bearing.

ECL of trade receivables

Movements in the impairment allowance on trade receivables

AEBEEAEFPNERREESATLE
HHER BERZEEH KN FIOXRE
60K ° AREBERNBRBIZEHEREE 2E
Wi - UREEEeEMERBYR &
B o BUE SR EEAERE -

BURESREZBAREEEE
B 5 M 2R IR R R

2023 2022

—EBE-=F =T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

| January —H—H 4,448 12,628
Reversal of ECL allowance TEEREE BB REHRE (4,448) (12,349)
Provision of ECL allowance TEE B BB EE 1,175 4,169
31 December +=ZA=+—8H 1,175 4,448
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and a collective basis.
The provision of ECL for receivables is recognised based on the credit
history of its customers, indication of financial difficulties, default in
payments, and current market conditions. After the above assessment
performed by the directors of the Company, reversal of a provision of
ECL of HK$3,273,000 (2022: HK$8,181,000) was provided for current
year and the directors consider that the trade debtors are of good credit

quality.

21.

EWESRE(E)
EAEEREZERESRERES
REBEIR - AEBZRER R m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
WEZHRERETR - BUKIBENTEBREEE
BREDRBEEZEFPHEELS - WBRER
R BREFRBAIMBEAMER - LXK
ARESRED L% RAFEEED
3,273,000 c( — T = — 4 : 8,18 oooi%ﬁ)iﬁ
HEEBERERRE  ZEERREKES
WEEEZRI -

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor WRAWEMELNKERRECRRESIFIELZ
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: R AT :
2023 2022
—EC=F —ECCF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT T
Neither past due nor impaired 7 48 360 HA TR AR (B 64,386 62,537
Past due but not impaired B A ERE
Less than | month past due ﬁﬁﬂd —f{EA 5819 5714
| to 3 months past due BE—E==1{EA = 315
Over 3 months past due @gﬂ:f.ﬁ AE 277 2,937
70,482 71503
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to KRB EREZEWSE 5 HE ST &
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. R T REAR -
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired are related to a CHfEERE ENEFRELEAERAS

number of independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does

not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ANRE REREBERKE
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Prepayments (note i) TR RIE (B ati) 12,109 3,332
Value-added tax recoverable arising from toys MASRES 2 ALREISER
segment 2,555 360
Rental deposits Hemse 431 419
Others (note ii) Al (Hati) 11,185 [1,657
26,280 15,768
Analysed as b2l
Non-current R 164 414
Current RE 26,116 15,354
26,280 15,768
Notes: Mt
[0) Prepayment included the prepayment paid to suppliers amounting to (i) BENREBREEN FHERZEMNKIE

HK$8,329,000 (2022: HK$2,822,000).

(ii) As at 3| December 2023 and 2022, others included the outstanding
consideration receivables of approximately HK$8,600,000 from the
purchaser of the Bright Trimph Development Limited. Detail is set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) The Group recognised lifetime ECL for other receivables based on
individually significant debtors or the ageing of debtors collectively that are
not individually significant by reference to past default experience of the
debtor at the reporting date.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.0001% to
1% per annum (2022: 0.01% to 1% per annum). The bank balances were

deposited with banks with no recent history of default.

For the year ended 3| December 2022 and 2023, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that the
probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and

accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

23.

8,329,000/ TT(—ZF = —4F : 2,822,000/& L) °

(i) RZZ_=FrR-_FT-_—_F+-A=+—80"
H A5 A FEU S e 3 & B IR 22 A (Bright Triumph
Development Limited) B 77 2 & fF R (B 4
8,600,000/ 7T ° FFIFHMNERE M IS IRKPITT34 -

iy AEEDEREARCEBABTENLR -
BREENBEAZEBALERNETIEBERZ
B A 2 H R BR B T i R A b JE Wk TE 2 & 8
TAEEEEE -

RITEBRREES
RITRBETIBFREROIBRIE(ZE=Z
F - FHEOOIERIE)FHE » RITHEBRTHA
RIE IR AR08 2 8RAT ©

HE-_Z-_—_FR-_F-_=F+-A=+—H
WHFE - AEBEYRTEBETRE]E - 5/
LERARSEHARITENOHTEETK - B
I ARBFHIREEBERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. ENEZRE
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on NTREEZEHZI 2 ENE S HIEZ KRR
the invoice date: DT
2023 2022
—E-=HF T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
0 to 30 days 0F30K 79,205 74351
31 to 90 days 3IE90K 45,181 19,472
Over 90 days 90RLAE 46,155 43,288
170,541 137,111
The trade payables are expected to be settled within one year. [EE SFIBIERER —FREE -
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HMENREARETEM
2023 2022
—EC-=H T CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Accrued staff costs FEFH B TR 12,537 16,675
Accruals &R 21,015 22,484
Other payables E b FEATRUE 17,837 18,098
Provision of goods retum RERE 6,271 14,449
Tenant deposits received BRHEFZES = 189
Acquisition payable due to non-controlling JEAST B8 7 B 122 e 2o ) UK e £
interests of a subsidiary FIE 1,700 -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JEAST BT 8 2 B SRR A 2 5R0E
of a subsidiary 63 -
59,423 71,895
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26, EHNRME
2023 2022
—EB=-= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Deposits received from customers BREFPES 1,154 1,544
182 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T-=F1+-A=1+-BLEE

27. BORROWINGS 27. EX
2023 2022
—EB=F =S
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) HK$’000 interest rate (%) HK$'000
EHRIE%) FHERT B RIFNE (%) FAT
Bank loans
RITER
— secured (note a) Fixed rates ranging from
— R (Kiita) Fixed rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.85% per annum
3.85% to 6.30% per annum EijaklEs
BEEREEF3I85EE630E 163,097 FE400EE585E 112,281

Corporate bond

PEES
— secured (note b) Fixed rate at
—BEM (K 5Eb) Fixed rate at 6.75% per annum
6.75% per annum & &
BlIERREGF6.75E 45,000 FF675E 45,000
Term loans
BHER
— secured (note ¢) Fixed rate at
—BEM (A ) Fixed rate at 12.00% per annum
12.00% per annum I 7 2%
BERNREF12.00E 17,000 FF 12002 17,000
— secured (note d) Fixed rate at
—BEM (A itd) Fixed rate at 12.00% per annum
12.00% per annum & E F =
BlERNREF12.00E 5,000 FF 12002 15,000
Other loan
HA &R
— secured (note €) Fixed rate at
—BEM (A ite) 2.50% per month
[E] 3 A
- FA2502 612
Sub-total of secured borrowings
BEREF G 230,097 189,893

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

27.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

27. ER(E

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) HK$’000 interest rate (%) HK$'000
EHFIE %) FHERT B HIFNE (%) FH&T
Revolving loan
EREH
— unsecured (note f) Fixed rate at
— IR ([ 521) Fixed rate at 12.00% per annum
12.00% per annum [&] 7 |
BIEANREF12.00E 8,000 FF 1200 -
Other loan
HAth B
— unsecured (note g) Fixed rate at
— KR (A atg) 2.50% per month
[B] 3 7
- FA250E 1,050
Sub-total unsecured borrowings
EIARER T 8,000 1,050
238,097 190,943

The above loans are measured at amortised costs.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s leasehold buildings
and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$96,000,000 and HK$3,155,000 respectively
(2022: leasehold buildings and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$102,000,000 and
HK$3,299,000 respectively), as disclosed in notes |5 and |6 respectively
and are due during 12 April 2024 to |5 September 2024.

The total banking facilities granted to the Group amounted to
RMB 160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$176,561,000) (2022:
RMBI141,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$157,842,000)) of which
approximately RMB147,799,000 (equivalent to HK$163,097,000) (2022:
RMB100,301,000 (equivalent to HK$112,281,000)) were utilised as at 31
December 2023. On 16 March 2024, an extension agreement for the
banking facilities was entered into between the Group and the bank to
extend the facilities to |13 December 2024.

On 7 December 2016, corporate bonds amounted to HK$45,000,000 were
issued by the Company to an independent third party, bearing interest at 6%
per annum and payable semi-annually in arrears, and with maturity in two
years, and are secured by shares of a subsidiary of the Company.

The corporate bonds had become due and payable on its maturity date of
6 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the Group defaulted on the
repayment of the corporate bonds and further negotiated with the bond
holder for extension. On 23 August 2019, by successfully entering into
a deed of waiver and a supplemental deed poll to the bond instrument
executed by the Company, the Group was discharged and released from
the obligation and liabilities which arose from the default and the maturity
date had been extended to 30 September 2020. The corporate bonds
then bore interest at 6.75% per annum from 7 December 2018 to 30
September 2020. On 27 December 2019, an extension deed had been
signed, whereby the maturity date had been extended to 31 March 2021.
On 29 March 2021, another extension deed was signed, whereby the
maturity date was further extended to 31 March 2022. On 29 March 2022,
another extension deeds were signed, whereby the maturity date was
further extended to 31 March 2023.

On 13 May 2020, the Group obtained a term loan of HK$ 11,000,000 at a
fixed rate of 129 per annum from an independent third party, with maturity
in one year. The loan is secured by pledge of shares of a subsidiary of
the Group and a first floating charge over the assets of a subsidiary of the
Group to the lender.

The term loan was payable on its maturity date of 13 May 2021. On 13
March 2021, the Group entered into an extension agreement to extend
the maturity date to |3 May 2022. On 30 June 2021, an additional
loan was obtained from the same independent third party amounted
of HK$6,000,000 under the same terms. On 19 April 2022, the Group
extended the maturity date to 13 May 2023. On 8 May 2023, the Group
further extended the maturity date to |3 May 2025.

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023

BE-B-—HE+-B=+-RALEE
27. B (E)
Wi
() BOASZPMAEEFEAEEETERERD

(®)

A1 %796,000,0007 7T K& 3,155,000/ T 2 FHEEF
EHEEL(= CFAEEETRRA
B 5Bl & #%9102,000,000% 7T % 3,299,0005% 7T 2
HEEFREE ) REER - S BIRMEEIS
FKI6HE  IR-_Z_WNFHNA+=-HE=-Z
—HMENRA+RBEE -

=

REBEBRZBTERRBEAARE
160,000,000 7T (F#EE R 49176,561,000% 7T) (=
T-—F: AR 141,000000T(HERY
157,842,000/ L)) * B = 7”::¢+fﬂ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

27.

BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

©)

()

On 25 January 2021, the Group obtained a term loan of HK$15,000,000
at a fixed rate of 12% per annum from an independent third party, with a
maturity in one year. The loan is secured by a first floating charge over all
the undertaking property and assets of a subsidiary of the Group to the
lender.

The term loan was payable on its maturity date of 27 April 2021. On 29
March 2021, the Group extended the maturity date to 27 April 2022. On
19 April 2022, the Group extended the maturity date to 27 April 2023. On
| September 2023, the Group further extended the maturity date to 27
April 2025 and the outstanding principal amount of HK$5,000,000.

On | August 2022, the Group obtained a loan of HK$612,000 at a fixed
rate of 2.5% per month from a major shareholder of an associate, which
would be matured in one year. The loan is secured by the pledge of 40%
shares of interest in the associate. During the year ended 31 December
2023, 40% interest in the associate was transferred to a major shareholder
of the associate. Therefore, the loan of HK$612,000 were considered fully
settled.

The revolving loan was granted by a substantial shareholder of the
Company, guaranteed by the Company and repayable within one year.
On 8 October 2019, the Group entered into an extension agreement to
extend the maturity date to 30 September 2020. On 3| December 2019,
the Group entered into another extension agreement to further extend the
maturity date to 31 March 2021. According to the extension deed, a first
floating charge over the assets of a subsidiary of the Group as a security
to the lender, was executed on 7 February 2020. On 29 March 2021, the
Group entered into an extension agreement to further extend the maturity
date to 31 March 2022. On 3| March 2022, the Group entered into an
extension agreement to further extend the maturity date to 31 March
2023. On 31 March 2023, the Group entered into a supplemental loan
agreement to revise the aggregate principal amount from HK$50,000,000 to
HK$35,000,000. The Group has extended the maturity date to 31 March
2025.

The revolving loans utilised with carrying amount of HK$8,000,000 (2022:
Nil) had unutilised amount of HK$27,000,000 (2022: HK$50,000,000) as at
31 December 2023.

On 30 September 2022, the Group obtained a loan of HK$!1,000,000 at
a fixed rate of 2.5% per month from a purchaser of the Bright Triumph
Development Limited (“Bright Triumph™), which was unsecured and would
mature in one year. During the year ended 3| December 2023, the whole
outstanding amount of the revolving loan was repaid.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

27.

B&(E)
et - (&

(d)

)

(g

(&

R-ZTE-_—F—F-+FHAB  AEER KB
SN EZHEEAEBERI50000008 T 0 BEEE
FEABI2% R—FRIE - BABRARE
E-—ENBARIMERAREAELENER
BEME —ZEIREIERER -

BHERBER _ZE-_—FNA-+tHIHA
HE RZTE-Z—F=A=+NA  A£EBEE
BHBHAEE_T_—_FMWA=Z++tH - K=
T _FNA+NRA  AEBEBEHBEEE
ZE-=FWMAZF++tH - RZE=-_=FNA
—B - AEERE—FRIHPAEE=_T=
FOAZ+EH - REEXEA500000087T °

RZZE-_—_FNA—HB  KEEEBHLRTHN
FTERRES—ZETHEEA2ENER
612,000/87C - R—FNEH - EEE AR
NEA0BE RIEIE AR - BE T -=F1
ZRA=T—HLEFE  BERT4UHNERD
ERTHENTN—BREIERE - At - X
612,000/ TR BEBBUEE -

BREEFAARATEREREEARAQAE
R EYBER—FREE R-_ZT—AE+AN
B AEBEFTCERBEAGISHBATERE =
Z_EFAA=Z+H  -R_ZT—hhEFE+_A=
+—HB  AEEF IR HERRHAGE S
AE— S ERE_T-_—F=ZA=+—08 1§
BEHRE  AEE—FXWBARZEAENS
—FEIHRE ERBRTERAZER  BERZ
EZ_EF_AEARMT R —F=A=
+hB - AEEFTNERRE - UE—FEE
HAEEz—_ZE-_—F=A=+—H  -HR=ZF=
—HE=ZA=+—H AEEEFIIHEER
W B AR E—SEE_T-=F
Z—A=t—H -R-_ZE-_=F=ZA=+—8 -
AEBRNRITERBRZ  BASRHE
50,000,000 JTL & ] 35,000,000/ 7T ° KA&EEH
B AEE TS -_RAF=A=+—0H -

R-ZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H BREXRZ
2 8 A R T {8 48,000,000 T( —ZZT = — 4 :
Z) - MAEALEEH27,0000008T(ZF ==
£ 1 50,000,000 7T) °

A

RZZE-_—FhhA=1+H AEEENREE
ERAR(AENDNERES —FEREATHN XS
F2SEMER  ZEZEERAEEBL A —F
REH - HE-T-_=F+-A=1+—HLHF
E - BEEFNEZIAEESEHCEE -



28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEEE
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE
Within one year —ER 1,529 1,969
Within a period of more than one year but A —FERE RN 2 HAH
not more than two years 782 1,214
Within a period of more than two years but FRBRA G 1B A6 A2 BAfE
not more than five years 1,076 1,605
3,387 4,788
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 B RBNBERTRR 1 2E A A B A E T
months shown under current liabilities LA (1,529) (1969)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months BB B ERTRR 1218 A& B B E
shown under non-current liabilities A 1,858 2,819

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial

position, certain deferred tax liabilities have been offset. The following is

the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

29.

EERBREE

REINGEMBARERME - ETEREHRER
BEETEE - U T HAMBHRSBENETZE
SR TRRE RO

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Deferred tax liabilities FEERBEE 16,245 16411
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 29. EEHRIEBEERE(Z)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised U TARAEERBEEERA Y & XELEFR
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: BEER(BE)E
Accelerated tax Revaluation  Biological ~ Withholding
depreciation  of properties Assets tax Total
EBERE MEER 4ENEE SEIE B
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TAT TETr  TERL TRT TEL
Deferred tax arising from: EXBUTER ZEERE
At | January 2022 RZE-=—F—f—H 10 22210 - 1446 23666
Deferred tax (credited) charged to REERER G R ZEEFHIE
profit or loss for the year (note 9) (Hzt9) (10) (5,685) - 150 (5,545)
Deferred tax charged to other REFRAMZENRIRZ
comprehensive income for the year EIEHE - 463 - - 463
Exchange realignment i 5 A% - (1,901 - Q) 2173
At 31 December 2022 W-E-—#+-F=1+—H - 15,087 - 1,324 16411
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss for  AFERIBRME ZIBERE(M719)
the year (note 9) 15 = 20 2,229 2,264
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ehéa1n VN = = I = [l
Deferred tax charged to other AEEREMEZERS MR
comprehensive expense for the year EERR = (2,220 = = (2,220
Exchange realignment I 5L A% = (202) = (19) (221)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F+=-fA=1+-H 15 12,665 3l 3,534 16,245

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$224,550,000 (2022: HK$205,539,000)
available for offset against future profits. As of 31 December 2023, the
management of the Group reassessed the recoverability of deferred
tax assets and no deferred tax asset (2022: nil) has been recognised in
respect of such losses. As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the amounted to HK$224,550,000 (2022:
HK$205,539,000 ) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has tax losses arising in the PRC
of RMB6,649,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,337,000) (2022:
RMB8,474,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,487,000)) available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward for up to five
years for EIT purpose. Deferred tax assets on these tax losses have not
been recognised as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available for the companies in

which losses arose.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 14 October 2022 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
the Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreements with two subscribers
(Convertible Bonds A), pursuant to which the subscribers have
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue, convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up
to HK$22,500,000 based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.25 per

conversion share.

The issue of the Convertible Bonds A were completed on 20 April
2023 and 22 May 2023 and the Company has issued an aggregate
principal amount of HK$2,500,000 and HK$20,000,000 respectively of
the convertible bonds. Subscribers to the convertible bonds are entitled
to convert at a conversion price of HK$0.25 per share and a maximum
of 90,000,000 shares. If the convertible bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed by the Company on the maturity date of the
convertible bonds on 31 December 2024.

29.

30.

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE T =F+_A=t+-HLEFE

EEHREEE(E)

RBER AEERBEBEEZRDARE
[E548224,550,000/8 7T ( =2 = — £ : 205,539,000
B A AEREARARET BEZTZ=F
+ZA=+—H8  AEEEEEENIHEL
MEEEZAREY  TERZEEERR
BEEMEBEEE(ZZ__F:F)  RZT==
FE+ZA=+—8 - #ERRK &R AIE
A B 4224,550,0008 T (Z T =4 -
205,539,000 L) ERIELEHRIEEE - FTEBRE
B RER B 458 o

RZEZ=F+ZA=1+—8  A&EBRFH
EECZBIEEBARK6649000(BERL
7,337,000 7) (ZE =4 : ARK¥8474,000
TL(FE R 499,487,00078 7T ) ) A] FB VB 5 78 21
Bl RMEEMGERAEEERSET -  ARE
FEE 2 R AR e A AR R E R T & M A A
AzEERERE  RARYERZEREER
HREERIBEE ©

R &S
RZTZZF+A+HB(XSEHRE) AR
RIEMERBAGTCAIBRKRESRERRE(T
BBRESFA) Bt REBAREBRERER
B MARREEKRUERERTASBRESE
22,500,000/ TH A RER - VBERRERS
& 2 A% A% 190,258 7T ©

BRBREFANBITEN S _=FMNA=1H
F-E-_=FRA -+ -HBEK  RNATET
T AR S A% 5 R A2,500,0007% 7T 520,000,000
T2 ARRES - REABENUEAR025ETH
BREKTRREFERAERY  RZAHR
#390,000,000/% ° fNRATHAREH R EHR - K
AR EIRRESFNEHA S - NF+ =
A=+—B#HETER -
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30. AERES(F)

On 16 December 2022, the Company entered into a Convertible Bond RZZTZZF+ZA+XH  ARRIE-FR
Subscription Agreement with the subscriber (Convertible Bonds B), Eﬁ)\ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ‘%%%‘wgﬁﬁi (T%HX%%B) ’
pursuant to which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe Bt - REACEGRUERERE  mAR
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue to the subscriber, BIRHREEHITRSHE 14,000, OOO?%EE!'\]EH“;Zj
convertible bond in an aggregate principal amount of HK$14,000,000. The &S o MR RKRERBIRIRRRGKG022BTT ©
initial conversion price of HK$0.22 per conversion share.
The issue of the Convertible Bonds B was completed on 20 April MR ESFBNETERE_=FMHA=-TH
2023 and the Company has issued an aggregate principal amount of TR RDBIEITT ANe4RFE 14,000,000 7T
HK$14,000000 of the convertible bonds. Subscribers to the convertible R ARRIE S - REBABENESR022BTME
bonds are entitled to convert at a conversion price of HK$0.22 per share BREFAIRREFERRRG  SZAEKRR
and a maximum of 63,636,362 shares. If the convertible bonds have not 63,636,3620% - MR AR EH R FE R - AQ
been converted, they will be redeemed by the Company on the maturity A ERRESNIBAB T _=F1+_A
date of the convertible bonds on 31 December 2023. =+—HEHEETED -
At initial recognition, the equity component of the above convertible R HRE - ATRRESSSMERS - A
bonds was separated from the liability component. The equity element afE &TE““ o R E 124,000/ TG 2
is presented in equity heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” of AR ESERFRE DT - AEHHH
HK$124,000. The effective interest rate of the liability component ranged BERMEERICSCEZICSIE - RZZTE=F
from 16.56% to 1681%. On 31 May 2023, Convertible Bonds A with HERA=+—H r A& %20,000,000/# T2 7] #
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and Convertible Bonds B with 1% & H ABE 2 4 80,000,000% E BA% L A & 5 5
principal amount of HK$14,000000 were converted into 80,000,000 14,000,000/ 7T 2 ] ¥ I% 15 55 BEE 0 /363,636,362
ordinary shares and 63,636,362 ordinary shares respectively. Convertible R EBAR o A& FH 42,500,000 T 2 AT R E
Bonds A with the principal amount of HK$2500000 remained FARZZE_=F+_A=+—HRAKRER -
outstanding as at 31 December 2023.
The movement of the liability component of the convertible bonds for FARBRRESNEBELONEBHIWT
the year is set out below:

HK$°000

TR

At | January 2023 RZZE—=F—H—H -
Issue of convertible bonds BITAHARES 36,176
Effective interest expense BB 523
Interest paid ERFLE (291)
Accrued interest FEETHIE (236)
Conversion of convertible bonds into shares 15 TR R B 5 R AR D (33,696)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-_=ZF+-A=+—H 2,476

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

3. RATRA

For the year ended 3| December 2023

HE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HLFE

Number of shares Amount
RIEE ¥
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EBCZE —E-CF —EBC=F T F

'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i 3 Fi7 572
Authorised: ETE
At | January “—A—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREHEIBL(ZE2F :

(2022: HK$0.10) each 0.1087T) 2 Bl 70,000,000 7,000,000 700,000 700,000
Share sub-division (note ¢) R4 (Hiizc) - 63,000,000 - -
At 31 December R+=ZR=t+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BREE0IBIT(ZE-—F

(2022: HK$0.01) each 001787T) 2 Bl 70,000,000 70,000,000 700,000 700,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER -

At | January R—H—AH
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREEIEIT(ZE-—F:

(2022: HK$0.10) each 01077 ) 2 EiBiR 366,186 3,661,865 3,662 366,186
Share consolidation (note a) Rira bt (Hita) - (3295,679) - -
Share reduction (note b) RRIR IR (HEb) - - = (362,524)
Issue of shares upon conversion of BIATIR R E SRR TR G

convertible bonds (note 30) (F5#30) 143,636 - 1,436 -
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FREHEBL(ZE=

(2022: HK$0.01) each 0017870) 2 Bdk 509,822 366,186 5,098 3,662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes:

@) Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 28 November 2022, the Company completed
a share consolidation of every ten (10) issued shares of HK$0.10 each in
the issued share capital of the Company into one (1) consolidated share of
HK$1.00 each with effect from 30 November 2022.

(b) Immediately following the share consolidation in note (a) above, the
issued share capital of the Company of HK$366,186472.90 divided
into 366,186,472 consolidated shares of HK$1.00 each was reduced to
HK$3,661,864.72 divided into 366,186,472 new shares by cancelling the
paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the
then consolidated share, such that the par value of each of the issued
consolidated share was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.0l. The share
reduction resulted in a debit of share capital of the Company with credit
arising therefrom transferred to the accumulated losses.

(o) Immediately following the capital reduction in note (b) above, each of the
authorised shares of par value of HK$0.10 each was sub-divided into ten (10)
new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Details of all the above changes are set out in the Company's circular
dated 3 November 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched

by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$9,594,000 (2022:
HK$10,819,000) represents contributions paid and payable to these plans
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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32.

ARBRA ()
Hrat

(@) BEAR2ANR-_Z-_—F+—A-+/\BET
HRRFIAEBRANEIAZER - AR2FRN
TE-—F+—A=Z+tHETKRDAH B
BARBEBEITRAFE+T(10)REFAR0.10%E T
EEE&T?H&‘@%@FZ%*(I)&Hﬁl.oo}%ﬁﬂ’\]é\
AR ©

(b) EBELEXMFQMUENBKRGOEHFE BB
EARNREREREHBRDOEREAR099%E
JC o AR AR B BT IR AN366,186,472.90% T
(5 5366,186,472f% GRRE B 1.0078 TTHY & IR
B E3,661,864.728TT 9 5366,186,472
G - RmESRDETAFRONEE
#1.007 TR ZE0.01 8T © RIDEIREBARA A
BBRARNHBEENR  BUHEENEESES
AZRFHER ©

() BEEEXWEO)MEAREDRZ - GREMEOIO0
BITRETERMDEHR DL+ (10)REFREE0.OI
EITCEEAR D o

LR BEZHNHABHEHRARTDARAR T
“HET-A=ZBZEEA -

RIKERFHE
REMKETE
AEERMBEEAGEREESM—BRESR
itE - HEEERAREEESHRTAE TR
HIERAZHNESA - AEBRBREDE
TR AR Fr 2 ANS%A R - MEBTMELE

B -

AEETEMNBEARNESERTEBFLEN
BRERRABEHNFEZEE - WEBARIZAMR
BRABHNEFEEEN FHERAFEA DL
R MIRHENE S - AEB R IKNEN G
Bl R ERELREHRK

RIBSFER A B X 48589,594,0008 T(—ZE ==
F:10819,0008 L) RERAEE L7838 BIFT
ATz bR MZETE DB R ESER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

All of the properties and motor vehicles held by the Group for rental

purpose have committed lessees for the next one year respectively. The

leases do not include contingent rentals.

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

33. KEHEERE
FEBERSHEA
AEEFERRES ZABEMERITED HEZ%K
BARBRR-—FNEE - HETBFERRE

A
& °

2023 2022

—EBC=F —ECCF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THT

Within one year —FN 128 128

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

A

Enormous Fortune

On 21 March 2022, Billion Pride Group Limited, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, being the vendor (the “Vendor”)
and an independent third party, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser
A") entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which, the Vendor agreed to sell and Purchaser A agreed to
acquire 60% equity interest in Enormous Fortune Business Limited
(“Enormous Fortune”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Disposal
Group A"), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and sale loan
representing 60% of the shareholder's loan at cash consideration
of HK$15,000,000. The major asset of Disposal Group A is an
investment property located in Hainan, the PRC. The disposal
was completed on 21 March 2022, on which date the Group lost
control of the Disposal Group A. The sale loan was approximately
HK$42,992,000 on the date of disposal. Disposal Group A was
then reclassified as interest in associates. The fair value of the 40%
retained interest in Disposal Group A at the date on which control
was lost, being the initial recognition of the interests in associates,
was HK$10,000,000.

34. HEWEBLF

A.

BE=E

RZZEZZF=A=+—H  ARAFRE
E2ENBAREREEARAR(NE
F)TEFDERBYE=/IE8H) ([E
FANFIVEEGZ Bt BFREH
EREHARBWE N LB R Z B S
RWBEEEXERAF(EE] ER
HWBARSGEAI HEEEA]) Z60%HE
w o REFEEEFIEEROXRRER - ]
© R {& A 150000008 T - HEEEAR
FTEEEREUNTREEEAZREY
¥ - AL ECR _BE-_—_F=A=-+—
B - RZBAH  AEEXREEHE
SEANIZEGHE  RNHEHEBH  HFEEXK
#)/42992,0008 7 - HESBEARKE
MOBBRBERBZETE - RKEE
HIERE - REEERBEAN40%RE #E i
ZARBEWRARBERARESYLER
10,000,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

34.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B.

Bright Triumph
In 2021

On |5 November 2021, the Company, the Vendor and an
independent third party, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser B”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which,
the Vendor agreed to sell, and Purchaser B agreed to acquire all
the issued shares of Bright Triumph Development Limited (“Bright
Triumph”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Disposal Group B")
and sale loan at a consideration of HK$49,000,000. A deposit of
HK$28,492,000 (representing 60% of the consideration, amounted
to HK$29,400,000, with HK$908,000 being outstanding from
the Purchaser) was received and included in “Other payables
and accruals” at 31 December 2021. The relevant assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale on 31 December 2021 were
approximately HK$53,447,000 and approximately HK$5,380,000

respectively.

In 2022

The disposal of Disposal Group B was completed on 30 September
2022, on which date the Group lost control of the Disposal Group
B. The sale loan was approximately HK$132,538,000 on the date
of disposal. All the assets and liabilities associated to the Disposal
Group B were derecognised on the date of disposal. Further to a
supplemental agreement subsequently entered between the Vendor
and Purchaser B, both the Vendor and Purchaser B had agreed to
adjust the cash consideration to approximately HK$37,137,000.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

34.

HEMB AR (E)
B. i
R-ZF——4F

RZZE=_—F+—A+HA  ARA &
FRELE=F(BER) (TEABNEIZ
BEEWE Bt ERAREHERESB
REWEINRERAERARA(EE] &
REMBARGHEIHEELEER]) 22
BITRG REFEEEFR - KRB /49,000,000
BT R E-_—F+-_A=+—H B
U BX 4% € 28,492,0007% 7T (BB 2 60%
© 885294000008 7T - BAKREN S
#£908,000/87T) - I B 5T Al E h FE 5008
LEFERAIN - RZT=-—F+=-A=
T-RAESHEARELHEZHBREERE
& 9 Bl & %)53,447,0007% 7T & 495,380,000
BT ©

W= — —4F
RIFZZ

FHELELESEBR = 2“%%)%5
THTK - RZB - AEBEXEHEE
B hliE o RIHEBE - ¢ %Ew‘%
#7132,538,000/8 7T - B EELEBRE MM
FIEEERBEENLEBBKRIEER -
BERFEEFBEEBIT VAT HHEE -
BEFHEEFBHAEHREREAREY
37,137,000/ 7 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B.

Bright Triumph (Continued)
In 2022

The gain from disposal of the Enormous Fortune and Bright

Triumph are analysed as follows:

The net liabilities of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

follows:

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

34, HEMBLARE)

B. SlEE(#E)

R-E——

(=]

RHEERHZBEFREWT

Disposal Group A Disposal Group B Total
HESEA HEXEB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET FET
Property, plant and equipment W - BE NEE I 2,295 2,296
Investment properties REME 37418 45338 82,756
Prepayments and other receivables TR FIE R E A A 2 1,247 1,249
Bank balances and cash PITEBRRERS 152 93 245
Shareholders' loans REER (71,654) (132,538) (204,192)
Other payables and accruals HEENZIERENER (1,190) (17.214) (18,404)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (105) - (105)
Net liabilities disposed of BHESETE (35,376) (100,779) (136,155)
The gain from disposal of subsidiaries are HEME LR 2 as AT
analysed as follows: Dk
Total cash consideration BHenE 15,000 37,137 52,137
Fair value of interest retained REEZDRE 10,000 - 10,000
Assignment of shareholders' loans HERREX (42992) (132,538) (175530)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEBETE 35,376 100,779 136,155
Release of asset revaluation reserve MR AEELRA - (1 )
Release of exchange reserve FRRRIE K A 2876 4273 7,149
Release of statutory reserve R - 4) (4)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR U 20260 9,646 29906
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEMBRARZREAA
subsidiaries: R
Cash consideration received BEURERE 15,000 28537 43537
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITESRRES (152) (93) (245)
Net cash inflow as at 31 December 2022 N-ZE-—&F+-A 14,848 28,444 43292
=t—RZRERNFE
Outstanding consideration receivable JEURERRE - 8,600 8,600
14,848 37,044 51,892
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

35.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 24 May 2023, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Huge Advanced Group and shareholder’s loan owing by Huge Advanced
Group at a total cash consideration of HK$1,700,000. Huge Advanced
Investment Holding Limited, being an investment holding company,
holds 78.9% equity interest in a company incorporated in Japan and is
principally engaged in the plantation of agricultural products for sale which
is regarded as a subsidiary of the Company upon the completion of the

acquisition.

The non-controlling interests (21.1%) in Huge Advanced Group's
subsidiary — F 8 ¥k 2\ & 4L recognised at the acquisition date was
measured by reference to the proportionate share of recognised amounts
of net liabilities of &K= &+t and amounted to HK$ 107,000

As the Shareholders are aware from the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has been developing a
business in the agricultural sector through, among others, the management
and operation of the brand ““Cangshan Vegetables (& LEEZ)" and the
equipment and facilities of the Lanling Agricultural Products Wholesale
Market. The Acquisition will provide synergies and complement the
Group's existing business in the agricultural sector, help to diversify its
business and create higher returns for the Shareholders. The Board
considered that the Acquisition is a good investment opportunity for the
Group in light of the high demand for fruit in Japan and the Japanese
government's initiatives to promote the farming industry in Japan, and will

therefore create better retumns for the Shareholders.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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35.

Wt B B /B 2 |
RZZBEZ=FRAA-+WHABE r AoFKEEE
BEEEMI%EEITRAREZFRESE
BRORRER - BENRBEHETERI,700,000%
T BEEREERARARA—HREZRA
B BB —BRBAZEMALAR A Z78.9%
i ZRARFEEAARELEREE K
& REBEEREERARNARZMBAR -

R ERRERANEERESEZNBRARS
A SHRIEERERQ.1%) - I2ESE
LEKASHERREGEIENLIGFEZE £
K8 /5107,0008 7T °

BUOBREBARRBE_E_—F+_A=+
—HIEFEFERAANE - AEEBHIRBEB(E
FEF)EERGCEREIBEILRX INREEER
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WEFEEHARNEERAFREEBKTRIFRK
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

35 WRHEAR(E)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Huge Advanced RER - BERESEMBRENIHRRNEE
Group acquired at its date of acquisition is as follows: REBEMARBERT :
HK$’000
FERT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRE L& 1,378
Right-of-use asset EREEE 105
Inventories =& 9
Biological assets EMEE 86
Trade and other receivables E 5 N H M EW R IE &
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS I
Shareholder’s loan MR E K (1,982)
Trade and other payables B 5 M EMERFIA (2
Lease liabilities HERE (105)
Tax payables e IE (3)
(509)
Add: Assignment of shareholder’s loan o EERERE R 1,373
Non-controlling interest FEEAR M 107
Goodwill mE 740
Less: Deferred tax adjustment R RRET IR R (1)
2,209
Total consideration BRE 1,700
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEAE 2R S AFHE
Cash consideration paid BERBRSNRE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEIR & RIRE FEY I
Net cash inflow as at 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=F+ZA=+—BHNRSRAFE I
Outstanding payable KB EENFIE (1,700)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 27, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share

capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. @@IA
Categories of financial instruments a. ERMIBEER

2023 2022
—E-=HE —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBIERATEZ S REE 201,431 133344

Financial liabilities EA:N=Ri
Amortised cost BESHAOR 434,509 360,601
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,387 4,788
Convertible bonds Al AR E S 2,476 -
440,372 365,389

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, other payables, acquisition payable due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiary, amounts due to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary, borrowings, lease liabilities and convertible bonds.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risks (currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

SREKREERERBK

AEBCZFESHIEBFERKRE SR
B e hEMEREIE - RITESR KRR
& BNESIA - HUENZ0R - BN
(R NCIE 2 o Sl Y NP/ I
B AR IR EERIAE - B -
ERaERTBERES - @BRTANFER
MHEMEARE - Bt S8 T AREY
R\ BET SRR (EERR - M XER
EEERR)  EERBUERBHESA
B o IADRER L F R R AR T -
EREEENERZEAR  UARKRER
KA REEE B ©
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37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. SWMIAE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b. tREREEEERBE(E)
Market risk i 15 B
()  Currency risk (i EBEER
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC, AREBFTEEEANTRHEZE M
with certain of their sales and purchases transactions ETEERGUET - BLTAAR
being settled in US$, HK$ and RMB. The Group is thus Wik o At - ANEBEEINE (A
exposed to currency risk arising from fluctuations on ET - BTRAREAE)AEBSE
foreign currencies, primarily US$, HK$ and RMB, against BEEEB e EBEREYMES
the functional currency of the relevant group entities. The ZEERR - BB T ERINE
management continuously monitors foreign exchange B TeRNEEREBRHPEKX
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign SNEE [ o
currency exposure should the need arise.
As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not have BRARE TR TES - AREE W&
material exchange rate risk on such currency. HEZEE 2 ERERRE -
The Group’s exposure to currency risk AEEFES ZEERER
The following table details the Group's exposure at the TERAFMAREBRRERRIZER
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from ERGEEEUIINEEEEZCE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency REESBEMEE ZIHINERRK °
other than the functional currency of the entity to which ENAEEETEEZTBERER
they relate. Differences resulting from the translation of the ABREBRNEYEEMELENEZ%E
financial statements of the entities within the Group into the WARBIEEN o
Group's presentation currency are excluded.
2023 2022
—EC=E 2
UsS$ HK$ RMB US$ HK$ RMB
E BT AR® e BT ARE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000 HKF000  HK$000
TEx FTEr TFEx THET FTET  TER
Bank balances and cash FITERERS 8l = 29 32 - 27
Pledged bank deposits BIRRITER - - - - - -
Borrowings R (91,369) - - (40,637) - -
Overall exposure to currency risk BEauER (91,288) - 29 (40,605) - 27

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
HK$ exchange rate against RMB for group entities with RMB
or HK$ as functional currencies, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group's loss for the year and accumulated

37.

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

$RMIAE)
b. ZRERESEEEREE(E)
mEE R (E)

(y EEBRERE)

GURE DT
TREFIRAMBEEMEHRT T
B MEBETEARY ZERT R
RABgHH BT AREZAX
FEBRRRFEBERNREHNRY
MARBHBETRAEEE 2&E
ERNGERE -

losses.
Increase (decrease) in
loss for the year and
accumulated losses
TEEBER
RETBRZMORD)
% HK$'000
% THAT
2023 —EBC-=F
If HK$ weakens against RMB fin BT AR EE 453 5 (N
If HK$ strengthens against RMB T ARKEES (©) |
2022 —E-CF
If HK$ weakens against RMB fin BT AR #4353 5 0
If HK$ strengthens against RMB T AREES ©) |

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the group entities’ loss for the year and accumulated
losses measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation

purposes.

ERFEINZDMERESEHE
BUZEVEERAE(RERE
B DEBERRZEXRLHERE
TO) 2 AN FEEE N R EEZ AR

= A B 48
RETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0)

(i

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group,
including intra-group balances with foreign operations
within the Group denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the foreign operations, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for year ended 31 December 2022.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan receivables, borrowings, lease
liabilities and convertible bonds. The Group is exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank
balances. The Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any interest rate

movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured

at amortised cost is as follows:

37.

EMIAE)
b. LREREEAERBEE)

F G R (E)

@

(i

B R (&)

DHT(4E)
EDWEF“%%ETZ """" )
%méﬁJEKE@%hﬁIF
MEMKRERAEEABRINERE 2
CRMIE  BRESENIREINER
e B AINESEETEREINETS
BRzEERARRHEER - BEZ
T+ - A=+—HItFEZ
DT IRCARE R BT o

U & &
] & @
W

RSN

7% 5 18 T 4 £ (B TE M) R UL E R
EX HERERUBERES AR
MAREBEMNERR o NEBE @SR
AENXRITESKEENRSRE
MERERR - AEENRSREN X
Rl BEEPRBITHEBOF XK
B o REBRIBRIEF FIKF A
R EEAA R E LN E
BUAEREMNERER o

RBERATENSREEN B
AR

2023 2022

—ZE_-= T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Financial assets at amortised cost LK AT 2 SRVEE 40 48
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

37. @I AE(E)
b. tREREEEERBE(E)
H G R (E)

(i  FE@ERE)

WIRAABEFABRZEZREE

FVTPL: ZABRAX
2023 2022
—=E_-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBEK TG ECSRIBE 14,706 13,545
Lease liabilities HEBRE 358 806
Convertible bonds AT E S 523 -
15,587 14,351

Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2022: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in variable-rate
bank balances and pledged bank deposits are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 3|
December 2023 would decrease/increase by HK$596,000
(2022: decrease/increase by HK$246,000).

INTERESTRBEREHARSN
FERBMEE - ZOMHRERE
BREBEMRREEN SR I AR
2EARKER - RPRAETEEFIE
AEREFNERABRK - ATFAEER
THEBFBEERRITFRN EAK
TRESOMEER(ZZT =5 : SoAE
B RERBEEEBHMEEGEAEE
B ETAE o

B FE A TRESOEEZ(=F
T SOEER) MATE E M E
RFLE - AIAEBEEHEE-_T ==
F+-—A=+—HIEFENKRTE
& 1B 5 R L H#H1596,0007 7T (=

T ZF R HN246,0000%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial

assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from trade receivables
from toys segment, deposits and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, loan receivables and interest receivables. The carrying
amount of these balances represent out Group's maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from toys segment

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually. In this regard, the directors consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer having similar credit
risk characteristics. Most of the customers are multi-national
corporations with well-known brands for their toy products and

have satisfactory credit rating.

Concentration risk of trade receivables from toys segment

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 91.0% (2022: 83.2%)
and 98.2% (2022: 99.9%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. These customers are international toy retailers with

good credit ratings.

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

SRMITAE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. SRMIA(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b. LRIEAKREEEEREE(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the Group has assessed
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12-month ECL.

Bank balances and pledged bank deposits

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the

counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Concentration risk of bank balances

At 31 December 2023, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 50.5% (2022: 62.1%) of the total of cash and cash
equivalents was deposited with one financial institution in the PRC
(2022: Hong Kong) with high credit rating. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Loan receivables and interest receivables

At 31 December 2023, the Group had gross loan receivables and
interest receivables of HK$ 16,126,000 (2022: HK$16,733,000) and
HK$3,790,000 (2022: HK$3,790,000) respectively. Before entering
into the loan agreements, the Group assesses the credit quality
of borrowers and defines the terms of the loans. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
loan at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as the loans were made to two
(2022: two) borrowers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue loans. In view of the financial position of
the borrowers, and the monitoring procedures adopted by the
management, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

credit risk in respect of the loan receivables could be monitored.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loan receivables and interest receivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the following

indicators are incorporated:

. Internal and external credit rating;

. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower's ability to meet its

obligations; and

. Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrowing, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes in

the operating results of the borrower.

At 31 December 2023, two loan receivables and their loan
interest receivables with gross carrying amounts of HK$16,000,000
(2022: HK$16,000,000) and HK$3,790,000 (2022: HK$3,790,000)
respectively are amounts due from borrowers whom the
directors of the Company considered were credit-impaired. The
borrowers did not repay the loan interest receivable according to
the schedule listed on the loan agreements. The directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the borrowers might not be
able to repay the loan receivables. Another loan receivable with
gross carrying amount of HK$733,000 as at 31 December 2022
due from a borrower was credit impaired which the directors of
the Company considered the borrower might not be able to repay
loan receivables. During the year ended 3| December 2023, an
amount of HK$600,000 has been repaid to the Group, and the
provision of ECL for this loan receivable amounting to HK$600,000

has been reversed.

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE
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37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. SRMIAE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b. TRIEAKBEEEERBEA)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loan receivables and interest receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the directors of the Company assessed
the provision of ECL of these loan receivables and their loan
interest receivables were HK$16,126,000 (2022: HK$16,733,000)
and HK$3,790,000 (2022: HK$3,790,000) respectively with the
assistance of Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional valuer not connected to the Group. Reversal of
ECL loan receivables of HK$600,000 (2022: HK$400,000) was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 3| December
2023. Up to the reporting date, the Group has arranged legal
letters to the borrowers of two loan receivables with gross
amounts of HK$16,000,000 to request for repayment and
another borrowers of the loan receivable with gross amount of
HK$ 126,000 is negotiating with the Group to renew and extend

the existing loan receivables terms.

The Group's exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its operation
management team to develop and maintain the Group's credit risk
grading to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk
of default. The credit rating information is supplied by independent
rating agencies where available and, if not available, the operation
management team uses other publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own trading records to rate its major customers
and other debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37.

EMIAE)
THEREEEERBEE)
=B B R B E AP ()

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

AEEAZ 2 EERR(E)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework comprises the NEB BN EERMSITILRERSIETY
following categories: *gRl -
Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
AR P BRANEEERECEE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not been a  |2-month ECL
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not
credit impaired (refer to as Stage |)
FB#) BHERBERBVSERAREERRARNE - BEEEERES REABRBEESE
EREE(RE KB
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired (refer to as
Stage 2)
TrhR BUFHABAREERRMBEECEENENSREE(RENE ZUEAEEEHE - BEER
) =1
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events  Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
EX) RS ZAEHHZEENBMARRERBEL N NZ LR rHBEBEERE-LREER
EREERNEREERE(REIRR) BIE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty ~ Amount is written off
and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
s BRBRABBARNBEEVHRIE - MARELEERE@FIR  FORRKMIEA
B AT BE
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

37. SRIA(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s financial

assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by

credit risk rating grades:

CREAREEEERBEK(E)
=B m B R Bl B 7P 1 ()

AREAZ ZEERR(E)
TERHMNEAKEEREEZFEEE

UNEAREZEERRIRTENZARE
B

Internal Gross carrying Net carrying
At 3| December 2023 Notes  credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount
R-BZ=% A
+=ZA=t-AH M7 EEIE  NEARRHEHEEER fREAE BRRE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL TR THET
Loan receivables 18 Default Lifetime ECL 16,126 (16,126) -
fElRER EH RHRAEERE
Trade receivables 21 note i Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 71,657 (1175) 70482
JEWE Z50R P i EHRMEEBECELTE)
Deposits and other receivables 22 Default Lifetime ECL 3,790 (3,790) -
e REMRYGR EH PHRAEERE
Performing 12-month ECL 11,616 - 11,616
B# REARHEEER

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

37.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Internal credit

e D ERRM

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

SRMIAE)
b. ZFERESEEEREE(E)
=EREERBEFE(E)

AEEAZ 2 EERR(E)

Gross carrying

Net carrying

At 31 December 2022 Notes  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount

R-B--fF

+=A=+-A iz ABEEFR NEARZERHEESE REAE BERE FREFHE

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TER TET

Loan receivables 18 Default Lifetime ECL 16,733 (16,733) -

JERER k) PHEREESE

Trade receivables 21 note i Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 75951 (4,448) 71,503

WS 5508 HiaTi > HREEEEHREEAE)

Deposits and other receivables 22 Default Lifetime ECL 32857 (32.857) -

B REMRKHE k) PHEREERE

Note iii

P i

Performing 12-month ECL 12,076 - 12076
fFES) REAEBEEEE

Note i for trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach Bt ?ﬁﬂ%qﬁﬁ %%ﬁl l?iﬂ(ﬁ = ¥§§ =2 E T\%TUEH &
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except BUBRELEEIR 2 EHTEAER
for debtors that are credit-impaired or with significant outstanding HEHEEBEZRE - RAFEER
balances, the Group determines the ECL on these items by using a ﬁﬁiﬁ*ﬁg %ﬁ%ZﬁEL&EEﬁK?‘\ - R
provision matrix, grouped by internal credit rating. The management SEGEANBEEFRIME 7 BERE
of the Group considered the loss allowance on this group of trade %ﬁﬁi%lﬁ BrEBEERE - ZF%%@
receivables to be insignificant. g1 V 7 LEWE 5 RIEAR 2R

BEEHLTERKX -

Note ii as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, ECL on trade receivables Hati R—F =R -_F_—_F+ =
with significant balances with gross amount of HK$71,657,000 +—8" & E E NS ,ﬁ%‘ gé;/ﬁ Bl &
and HK$75951,000 respectively were assessed individually. These 71,657,000/ JT 52 75,951,000/ Tt 2 FE L
receivables are assessed for impairment allowance based on the BB BHERBED BTG o
historical credit losses experience, forward looking factors and % ﬁgg WHRETDBEBTEEHEER
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, including B AEREERHESA R ERER (R
settlement pattern, recent transactions with the Group and length of HEEE N EAEE Y SEHZ 5N
business relationship. i%f?ﬁ REMELAREE - SUREREE

1TaTE -

Note iii for other receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company Ffetii REMBERABARIZEME - ARFE
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other FIRBBAER EE% BRI &él\
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records, BEHEBREBEIHOAMELETEE RTEEE
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information B B H M RN ROR R iR & Ky ] Y el
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. ETTHERNFGE -  ARAEEREE
The directors of the Company believe that there are no significant Y146 BE R LA R 5% B AR IA RV 15 B LR 3
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and s AASERE 2(EABEHER
the Group provided impairment based on 12 months expected AEHIRAE - MERRTE (E4729,067,0007 7T
losses method, except for the other receivables from Enormous RE fh FE UL RE = RIERR AN - BIE T
Fortune with carrying amount of approximately HK$29,067,000. ;ﬁ +-A=+—H H:fﬂ_‘i‘_ PR %‘E BEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group assessed the aF f KL A e U SR0E T 12 6 WO TR M S B U
ECL for other receivables and deposits, an impairment loss of T‘% C 1B 2 FE AR R (B 5 18 129,067,000 7
HK$29,067,000 was recognised in the profit or loss. JT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=f1+-A=1+-BLEE

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has available revolving loan
facility of approximately HK$35,000,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$50,000,000). Details of which are set out in note 27.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk of being unable to finance
its future working capital and financial requirements when they fall
due. The net current liabilities and net liabilities of the Group as
at 31 December 2023 was approximately HK$185,184,000 and
HK$80,869,000 respectively. In view of this, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of

the Group and details of which are set out in note 3.1.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities and derivative instruments. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the lenders choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based

on the agreed repayment dates.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

e TR
TV A = | /E\ B
For the year ended 3| December 2023

HE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HLFE

37. E@MIE(E)
b. ZFERESEEEREE(E)
mEESEB(E)

ZREBENERAZHERE

o

Liquidity tables MEBE & F*
On demand
Weighted average or less than I to 3 months Total undiscounted
interest rate | month 3 months to | year Over | year cash flows ~ Carrying amount
RERT ESiit
TSR SRIER IZ3f8R MEAZEIF -ERE RERELE RifE
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
% TiER TR TR Fign Fign TR
2023 ZECCE
Borrowings &3t 6.09% 80575 1,348 166,163 - 248,08 238097
Trade payables EREZ5E - 79,205 45,18 46,155 - 170,541 170,541
Other payables EERTUE - 1871 - - - 2871 21871
Lease liabilities fEaE 9.52% m 45 1,095 2,049 3811 3,387
Convertible bonds TR ER 16.56% 34 66 2,790 - 2890 2476
185,907 47,040 216,203 2,049 451,199 440372
On demand
Weighted average or less than I 'to 3 months Total undiscounted
interest rate | month 3 months to | year Over | year cash flows  Carrying amount
BRERS AR
IEFFE SRIEA IZ3(EA MEAZIF —FAL BEeREER e
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
% TR TR TERL TR TR TR
2022 —ECCE
Borrowings B 647% 1006 67,105 127,634 - 195,745 190943
Trade payables ENE55E - 74351 19472 4388 - 137111 137111
Other payables B RERFE - 30547 - - - 3547 0547
Lease liabiltties HERE 8.11% (91 38l [715 3169 5456 4788
108,095 86958 172637 3169 370859 365,389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at

fair value on a recurring basis

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
have been no significant transfers between Level | and 2 or

transfers into or out of Level 3.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value

disclosures are required)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities have
been determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised

in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

BMENEERLF
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38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M HRR

For the year ended 3| December 2023

BE_T-=F1+-A=1+-BLEE
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 38. MERBRELAREZHIR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from TRFMANEFEREIHELBEZEE -
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities BIEReRIIERSEE - EEBFEL A
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or BEAERSAREC KA AKR S RELEENER
future cash flows will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement NREBGEBEESRERIWIEREEGH ZIRE T
of cash flows as cash flows financing activities. g o
Interest Lease Convertible
Borrowings payables liabilities bonds Total
EX EARNE HEEE TRRES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET THET FHET
(note 27) (note 28)
(Kt5t27) (Ktet28)
At | January 2022 WZE-_—#—H—H 263567 - 13,054 - 276,621
Finance costs BERA - 13,545 806 - 14,351
New leases entered R HE - - 6,442 - 6,442
Termination of a lease RIEHE =
agreement - - (10,538) - (10,538)
Financing cash flows MEREME (59,876) (13,545) (4,238) - (77,659)
Foreign exchange translation — #NEE (12,748) - (738) - (13,486)
At 31 December 2022 R-T-—F
+=—A=+—H 190,943 — 4,788 — 195731
Finance costs BERA - 14,706 358 523 15,587
New leases entered EIHE = = 624 = 624
lssue of convertible bonds ~ BEATAIHRAREH = - - 36,176 36,176
Accrued interest FESHFILE - = - (236) (236)
Addition through acquisition — FiBUIEHTE A RIS E
of subsidiaries = = 105 = 105
Conversion of convertible IR IR E S
bonds - - - (33,696) (33,696)
Disposal of associates HEBZ AR 612) (246) = - (858)
Financing cash flows BMERERE 49,661 (11,300) (2,443) (291) 35,627
Foreign exchange translation — #MNE#E (1,895) 16 (45) = (1,924)
At 31 December 2023 A ——
+=—A=+—H 238,097 3,176 3,387 2,476 247,136
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. EXEBAERS
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, RAREENEAR(AARR AR )2 H
which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on ERERSHEREERE R - LHaETE
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions WE o TXHEEA B AR B B B 5 2
between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below. R SFFIE -
(A)  Transaction with related parties (A) EBEBERS
During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions FRN - AEBEEBBTIVATRS

with related parties:

2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income received from a related BER—FREBAR(ARAR —REEE
company in which a key management BABUWHBSATE) Z2HEE A
personnel of the Company has significant
influence = 384
Interest expenses paid to a licensed money B —RI#FENE QR Z F B X
lending company 724 508
Interest expenses paid to a major ENEBEARFERR 2T EME
shareholder of associates 183 62
907 954
(B)  Outstanding balances with related parties (B) MAEHMEESEE
Loan from major shareholder of associates SN EBRRZER - (612)
Loan interest payable to major shareholder — FE{THEZE AR EZME 2 EFFE
of associates = (62)
Loan from a licensed money leading —FARFERER R 2 &R
company (note i, note 27(f) (Hiati ~ Kiz2700) (8,000) -
Acquisition payable due to non-controlling T A B FEIE AR i 2
interests of a subsidiary (note ii) M B A< ST (Y i) (1,700) -
Amount due to non-controlling interests of  FE{THIE A B FEIE I =
a subsidiary (note iii) FRIE (B 7 i) (63) -
216 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B)

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)
Notes:

(@) A licensed money lending company is one of shareholders of the
company.

(ii) An acquisition payable is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(iii) Amount due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management, comprising the directors of

the Company, during the year was as follows:

39.

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

BEABMAIRS (&
(B) MARFBENBAES EER(AE)
Mzt -

() FEREARNKERABBRRL— -

() WBERRESEER  2ERERE
o R -

(i) BNHBRARFERESREARSER
BB REREREER

(C) FEEBAESHMH
TZERABR(BREARRERT)IRFAZ
HMa T

2023 2022

—EC=F —ECCF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

Short-term benefits e EIRT 3,469 4,865
Post-employment benefits BEER12AE A 59 52
3,528 4917

The remuneration of key management, comprising the directors of
the Company, is determined having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

IZERAB(BEARRES)NHHN
ZREAXRBRTZBBRETE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—E-=EEH

217



218

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EHRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-Z-=F+-A=+-HLFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the Company at

the end of the reporting period are set out below.

40. AAREEMBRR 2FE

ZEERIIT -

ARARRBERREERBEFA ZWEAQF

2023 2022
Place of Percentage of Percentage of
incorporation/ Registered  equity attributable to equity attributable to
Name registration capital paid up the Company the Company Principal activities
SR/ —E-=E —E-C
£R b AREMER ALAEERERIL TRREGREESL TRER
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
E# S BER ik
Alliance Credit Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100% - 100%  Provision of credit finance services
B E3BRI0000ET REFEMERS
Big Crown Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS| = 100% - 100%  Trading of securities
&0 LA IBT BEES
Billion Pride Group Limited BVI Ordinary US$| 100% = 100% - Investment holding
RRRAHS TRRIXT RERR
Central Information Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 = 100% - 100%  Trading of securities and provision of
mAARRE Bk LB 1008 management services
BERF MRHEERY
Chongxin Co, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS| = 100% - 100%  Investment holding
SEHRERAA B TRRIET RERR
Luxtone HK Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS! = 100% - 100%  Investment holding
B LRRIET REZR

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

40. ARRETEMBRRZFHE(E)

2023 2022
Place of Percentage of Percentage of
incorporation/ Registered  equity attributable to equity attributable to
Name registration capital paid up the Company the Company Principal activities
SR/ —E-=E —E-C
£R b AREMER ALOAEGRERIL TAFEGREESL TRER
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
E# 3 BER 3
Sewco (BV)) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$401 100% = 100% - Investment holding
RRBRAHS ERmR0IET RERR
Sewco Toys & Novetty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,200 = 100% - 100%  Investment holding and trading of toys
Non-voting deferred products
HK$420,000
SREXERLA B L1RR76000200/5 7T RERRLEETAER
ERER
BRER420000E T
Talent Management Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS | = 100% - 100%  Provision of management services
B LRk IBT REEERS
Zhongshan Sewco Toys & Novelty The PRC Paid-up capital = 100% - 100%  Manufactuing and sales of toys products
Limited* HK$124300,000
PURRTARREARAA i BRARI 243000008 RERBENAER
ERRARRRIERAA The PRC Paid-up capital US$1,750,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
i BRETRI 7500005 REER
BEFA e Japan Paid-up capital JPY5,070,000 = 78.9% - —  Plantation of agricuttural products for sales
A ARAAS070000AE RERBERLE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

40.

41.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

# A wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the PRC.

b For identification purpose only.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of

the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

EVENTS AFTER END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, the

following events took place:

Issue of New Shares

On 15 January 2024, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
101,964,566 ordinary shares of HK$0.0l each for cash at the net issue
price of approximately HK$0.066 per new share under the general

mandate giving rise to net proceeds of HK$6,500,000.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

41.

AARATEHBATZHEE)
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TEEMZ2EINEDRE -

(EXE U

EREINARFAEETRAR/IBFELAFERAE
FARANEEEEFEIZN D 2 ARANE
R ARBEERE  WRHEHMGHERF
ZEE - BREMBRITE -

WEHHREBREE
RZE-_=F+_A=+—REREZARE
B - @A ATEMS

BT R A
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TELAR B 1T E B IR AT AR 1D £90.066 78 JT AL 85 K 3
1A 101,964,566 FAREE0.01 B T2 LA
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42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF

THE COMPANY

e BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2023
BE_T_=F+_A=t-BL%FE

42. ARRZHMBRRREHE

2023 2022
—EC-=fF .- Sh—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHET FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB KRB 379 -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 520 -
Interests in subsidiaries VNG Fa (a) 814 -
1,713 -
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE -~ e REHMEWRIE
receivables 482 306
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 85 68
567 374
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals Hofth e (< R1E M JE AT B 12,778 13,636
Borrowing BR 45,000 48,550
Convertible bonds A ES 30 2,476 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 313 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTI B A TIFRIA 887 46279
61,454 108,465
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (60,887) (108,091)
Total assets less current liabilities BELBERRBAR (59,174) (108,091)
Non-current liabilities ERENBE
Lease liabilities HEAE 196 -
Net liabilities BEFE (59,370) (108,091)
Capital and reserves N7 Kk & 8
Share capital &N 31 5,098 3,662
Deficit B4t (b) (64,468) (111,753)
Capital deficiencies = N (59,370) (108,091)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TSR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-Z-=F+-A=+-HLFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF 42. AATZHBEMR AR RHE(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Bisr

(@)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are classified under non-current asset (@) RBURINBARRESERIERDEE  H BAK
as the directors of the Company consider that the amounts due from NRAEERABERMBRRFERNERRIEK
subsidiaries are part of the investments in subsidiaries. The amounts are BEH—&n c EERBBRERR SEREE
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. RKIEE -

(b)  Movement in the Company's reserves (b) ARTFMHEEE

Convertible Exchange
Share  bond equity  fluctuation ~Contributed  Accumulated

premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
AR ES 37

BORE  HEEEE  KBRE BARR RitBiE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TR TET TET TR TET TET

At | January 2022 W-B-—#—F—H 942,400 - - 152762 (1541312)  (446,150)
Total comprehensive expense AEEZERZBE

for the year - - - - (28,127)  (28,127)
Share reduction MR B - - - - 362,524 362,524
Cancellation of share premium (Note) — ESEAE DB (HiFE) (942,400) - - - 942,400 -
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZH+-A=1—H - - - 152,762 (264515)  (111,753)
Total comprehensive income AEEEENHEE

for the year ~ - - 86 - 14815 14901
Issue of convertible bonds TARRES 124 - 124
Conversion of convertible AR E AR

bonds into shares 32377 (117) - - - 32,260
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+-A=+-8 2377 7 8 152762 (49700)  (64468)
Note: Bt -
Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the special general meeting of BEARTAR_ZE__F+— A=+ \HE{T
the Company held on 28 November 2022, the Company cancelled the ZIRRFENAE EBBZEIIRER - AAA
entire amount standing to the debit of the Share Premium Account as of RO EEREEBEE S __F+—A=+
30 November 2022 to nil with the credit arising therefrom transferred to HZ2HESBETHEAT  UHHNEEZE
the accumulated losses. PREEEE A E RETBE -
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Five Years Financial Summary
HEMBHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

AEBERNBERERNBFEEREESC T ZREZER

last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited consolidated

financial statements, is set out below:

Year ended 3| December

HEt-A=+—-RHLEE

EMBHRERCEERBEERABZBZHINMT

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZB-=F T T4 _ZT_TF _T-NF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RESULTS ES TR THT TET TET TET
Revenue LN 523,262 849,096 724627 364,311 649,490
Cost of sales HEKA (483,99) (751213) (687370)  (345796)  (574551)
Gross profit EX ] 39,266 97883 37,257 18515 74939
Other income, gains and losses HEHMA - W RER 10,300 8217 (10475) (6999) 16,822
Selling and distribution costs HERD KA (1,608) (7557) (5710) (4,109) (6,403)
Adnministrative expenses THFEZ (49,879) (84903) (78522) (72,/446) (76431)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% ~ BiE K& 2 REEE - - (30,704 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEEZRERSE - - (3,140) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ I - 29,906 - 7991 -
Research and development expenses MERL - - - (336) (2523)
Gain arising from change in fair value less cost to EMEEARBEREENA
sell of biological assets SEELE WE 13 - - -
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value AR BIFABRZSREEY
through profit or loss DhEE = - 100 (2929) (10,689)
Other operating expenses HiEER% (5,503) (17.426) (22,600) (28,358) (14404)
Finance costs BAKA (15,587) (14351) (16,079) (13,449) (14785)
(Loss) profit before taxation BrBi Al (F518) 57 (22,998) 11,769 (129,873) (102,120 (33474)
Income tax (expense) credit Pt (X )HER (6,363) (3.690) (6,142) 6,341 (8948)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(HR)EF (29,361) 8079 (136,015) (95,779) (42422)
(Loss) profit for the year attributed to: ATIEE EEAEE(BR)ERN :
Owners of the Company ARAEBA (28,650) 8,079 (136015) (95,779) (42,422)
NCI FEEf iR 711 - - -
(29,361) 8,079 (136015) (95,779) (42,422)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Five Years Financial Summary

AEMBHRE

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
SR ZZC-F B -F ZE-EE O —ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT FHT FHT FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets maE 414,325 340946 550,348 484,688 595,752
Total liabilities e s (495,194)  (430594)  (649290)  (446787)  (475473)
(Capital deficiency) total equity (ERE4H) BES (80,869) (89,648) (98.942) 3790 120279
NCI IR 814 - - - _

(Capital deficiency) attributable to owners of the ARARHEE AEG
Company (AR JEH) (80,055) (89,648) (98942) 37901 120279

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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